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Corporate Profile
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I Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

yberport is an innovative digital

community with over 1,500 start-ups
and technology companies. It is managed
by Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited, which is wholly owned
by the Hong Kong SAR Government.
With a vision to be the hub for digital
technology thereby creating a new
economic driver for Hong Kong, Cyberport
is committed to nurturing a vibrant
technology ecosystem by cultivating
talent; promoting entrepreneurship
among youth; supporting start-ups on
their growth journey; fostering industry
development by promoting collaboration
with local and international partners; and
integrating new and traditional economies

% W5 A — AT BEE 1LY - ERE
#@1,500f MRl EERMBRRE
HEBRITHERFE2ERANEE
HHBEEFRARERE - HHBHE
REM A BRI AEBGEN
KB - BB FINBREEAA ~
WEVFEARIZE S KIEVAIEE > AlE
EHNRAIRIERE ; Bid S KRR
REBHSE RENKEXZEE;

Corporate Profile

BN

by accelerating digital transformation in
the public and private sectors.

Cyberport is focused on building three
application clusters, including FinTech,
smart living and digital entertainment &
esports, and three technology clusters
namely Artificial Intelligence (Al) & big
data, blockchain and cybersecurity. With a
committed team of professionals providing
all rounded value-added services to
support our digital community and an
array of state-of-the-art technology
facilities, Cyberport seeks to become
the flagship for Hong Kong's digital
technology industry.

B R AN R AT SR B R A BT -
BB R BRSBERE ©

YHBERERNEHBHRE
B> BE=ERAER -k -8
SEE BRERB TR Uk=
BRI ER - ATEERAHE » BIE
B Bt e c BUIBBHEAEEMM
ISERPTAERR M2 EIEERTS 0 LB IER
MR B AR E B SRR ERY
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Annual Summary

FEME

rom seed funding to mentorship and incubation, alongside
F support for expansion to global networks of investors and
partners, Cyberport provides all-round support to entrepreneurs to
help them innovate and succeed. In the past year, Cyberport has
made further progress in advancing the digital technology
ecosystem, setting the stage for Cyberport start-ups to shine all over

the world.

Cyberport Community

G BB

Digital technology interns 2019/20
2019/20 BiHERH B E A B

358

Cyberport Creative Micro Fund (CCMF) grantees
& Cyberport Incubation Programme (CIP)
incubatees in 2019/20
2019/20 TESEBRIEMILES) ZEIER
&k TESBIEAE SBEAE

227

Cyberport University Partnership

Programme (CUPP) accumulated participants
REt T89S - KESER S
SEBL AH

303

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report
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FinTech Companies

EREH AT

Community Members

BESBHEE
1,500+

Smart-Space companies
Smart-Space’A &

992

Talent Cultivation

AABE

Incubatees expanded to global markets to date

ESBRREBIINTIENEE AR

Accumulated no. of local and overseas market development
activities supported by

Overseas/ Mainland Market Development
Support Scheme (MDSS)

REHENEIN IS E TR

S HRBARM KBNS RS E)

97

All technology events and participants in 2019/20
2019/20 K/NERECREN R 2 A H

152/15,345

Start-up Achievements

IlMSE S5 %0

Annual Summary

FEHE

Industry Development

Tx%E

Accumulated fund raised

REtEEEE

Hks 13,052m

Worldwide accolades earned to date
ESRENEIFREE

710

Accumulated Cyberport Macro Fund (CMF)
approved projects and total investment
Rt TBUSERERIZERES)

EMEIER MG ELE

12/ wks91.68wm

As of March 2020
HZ 2020538
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New Challenges, New Opportunities, New Normal

he COVID-19 epidemic has brought with it a challenging year
T for the entire world. Nonetheless, as we recover together and
settle into a new rhythm of life, digital technology has emerged as the
new driving force for sustainable economic development.

The epidemic has indeed led us to reflect on how we live and has
changed the way we make decisions. It has reaffirmed the positive
impact of innovation and technology in improving our daily lives, in
the process transforming business models, and creating an
advanced market ecosystem.

In face of the epidemic, Cyberport and its community of start-ups
have developed and built various digital technology solutions to help
frontline medical workers, enterprises, the government, parents, and
the public at large, overcome the challenges at hand and navigate the
new normal in our work, daily lives, and social relations.

Digital technology applications continue to be essential to
acclimatising in the new landscape of remote working and online
learning, enterprise transformation, finding opportunities in the
stay-at-home economy, and restructuring supply chains for
diversification. It is the inevitable force that will propel us through

past limitations and link industries to construct a new economic
normal.

With these seismic changes, Cyberport and its community of
start-ups are ready to lead society in embracing innovation, seizing
opportunities, and promoting the sustainable growth of the new
economy. We remain committed as ever to the people of Hong Kong
as we navigate the new normal together.

BEUTHREL  SIEMERE
¥FI_ HERMBRBEARINGEREILE - BEBERMABOE
RO o EERESETER - S INEEARE 0 M
YRERHS TR AR A BB R B R RT3 ROV IR AR o
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Braving the Epidemic
B A nE

6 0 + solutions

Innovatlon with social |mpact
BREFTEIONA TSR ERRRE
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Virtual Insurance
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Distance Learning and Work From Home

EBESEREKRLIIE

Software, platforms, products and services
to help facilitate remote operations,
education, and virtual exhibitions
FRE e EnMRB R EREE
TR B EREES)
Blockchain
& 1R5E
J— \B)_
Insurance and Relief Funds

REZAR 5 e SZ 1R 1R IE

Al & Big Data
AL ERER A&

Relief funding and protection
provided by virtual insurers

EREBEARMRERES

Smart Building Management EdTech
BEMEER HERK
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Cyberport always stands by
our start-ups and technology
companies to weather the

challenges together.

EEIELE - HEBEETF VA
EEMFEE L EIRIEE -

HEEHEEE -

ith this Annual Report for the
WFinancial Year ended 31 March 2020
(2019/2020), | am pleased to share with you
the notable achievements our organisation

and the Cyberport Community made over
the past financial year.

During the past year, Hong Kong's
overall economic and innovation and
technology (I&T) development was beset
by domestic and international headwinds
that seriously tested the grit, intelligence,
and resilience of our start-ups and
entrepreneurs. From trade wars to the
unprecedented COVID-19 epidemic, the
“perfect storm” came our way. In the face
of these major challenges, Cyberport
always stands by our start-ups and
technology companies to weather the
storm together, with relief measures and
initiatives taken and by facilitating new
business opportunities to help Cyberport
Community companies persevere.

We have a long-term vision for Hong
Kong's vibrant I&T sphere; with the
COVID-19 epidemic accelerating digital

et A

/E% AEFE E 15 192019/20204F %R »
1 3 EHE B LR B FIMNSRER At
BReA—EMBREERDNESN SR

BE—F > EENEBEEMAN
iR MR MR ERBEEE
THERFZE > HBEBYAIDREMN
BIERMIBR] - B2 Y REE
BUEHR - BB ZHUEF PR RV
BERBERE > RESHHORBEE
ME - BRI > FIEEZTrEA - A
BB RERER -« HIEHER > 88
HEHFRERMS H LRI > L4
SR LU B BURE B A B (R AR (L
o 2FAWAEEMBRABNRKA
®’IE -

BB —EHEBEDAIN KM
RERBFRERES > BERBMNEK

transformation, Cyberport can help Hong
Kong gain a leading position in the digital
era, buttressed by the skills, energy,
ambition, and passion of our youth and
digital technology entrepreneurs. We are
confident in I&T's potential and value for
Hong Kong's long-term growth, especially
as the epidemic has demonstrated how
technology and a digitally transformed
society can help businesses and families
quickly and safely rise above the
challenges in the "new normal”. We stay
steadfast in pursuing our public mission
to ensure that Hong Kong can continue to
excel in the digital era.

With the silver lining being there for

WA, N EFBEAMBBRHRAIER
BOEAE ~ B S BB R > RAKE
DURFA & BEBER A PRI OMAL
HRAM AR REGEBERELELER
BELMEE > RA—BERETE I
EBIBESIETRRRBIEEBRENNE
WA BEERTRDERR HE
& FARVBkE 0 BESHMAEHED ©
HIEBREBRETBHBITHRMANA
BEes > WEREBEEHBRAPRE
B

Chairman'’s Statement

SN

all of us to seize, we can move forward
and prevail with 1&T, and push forward
our endeavours with the backing of
our incredibly strong fundamentals. In
2019/2020, the Cyberport Community
continued its growth momentum and
expanded to more than 1,500 companies.
Bolstered by Cyberport's comprehensive
start-up ecosystem and entrepreneurial
support programmes, our data-driven
innovations continued to encompass an
ever-widening breadth of solutions with
adoption by the market, investments that
our start-ups garnered held steady year-
on-year, and success stories and global
recognition of our talented start-ups and
entrepreneurs continued to grow.

FMEBREERE  REEBHEMNE
B MBI EAE SRR E > B n
Al © 2019/20205F FF » SiAG B BERFER
iR BiREEBIBI50RAT
AR ANHAI k2 EREE A
ETBERNBET » SIS BHELE
B T8IRERE)) Bl A R > RENS BHT4E
o WERIBEZER ; MEltEMmSE
EMBESTREREER > HEER
BRI B ZR K FTE S B PRk B B
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Chairman'’s Statement

EERYEE

Springboarding start-ups to
success

Many Cyberport Community
innovations are ripe for adoption, and
the commercialisation of innovative
products and solutions is key to the
growth of technology companies and
start-ups. To this end, our Cyberport
Enterprise Network (CEN) is proactively
matching high-growth start-ups with
major enterprises to stimulate solution
adoption and win-win collaboration. We
continued to attract new CEN members
from various industries to strengthen
CEN's ongoing efforts. We aim at
helping our start-ups and technology
companies better seize opportunities
in such promising new fields as Smart
Building Management, Retail Technology
(RetailTech), Education Technology
(EdTech), and Wealth Technology
(WealthTech) that are vital to the success
of a digitally transformed economy. Our
Cyberport Technology Network (CTN)
also continued its expansion with more
leading global technology corporations
such as Amazon Web Services (AWS)
participating to help. This adds to CTN's
continuing support for aspiring start-
ups in terms of technology platform,
application development, and training.

HtEHR RRAIER

BB > FEAM M
BEEBECHERBIMMAME > MFal
MERMARBRLE ERNRAFAK
AR RORARE o Ut > TEESED
EEi%) BB ABIE R BERH A
B, DREBRSRERR > LEE
LREWIF - BEEBRBSEREFRT
FRMEERE » BCEBIE » EhE
WENRIEXNB AR EREEZ
MEEE S TERE  HERENTE
BB FHT A o BNt FITE BE
BUKNBZEZERS - BRI - #
RN KES) EEREHERE—1E0E
MR E® > fI0 S K% R imE SR
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For more mature technology
companies that are ready for further
scaling, Cyberport also built the
Cyberport Professional Services Network
(CPSN) to offer these promising start-
ups the support of professional services
firms, such as IP lawyers, management
consultants, accountants, auditors, and
financial advisors, to assist with their
future development needs, including
fundraising, M&As, JVs and IPOs.

Leading further FinTech
innovation

Cyberport is a vanguard in promoting
and facilitating the development of

(Amazon Web Services/AWS) » #E—5 N
wAER R ZIE > ARBINYEIRE
REREFARE > UkERERXH
BEHENZE -

HE R R B ERHETEBNDA
% BIEBRRIT THIBEBHEER
BAE ) > BB EREN - BmE
MM BEERE ~ Gtk ZBMEREA
T BHFERBZE - LURREPAIE
REEE - HE BERLTERKE

Finance Technology (FinTech) in Hong
Kong, driving digital transformation
in the banking and finance industry.
Indeed, FinTech continued to be one
of Hong Kong's most successful and
fastest growing technology domains,
and the FinTech cluster in Cyberport,
the largest in Hong Kong with nearly
400 companies, is developing innovative
solutions spanning all segments of the
financial services market. In 2019/2020,
we witnessed our FinTech and Insurance
Technology (InsurTech) start-ups
becoming Hong Kong's first virtual banks
and virtual insurers, and more global
recognitions of excellence were bestowed
upon our start-ups.

SIEERER BRMESME

FARBRDREESRBIER
BYSTER - BIBSBIME R TRIITENES
i SRR —EEEBRNNKERE
RAEMBE A — > MER2ERA
MR ERA AR > BIEBERR TR
LO0REZRBHR AT > Hft 3 REREE
RIS T ERIERIRIRT S 5 A >
RB|BTHSBHBCEEREcEESTE
MAEAM TS - BB SRM R AR
MEAIRIRE  TRIHESAEBEHE
BSRTTMERFRER AT ©

To bolster FinTech's growth, fortify
our leadership in this important field,
and offer additional support for further
innovations, including InsurTech,
Regulatory Technology (RegTech), and
WealthTech, we have been enhancing
our ongoing outreach efforts to connect
start-ups with more opportunities
overseas. We organised our second

#5058 = B R B 2 R e 9m AL BRAB
BEILEZENAEEFER > FRRE
HRER BEMNENMEEERK
FRIMERERERNSIE > RA—EEE
FIREIRRAEAE > A EERET LS

FinTech delegation, led by the Financial
Secretary, to London and signed a
memorandum of understanding (MoU)
with PingAn OneConnect, to better
connect our FinTech companies with
Mainland China's massive markets, major
financial institutions, and cutting-edge
technologies.

SN EE - EMEERRRET R
FIEET B - REMB AR E M
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Chairman'’s Statement
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Nurturing youth and
entrepreneurship

Hong Kong's youth are indispensable
in securing our I&T sector’s sustained
development, and we see Hong Kong
as a leading hotbed of talent across the
world. In Hong Kong, more and more

IBEEFE BhhRIE

FEACRDEBRIRITESEYE
BRABHRHN—HD > MEEBE—BE=EE
KBS AT HIEE - TEE B AR
BEEFFA PRI EERF—AFNE
HIBZEEAIR > BrRl T EAREK -

EIEE 2019/20 3R
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Chairman'’s Statement

EERYEE

youth, start-ups, and next-generation
SMEs are proactively embracing a future
in I&T. This is evident in the diverse
roster of young innovators joining our
talent cultivation and entrepreneurship
programmes, including the Cyberport
University Partnership Programme
(CUPP), Cyberport Creative Micro Fund
(CCMF), and Cyberport Incubation
Programme (CIP), to pursue and advance
their I&T aspirations.

juny
«T
@
2
B
o
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We at Cyberport support the
development of I&T and Hong Kong
as a major global technology hub.
In addition to connecting youth with
existing opportunities, Cyberport
proactively facilitated the creation
of new opportunities. Most notably,
we advanced the development of
Hong Kong's digital entertainment &
esports industry to generate career
and entrepreneurship opportunities for

HBR TR R ERE
RESBEENABEZEARMKEME -
B EFABERARE > BESBT
BIBHEH G ETNOEEMEDE
BHNHEBREREREEXNER  »F
BAREEZHEMAERE  BE—
F o MBI IR A BT S| T B

Hong Kong's youth. Over the past year,
our digital entertainment cluster was
strengthened with a quality deal flow
successfully attracted to Cyberport.

Connecting start-ups with
technology investment funding

Smart money and risk capital
are instrumental in any start-up's
development, and Cyberport's role as
a technology investment hub became

BRIER R INE > SRR RER
BIERE -

HMBIEES|EEEER

BEETREABERZVNRIER
ERNEEZE IR 2REERRHBE
> R ESEERLD > BB IER—

more important as global venture capital
investment had declined in the tough
economic environment. Through the
concerted efforts and multiplying effect
of our Cyberport Investors Network
(CIN) and Cyberport Macro Fund (CMF),
we connected more start-ups with more
technology investors, thereby helping to
meet our start-ups’ increasing needs for
smart money and risk capital. The past
year also saw the further expansion of
CIN, bringing to the Cyberport Community
over 100 technology investors covering
the full spectrum of digital technology.
Additionally, our Cyberport Venture
Capital Forum (CVCF) succeeded in

ERRKETFaNAGRIERER - &
B TEEBREERER kK THSBKRE
BIEES BEET  RMAPEZEESE
ZYPRIERHEBEMRKREE iR
RYRIEEHEZESNARELTNTE
Ko BE—F > RFE—FER 8058
REEPR) > SBIEBUAEER 7EBB
100K RETFHBR R BHBRRESE o
tbsh > TERRE BRI R B R IE ) RIN5|E
TEREESTRARBENRGEPRAE

bringing in new types of technology
investors - corporate venture funds and
tech-savvy family offices - to strengthen
technology investment and corporate
support for our start-ups. Cyberport also
built new connections with more global
technology investors, ranging from the
US, Europe to Asia and the Middle East,
establishing a foundation for win-win
cooperation in the future.

I&T helps society in difficult
times

The COVID-19 epidemic has brought
challenges for every one of us, and

EMEENBRKRES > MR 7T HE
EENRENEETE -  WR2M ¥
BETRELRBEEE  BUNLEM
MR RAPR KB IR B BRI T AT
B BARREFEIFEEEM ©

BRI EEdg
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there is not a person whose life has
not been affected. Yet one of the most
heart-warming episodes of the epidemic
was the Cyberport Community coming
together to assist Hong Kong businesses
and families in such difficult times.
The Cyberport Community rose to the
challenge and quickly mobilised their
innovative solutions to help Hong Kong's
people, businesses and government
tackle the epidemic. Our timely "Braving
the Epidemic” campaign was launched
to spotlight the growing list of socially-
responsible start-ups and their wonderful
creations.

IREEN - AMEREBIREATRS
ARBN—F > ERUSBLEEE—
O EAREERTEE - SEEBHE N
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FERBHEBA s EERBFEREZE
B U—EREBELAIEEEEMA -
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RENBHEREE -
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Chairman'’s Statement

EERYEE

Mapping out the way forward

With this wonderful community
spirit and the inspiring power of youth
and entrepreneurs, who knows what
we can achieve in the future? Indeed,
the sky is the limit. With 5G fast rolling
out in Hong Kong and across the world
and smart living becoming a reality,
Cyberport's vibrant start-up ecosystem
and comprehensive entrepreneurial,
business, technology, and investment
support programmes stand ready to
empower our start-ups’ 5G and smart
city aspirations and business plans. We
have a strong foundation for developing
these new businesses. The past year
saw a strengthening of our smart
living cluster with many new start-
ups joining, and we have been helping
our start-ups to venture into new areas
including RetailTech, Green Technology
(GreenTech), Clean Technology
(CleanTech), EdTech, and Medical
Technology (MedTech).

As Cyberport's expansion plan
continues afoot, we envision new
capacities will afford us greater
capabilities to support more start-ups
and technology companies to create

BEMA REIRE

BRI B ENBEEEN > UKk
FFEAMBIERBAIFIE > RFIEE
HERAMNERENEZEIREN - B
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TERYFERE
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a brighter, more sustainable, more
inclusive world and inject more vitality
into Hong Kong's economy. We firmly
believe that, with the participation and
collaboration of our innovators, industry
players, investors, the government,
policymakers, the academia, and the
public, we can bring more opportunities
to our youth and next-generation SMEs,
providing them with more confidence and
hope, and together building a sustainable
future for Hong Kong.

Good corporate governance at
the heart of it all

I would like to thank our Board
of Directors for their unyielding
commitment towards Cyberport's
public mission endeavours. We are

BEE - RARE > BBAMAL
ERCEREH - REE - BUF » AR
Fi~ BMRAMABN2ERBE BE
AIAFEBT AR —A/ N RE S
g EARMMHEISNELRFTE @
DB I BEBRI— AR FHERIRRK

BF—-BZOEE RHERE
E =P
RELBTHEERREROH
B RSHEENYUBBEETARED
%R BEERMARBSTHERR

well endowed with a diverse Board of
Directors whose members contribute
extensive and complementary expertise
to offer Cyberport strategic guidance
and direction and to ensure good
corporate governance, corporate culture,
transparency, and public accountability.
In recognition of such team efforts,
Cyberport was awarded the “Directors of
The Year Awards 2019" and “Recognition
of Excellence in Board Diversity” by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Our
Board members’ contributions made
Cyberport well positioned for more
impactful work in the years to come.
Our staff and volunteers’ dedication,
efforts, and contributions were much
appreciated. They are the unsung heroes
behind Cyberport's public mission
achievements.

FEED  SHUBBRMHRBMRESIK
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Reinforcing Hong Kong'’s stellar
international reputation

Asia continues to be the global
hotspot for economic growth. Rapid
I&T developments in the ASEAN region,
the Greater Bay Area (GBA), and the
Belt and Road markets have unleashed
tremendous opportunities for the new
economy. Through our ongoing outreach
efforts, we expanded our global networks
and partnerships in Japan, South Korea,
the ASEAN region, Australia, Europe,
the GBA, and other technology hubs on
the Mainland. Our MoUs with Thailand's
InnoSpace and Japan's Mizuho Financial
Group led to new business matching, co-

ZEERERBE

Z5 DNNARAREREEEEN
HEho MEAME  KEEM—F—H
SHAM R ERRR > AWK
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A~ FEER BEEME BN BUM S K
EEMEMP RN R o FM
B2z InnoSpacefl H A IH B Rt £ F %5
ST EEESE TR EEMEEE

investment and exhibition opportunities
in these two important markets.

We have been tirelessly promoting
Hong Kong's talent to the global
marketplace. During the year, we
continued our outreach efforts and joined
delegations to New York and Los Angeles.
We also visited Ireland, Israel, Dubai and
the UAE, and Waterloo, Canada. During
these business development trips, we
showcased Hong Kong's fantastic start-
ups and promoted Hong Kong's strategic
advantages as the prime gateway for
overseas talent and investors to enter
the Mainland China and Southeast Asia

BINHGRREEEY - HRAKREKRE
FREME -
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markets, to seize the new opportunities
in the GBA and Belt and Road markets,
and to take advantage of Hong Kong's
perennial business-and-investment-
friendly environment.

Amidst the current economic
difficulties brought by the COVID-19
epidemic, | believe Hong Kong will
continue to go from strength to strength
in the years ahead, and the Cyberport
team stands ready to continue providing
an effective hub and springboard to
success for both local and international
talents, and contributing to the long-term
development of I&T in Hong Kong.
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Challenges did not hold us
back, but instead allowed us
to show our agile response.

EEHFERE I REAN -
SIS B RFRAVELI R FEE G HE -
IHBAHIEIFLEF

019/20 proved to be an eventful

year for Hong Kong's innovation and
technology (I&T) sector. Local and global
events presented major challenges
to us and our community on various
fronts. These challenges did not hold
us back, but instead allowed us to show
our agile response. We were among the
first organisations to announce rental
concessions in September 2019 amidst
the social unrest, as well as to launch
the Braving the Epidemic campaign in
February 2020 applying digital technology
to help the society weather the epidemic.

OQur community of over 1,500
start-ups and technology companies
are always mindful of their growing
responsibility to society. Soon after
the outbreak of COVID-19, Cyberport's
start-ups and alumni of the incubation
programme quickly mobilised a host of
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solutions, leveraging their own expert
areas, to help Hong Kong's individuals,
frontline medical staff, businesses, SMEs,
and government services cope with the
challenges. We then curated the most
impactful and ingenious solutions under
the Braving the Epidemic campaign on
the iStartup Portal, providing a one-
stop destination to help the public and
businesses find solutions to their daily
problems. GOGOX, Pickupp, and Toby, for
example, offered their logistics networks
to facilitate the delivery of COVID-19
test specimens to government labs for
people under quarantine; HKDecoman
assembled a team of handymen to help
public housing tenants inspect their
drainage pipes for free; OneDegree
and Bowtie offered their pioneering
virtual insurance services to cover
frontline workers involved in anti-
epidemic activities free of charge. Over
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60 of these solutions covering areas
from infection prevention and medical
services, to household cleaning, property
management, insurance, and education
were listed on the platform, garnering
positive reception.

Beyond swiftly establishing a series
of stringent anti-epidemic measures to
safeguard the health of our staff and
community members, Cyberport actively
supported the anti-epidemic initiatives of
different industry organisations. These
included the distribution of face masks
and hand sanitisers on campus with the
Hong Kong Information Technology Joint
Council and the Internet Professional
Association, as well as the production
of 3D printed face masks and hand
sanitisers with community members [0T
Solution and Bowtie respectively.
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At the same time, with the global
shift towards accelerated digital
transformation, we stepped up our efforts
to line up traditional enterprises with
start-up solutions through the Cyberport
Enterprise Network (CEN) and completed
more investments in promising start-ups
through the Cyberport Macro Fund (CMF)
to demonstrate our unwavering faith in
their potential, drawing significant co-
investments.

In the face of major difficulties,
Cyberport remained steadfast in our
commitment to Hong Kong's I&T
development, overcoming new challenges
and embracing new opportunities through
digital technology as we continue to
navigate the new normal.
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Enhancement in talent
cultivation and development

Assisting the community during this
epidemic did not slow down our efforts in
talent development, our comprehensive
suite of talent cultivation and
development programmes continued to
attract talented individuals who wish to
pursue aspirations in digital innovation,
employment, and entrepreneurship.

Our Cyberport Creative Micro Fund
(CCMF), which offers seed funding for
prototype development, admitted 98
applicants, with a strong presence of
projects in FinTech, smart living, and
Al & big data. CCMF's newly expanded
Cyberport Greater Bay Area Young
Entrepreneurship Programme (GBA YEP)
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extended its coverage from Hong Kong
and Guangdong to include Macau and
potentially other GBA cities, attracted
300 applications, a more than 30 percent
increase from last year.

Meanwhile, youth seeking hands-on
experience in innovation and technology
also continued to grow in numbers. To
accommodate this, we broadened our
partnership with 171 companies to offer
internship positions and technology
training in FinTech, digital entertainment
and esports, and smart living to 358
participants, 68 per cent more than the
year before. We will continue to offer
more opportunities to enrich the I&T
experience of the younger generation in
the coming year.
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This year's Career Fair was launched
with a digital twist. For the first time, the
event was held in a virtually constructed
environment to simulate a physical
exhibition and was met with record
breaking numbers. More than 130 start-
ups and companies participated in the
fair, offering over 800 job openings,
attracting nearly 3,300 job seekers and
more than 12,000 applications. The
outcome attested to the strong demand
for I&T related employment opportunities
and the unabated confidence in I&T
despite economic uncertainty.

Cyberport’'s flagship programmes
to nurture start-ups continued to
generate extensive interest. The
Cyberport Incubation Programme (CIP),
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with an increased intake of 130 from
100, attracted over 600 applications,
ranging from management-level talent
at multinational banks to cream-of-
the-crop graduates in Hong Kong's top
institutions. Applicants also came from
a variety of more countries, including
Israel, Singapore, and more, with a view
of capitalising on Cyberport's strategic
proximity and networks with markets
in Greater China and APAC regions and
as much as HK$500,000 in financial
assistance provided by the programme.
Over half of the successful projects
belonged to the FinTech and smart living
clusters, with innovative ideas ranging
from virtual bank and virtual insurance
licensees, wealth management and
cybersecurity to 5G robotics, Internet of
Things (loT) and GreenTech, etc.
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In addition, the Cyberport
Accelerator Support Programme (CASP)
added 13 new accelerator programmes
from Bangkok, Mainland China, the US,
Sweden, and more, to the list of endorsed
accelerators, in which participating start-
ups can receive as much as HK$300,000
in financial assistance to take part.
Among the 57 programmes on the list are
some of the world's top accelerators for
new ventures, such as Accenture Fintech
Innovation Lab Asia Pacific, Founder
Institute Silicon Valley Accelerator,
and Lotte Accelerator. Mizuho Crowd
Brain powered by Eureka Nova, one of
the new additions to the list, accepted
nine Cyberport companies in its first
cohort, of which two teams were named
on the Forbes 30 under 30 Asia list for
2020, demonstrating how the combined
efforts of Cyberport and members of its
comprehensive ecosystem are able to
propel Hong Kong's start-ups to success.

Meanwhile, the Overseas/Mainland
Market Development Support Scheme
(MDSS) approved 38 applications. Since
its launch in November 2018, MDSS has
provided HK$2.15 million to support 51 start-
ups to attend 97 events and exhibitions, join
delegation missions, or take part in landing
services. Many of the scheme's recipients
saw their businesses expand to markets
such as Singapore, London, Taiwan, and
many cities on Mainland China during the
2019/20 fiscal year.
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Accelerated digital transformation
across industries also meant more people
are demanding critical digital skills and
credentials. To this end, Cyberport’'s new
initiative, Cyberport Academy, offers an
open platform to engage top technology,
private, and academic institutions
and to provide quality technology and
entrepreneurial training to youth and
industry practitioners from different
sectors. One example is the Cyberport
Financial Practitioners FinTech Training
Programme that was launched in March.
Cyberport was entrusted by the HKSAR
Government to design and implement
a programme to enrich Hong Kong's
FinTech talent pool, promote the adoption
of FinTech by financial institutions, and
speed up digital transformation of the
financial sector. The Programme has
been enthusiastically embraced by
industry practitioners and we expect to
receive ongoing registration from over
2,000 participants for 32 training sessions
primarily virtually by the end of 2020.

Boosting industry development

Over the years, Cyberport has
established a solid foundation in
the development of its main digital
technology clusters, which are FinTech,
smart living, and digital entertainment
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and esports. In the past year, Cyberport
has further focused its efforts within
these clusters to achieve deeper and
more impactful progress. In FinTech, the
Cyberport community reached milestones
in InsurTech and virtual banking, while
in smart living, loT applications took
the centre stage in preparation of the
onset of 5G, exemplified by the arrival
of the AWS loT Solution Lab under the
Easy Landing Scheme. Cyberport also
announced its commitment to developing
the esports industry, while leveraging
the latest advancements in VR and AR
technology in the development of the
digital entertainment industry.

FinTech

In 2019/20, our FinTech cluster
expanded to house nearly 400 companies,
making Cyberport the largest FinTech
community in Hong Kong. These

companies specialise in an ever-growing
range of businesses, from financial
services and data analytics for issues
such as Environmental, Social, and
Governance (ESG) to wealth management
and cross-border payments, and from
virtual banking and virtual insurance to
RegTech and digital assets, with exciting
new developments continually emerging
from this community. A highlight is the
granting of virtual insurance license to
three more of our community members
including AVO, OneDegree, and ZA
International, on top of Bowtie, making
Cyberport home to all of the virtual
insurers in Hong Kong as of today.

To open new avenues for growth
and opportunities and to enable our
remarkable FinTech start-ups to make
a bigger impact internationally, we
organised a delegation led by the

[} Cyberport Community Companies
| U= aw /N
‘ Virtual Banking License Recipients

R ERIRITIEIRERE

€ zA Bank

Cyberport Community Companies

EHSEHEAT

Virtual Insurance License Recipients

B ERRRIRRERE

><Abowtie

RERBREE R EERIRITIL T T 228 ;
MEZEERYGBNER > TRMEESC
MEFEAZBZL > FIUNEE 55
BE | STEISE RS AERAWS loT Solution
Labf@RERENRA - S EBIRERFREIR
HERBHRITENBRARDL > BBREA
Bl B B FVR Bz ARF 457 LR i B A 4R 4
IR o

EREEHR

2019/20F > MBS R AR
B ET400K 2T EHBEASE
BERANZRBIR AR - ZREENE

= @ ZA Insure

OneDegree

HHELE RREBEE - HETROEER
(ESG)~ HEEEMEEX(JHEBANS
RUAR S A BUE oA 0 B EEIRTT ~ B
R~ BEERERESEE  (LERE
NEMERL AEZE EBR—IRNIEHE
REANS > BI=ZRHBERE—ZHR
B ~ OneDegreefl iR 2 PR IME S [EHE (R
GHRIR > E— SR USISEEATBE
BARBRAAERI AL ©

B R 2R A 25
BT - REIREQIIEMR - 3SR
FRBISH A B RERRSEEREBERERE

Financial Secretary, Mr Paul Chan, to
London, and took part in FinTech Taipei
2019 and Singapore FinTech Festival.
Locally, we joined the Hong Kong
FinTech Week and the Asian Financial
Forum, showcasing our start-ups’
leading solutions and helping them build
connections to technology, smart money,
risk capital, markets, and talent.

Smart Living

Solutions and innovations from our
smart living start-ups, which are growing
in scale and scope, are increasingly being
adopted by individuals, enterprises, and
industries. As cases in point, Roborn’s
temperature monitoring robots have
been deployed by multiple government
departments to aid its anti-epidemic
efforts; ubiZense's loT-Augmented Airfield
Service System has been adopted by
Airport Authority Hong Kong to enhance
the management of Hong Kong's world-
class airport, while Gogochart's Al
app marketing platform and GRWTH's
EdTech platform have found demand with
marketers, schools, students, and parents.

Many of these solutions have also
been adopted by Cyberport in their
early stage to gain necessary operation
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experience before commercial launch.
The Cyberport office has adopted a
number of these solutions to increase
office efficiency. In the Arcade, a smart
toilet that utilises digital solutions from
four different start-ups has been made
available to offer real-time feedback,
greatly improving the efficiency of
facilities management. The introduction
of the AWS loT Solution Lab under the
Easy Landing Scheme will also offer
a new space to showcase loT-enabled
smart living solutions by local start-ups
built on AWS's cloud technology platform.
With the onset of 5G technology, we
look forward to more technologies from
Cyberport start-ups that will make our
city smarter and more sustainable.

Digital Entertainment & Esports

Cyberport's efforts to develop
Hong Kong's esports ecosystem shifted
into high gear in July 2019, when we
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opened the highly anticipated esports
venue to boost local competitions,
unveiled a series of events to galvanise
engagement, and launched programmes
to drive industry development and talent
cultivation. Our goals are to forge a new
industry for Hong Kong that will offer
new prospects for the youth.

Our initiatives were well received,
with the Digital Entertainment Leadership
Forum (DELF) attracting more than 700
participants who came to learn from
over 40 speakers from nine different
economies, including Hong Kong, the UK,
Germany, lIsrael, Korea, Japan, Thailand,
Singapore, and Malaysia, on the business
opportunities and career prospects of
this fast-growing industry. The DELF main
forum was immediately followed by Asia’s
first Blockchain Gamer Connects summit,
connecting mobile game market players
with the blockchain industry. Meanwhile,
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the Esports Industry Facilitation Scheme
received over 80 applications and began
supporting local events and competitions,
with a number of them held in the brand
new Cyberport esports venue, as well as
talent cultivation and training courses to
develop the next generation of esports
professionals for Hong Kong. The Esports
Internship Scheme gave the young people
interested in esports an opportunity to
gain hands-on experience by subsidising
nearly 20 internships in 10 companies.
Many young entrepreneurs also submitted
innovative projects targeting various
segments of the esports value chain to
CCMF and CIP, and we expect that their
enthusiastic participation will contribute
massively to our endeavours. We also
set up the new CyberLab next to the
esports venue at the Arcade to showcase
innovative solutions from the cluster.

Integration of new and
traditional economies

The epidemic has accelerated digital
transformation in various sectors, creating
unprecedented demand in fields such
as RetailTech, HealthTech, and EdTech,
among others. In light of this, Cyberport
continues to champion the integration
of new and traditional economies by
fostering collaboration between start-
ups and traditional enterprises and
by sharing knowledge and ideas. In
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2019/20, we strengthened the Cyberport
Enterprise Network (CEN) to connect start-
ups and enterprises to expedite digital
transformation of industries and offer
additional business opportunities to start-
ups and technology companies. During the
year, we consolidated the CEN membership
with enterprises and industry associations
from an array of industries. CEN arranged
35 business matching sessions for 136
start-ups, and nearly a dozen projects have
since progressed to deals or advanced
discussions. These projects range from
blockchain applications for a construction
and engineering company, to Al solutions for
a major local airline.

Recognising that public services
is seeking digital transformation, we
launched new initiatives to facilitate
start-ups to contribute their solutions.
We connected more than ten digital
technology solutions to the Electrical and

3 Signature Events

Mechanical Services Department's E&M
InnoPortal for public services solution
matching, with solutions in robotics and
electric vehicle (EV) charging already
engaged by government departments. The
Smart Government Innovation Lab was
also officially launched in Cyberport this
year to provide a platform for encouraging
innovative solutions to address public
service delivery and operational needs.

Cyberport also continued to inspire
and inform the public and the business
community about the prospects of digital
technology to stimulate adoption. We held
the annual Internet Economy Summit
(IES) with an attendance of around 3,000,
who came to listen to over 70 speakers
under the theme, "Digital Economy -
Redefines Our Future”.

In addition, we enhanced our
efforts to foster corporate engagement
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in innovation. At the Cyberport Venture
Capital Forum (CVCF), we invited over
40 speakers from Hong Kong, Mainland
China, Spain, Israel, Thailand, Macau, and
the US, to highlight corporate venture
as a means to expand investor outreach,
boost corporate investment, and galvanise
corporate I&T participation. The event
was warmly received by a record turnout
of over 900 attendees and more than
200 investors, up 20 per cent and 29 per
cent on the year respectively. Over 200
investor matching meetings were held, an
increase of 33 per cent, to further bridge
funding gaps for the start-ups.

Our new three-year plan

The coming year will spell the
beginning of our new three-year plan
to further bolster our capacities in
developing Hong Kong's I&T sector. We
will enhance our ecosystem development
and stakeholder engagement, via
strengthening our Cyberport Investors
Network (CIN), Cyberport Enterprise
Network (CEN) and Cyberport Technology
Network (CTN); upgrade services
infrastructure to include a data services
platform and campus management
system which will enhance our service
provided to start-ups and operations
on campus; and enrich our campus
infrastructure enabled by smart campus.

R T ORRBEEE S PEAM - A
O MUy HE - ORI EEL0Z
fi#E > BEMNBEEAR  LURERR
EERER - RECERERTBEEXRS
HATRIRER - BB ALKRRSIBIE
002 2 MEM200ZBREE  BEH
A1 38 1020%H129% ° & 18 8 £ 17200% 5
KREERY > 1B RIE33% > BIFRIEER
B

=58 5IEKEK

REIREE HIE B = F st 8B
o E—PRERMERETBAIRE
B RIBERIR THEEREER
i~ THESBRREPE 7 TEIE BRI
s FELECENERNFTHENS
8 TRREARSERER  SEEE
B TFalBEEBEEREAR  E— P xS
BB EBEVARENRBIEENE
B, TRsEUTESRENEEREEN

At the same time, we will continue
to strengthen our efforts in talent
cultivation and development, industry
development, and integrating new
and traditional economies to fulfil our
aspirations to be the digital technology
hub of Hong Kong.

We will also continue to bring the
Cyberport expansion in development to
fruition. The HK$5.5 billion provided to
the project, as announced in the 2019-
20 Budget by the Financial Secretary,
demonstrates the strong support
and confidence from the government
towards Cyberport's work thus far.
Beyond providing new offices and
dedicated facilities for industry events
or exhibitions, the expansion will provide
space to nurture more talent and
showcase Cyberport’s innovations in
digital technology. It will also provide the
perfect opportunity for further integration
with the neighbourhood to offer leisure
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TEABEER S

facilities applying the latest digital
technologies and benefit the community
as a whole.

| would like to take this opportunity
to thank the HKSAR Government and our
Board of Directors for their unwavering
support and guidance to Cyberport;
to our stakeholders, including start-
ups, technology companies, corporate
partners, and industry organisations for
their commitment, resilience, and can-
do spirit demonstrated during what has
been a difficult year. | would also like
to thank all of my colleagues for their
hard work, agility, resourcefulness, and
persistence in pursuing our common
goals amidst the challenges in 2019/20.
Last but not least, | invite you all to join
us as we work together to overcome new
challenges, seize new opportunities, and
flourish in the new normal to create a
brighter future for the I&T industry.
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Board of Directors

EER

Lee George LAM, BBS
=18, BBS

Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited
ERYHEEEERAS
HERER

Chairman E£JE

Dr George Lam is Non-Executive Chairman - Greater China and ASEAN Region of Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets.
Dr Lam has served in leadership roles (including Chairman, Vice Chairman, Managing Director, CEQ, COO and General Manager)
with several leading multinational corporations including Hong Kong Telecom, AT. Kearney, Singapore Technologies Telemedia
(Temasek Holdings), BOC International Holdings (the Bank of China group), Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (CP Group) and
Macquarie Capital. He has extensive international experience and connections in the innovation and digital technology spheres and
in general management, strategy consulting, corporate governance, direct investment, investment banking and fund management
fields.

Dr Lam has also been actively participating in community service and international affairs. Currently, he is a member of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government's Committee on Innovation, Technology and Re-Industrialization, the Belt and
Road and Greater Bay Area Committee of the Hong Kong Trade and Development Council, the Court of the City University of Hong
Kong, the Advisory Board of the Hong Kong Investor Relations Association and the Sir Murray Maclehose Trust Fund Investment
Advisory Committee; Chairman of Monte Jade Science and Technology Association of Hong Kong; Honorary Advisor to the Hong Kong
Business Angel Network (HKBAN); President of Hong Kong-ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation; President of the United Nations
Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific (UN ESCAP) Sustainable Business Network (ESBN) Executive Council and
Chairman of its Task Force on Banking and Finance; and Vice Chairman of Pacific Basin Economic Council (PBEC). Dr Lam has also
taught at Tsinghua University, the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, the Chinese University of Hong Kong, Hong
Kong Baptist University and the City University of Hong Kong. He is committed to nurturing talents and youth and next-generation
SMEs, and fostering the development of Hong Kong's digital economy and ICT sector.

Dr Lam holds a BSc in Sciences and Mathematics, an MSc in Systems Science and an MBA from the University of Ottawa
in Canada; an LLB (Hons) in law from Manchester Metropolitan University in the UK, a LLM in Law from the University of
Wolverhampton in the UK; an MPA and a PhD from the University of Hong Kong. He is also a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong (and formerly a member of the Hong Kong Bar); an Accredited Mediator of the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution; a Fellow
of Certified Management Accountants (CMA) Australia, the Institute of Public Accountants, the Institute of Financial Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors; and an Honorary Fellow of Certified Public Accountants
(CPA) Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Facility Management, and the University of Hong Kong School of Professional and
Continuing Education.
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Karen CHAN Ka-yin, JP
BR=H, P

Executive Director of
German Pool Group Company Limited

RHEEEERATDNITES

Board Members EEFKE

Professor Karen Chan is Executive Director of German
Pool and founder of the Fashion Brand “The Sparkle Collection
by german pool”. She holds a double degree in Business
Administration and Economics from University of Washington, a
Master in Education from New York University and a Master of
Science in Marketing from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Professor Chan takes up various public service roles in
the manufacturing and vocational education sectors. She is
Deputy Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Industries, Vice
Chairman of Q Mark Council Committee, Chairman of Hong Kong
Furniture Industry Council, appointed Council Member of Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Adjunct Professor of Hong
Kong Baptist University. Professor Chan received FHKI's Young
Industrialist Award in 2009, the Young Women Innovator Award
by APEC in 2013, and Ten Outstanding Young Persons in 2014. In
2017, she founded the Hong Kong 020 E-Commerce Federation
and was nominated as Founding Chairlady. In 2019, she was
awarded as Honorary Fellows by the Vocational Training Council.
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Christopher CHAO Yu-hang
g =}

Dean of Engineering and Chair Professor of
Mechanical Engineering of

The University of Hong Kong
BBABIREERRRER

AR T2 A AU

(Appointed on 1 April 2020)
(7220205491 BERIT)

Professor Christopher Chao is Dean of Engineering and
Chair Professor of Mechanical Engineering at University of
Hong Kong (HKU). He has extensive contributions to academic
research and is a Fellow member of various Engineering
Professional Institutions in the USA, the UK and Hong Kong.

Professor Chao was a member of the Engineering Panel
of the Hong Kong Research Grant Council (2011-2017), and has
been a vetting member in the Research Projects Assessment
Panel (Mechanical Systems and Manufacturing Technology) of
the Innovation Technology Commission in Hong Kong since 2013.
He has been serving as Vice President of Hong Kong Institution
of Science since 2019.

Professor Chao also serves on various professional
committees, councils and boards, including the Pilot Green
Transport Fund of Hong Kong Environment Bureau, the Housing
Authority, the Sir Edward Youde Memorial Fund Council,
Board of Directors of HKU SPACE, Board of Directors of the
Engineering Forum of Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, and
the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings).
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Board of Directors

EER

Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han
SRR

Head of Audit of KPMG, Hong Kong
EEHEEENRBTECBA
(Appointed on 1 April 2020)

(F220205 481 BEZEAT)

Ms Ivy Cheung is the Head of Audit with KPMG, Hong Kong.
She has been serving a portfolio of clients in government,
property and infrastructure and telecommunication sectors and
has extensive experience in helping companies listed in Hong
Kong and overseas stock exchanges.

Ms Cheung was the Past President of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and serves as
member of a number of public service committees, including
the Standing Committee on Disciplined Services Salaries and
Conditions of Service, the Transport Advisory Committee and the
Independent Commission on Remuneration for Members of the
District Councils of the HKSAR.
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Duncan CHIU
BRIEIR

Managing Director of Radiant Venture Capital

SRESBRABDERELE

With over 20 years of investment and M&A experience in
the Greater China region and several IPOs in the Hong Kong and
Shenzhen Stock Exchanges, Mr Duncan Chiu founded Radiant
Venture Capital (Radiant) in 2014 to focus on early-stage
investments into technology start-ups. Since then, Radiant
has already invested into more than 30 technology start-up
companies in Mainland China and Hong Kong, United States
as well as Israel. He regularly participates and speaks at
technology forums and conferences to promote the start-up
culture in Hong Kong, and also helps young entrepreneurs
through business plan workshops and mentorship. Mr Chiu
is enthusiastic about information technology as well as social
and community-related affairs. He is currently the President of
the Hong Kong Information Technology Joint Council (HKITJC),
Director of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute Company Limited (ASTRI), Member of Hospital
Authority and Standing Committee Member of Shenzhen
Association for Science & Technology.
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Annie CHOI Suk-han, JP
N, o

Permanent Secretary for
Innovation and Technology
R ERERBEENER
(Appointed on 30 July 2019)
(1£2019F7 B30 B EZE(E)

Ms Annie Choi joined the Administrative Service in 1986
and has served in a number of policy bureaux and departments,
including the Civil Service Bureau, the Commerce and Economic
Development Bureau, the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau and the Home Affairs Department. She was the
Commissioner for Innovation and Technology from August 2015
to July 2019.

Ms Choi obtained her Bachelor’'s and Master’'s degrees
in Laws as well as Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the
University of Hong Kong. She also did postgraduate studies in
Public Administration at Oxford University, UK and Tsinghua
University, PRC.
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LAU Chun-kong, JP
2iR3L, oP

Managing Director of Colliers International

BAEREHBES

Mr Lau Chun-kong is a Managing Director of Colliers
International and is responsible for the Asia valuation and
advisory business of the firm. He is a chartered valuation
surveyor and a fellow and Past President of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors. Mr Lau has a wide breath of experience
in property valuation, real estate consultancy and investment
sales market.

Mr Lau is a member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority
including its Subsidised Housing Committee and Tender
Committee, the HKSAR Trade and Industry Advisory Board, the
Lantau Development Advisory Committee, the REIT Committee
of Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission. He is also
a member of the Tangible Assets Standards Board of the
International Valuation Standards Council.
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Board of Directors

EER

Michael LEUNG Kin-man, MH
RE, MH

CEO of BOA International Financial Group
DIREIR RIS MITEAEE

(Appointed on 1 April 2020)
(722020543 1 A EZAE)

Mr Michael Leung is the CEO of BOA International Financial
Group with extensive banking experience in IT, Operations,
Corporate Services, and the FinTech Innovation Center, and was
CI0 and COO of China CITIC Bank International, and a Board
Member of its China entity.

Mr Leung is an Engineering Faculty's Distinguished Alumni
Award recipient of Chinese University of Hong Kong, and
obtained Philips Scholarship to study in The Netherlands. He
holds a Graduate Diploma in Retail Bank Management from the
University of Virginia in US.

Mr Leung has served as President of Hong Kong Computer
Society, Executive Committee Member and FinTech Committee
Chair of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, Adjunct Professor
and Information Systems Departmental Advisory Committee
Chair of City University of Hong Kong, Industry Specialist and
Panel Chair of The Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational Qualifications, Chairman of Hong Kong
Down Syndrome Association and member of the Business and
Economics Panel of University Grants Committee.
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LING Kar-kan, SBS
EREE, sBS

Professor Ling Kar-kan is a professional town planner with
extensive practical experience and was the Director of Planning
of the HKSAR Government from 2012 to 2016.

Professor Ling is a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of
Planners (FHKIP), a Registered Professional Planner (RPP) and
possesses People’s Republic of China Registered Urban Planner
Qualification. He was the President of Hong Kong Institute of
Planners from 2007 to 2009.

After retiring from the post of Director of Planning in
November 2016, he was appointed the Adjunct Professor by
The University of Hong Kong and The Chinese University of
Hong Kong, and Professor of Practice (Planning) by The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is now the Director of Jockey
Club Design Institute for Social Innovation, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing
Society and Chairman of the Country and Marine Parks Board.
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Victor NG Chi-keung, BBS, MH
{h7&34, BBS, MH

(Appointed on 1 April 2019)
(1120196451 HEZE)

Mr Victor Ng worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for 26
years. He was admitted to the partnership in 1996 and early
retired in May 2010 holding the position as the deputy managing
partner for its national audit function in Mainland China.

Other than Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company
Limited, he is a director of Logistics and Supply Chain MultiTech
R&D Centre Limited, and the chairman of its Finance and
Administration Committee (FAC). He served as a council member
of Hong Kong Productivity Council (HKPC) from 2006 to 2016,
the chairman of the Audit Committee of HKPC from late 2005
to 2010, the deputy chairman of HKPC and chairman of the FAC
of HKPC from 2011 to 2016. He also acted as a director of Nano
and Advanced Materials Institute Limited (NAMI) and a member
of the FAC since July 2012, as well as the chairman of the FAC
of NAMI since December 2012 till December 2018.

Mr Ng holds a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences from
The University of Hong Kong, an Executive Master Degree in
Business Administration and a Master of Arts in Comparative
and Public History from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a past president of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA) in Hong Kong and currently a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and ACCA.
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Charleston SIN Chiu-shun
WiE%

Executive Director of

MIT Hong Kong Innovation Node
BB TN IEBRIY ) RITES
(Appointed on 1 April 2019)
(112019481 HEZEE)

Dr Charleston Sin is the Executive Director of the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT) Hong Kong
Innovation Node. Prior to joining MIT, Dr Sin cumulated 25 years
of industry experience in the technology industry, held executive
positions in Research & Development, Product Management,
and Sales & Marketing at VMware, Cisco Systems and Nortel
Networks in North America, Asia Pacific/Japan, and Greater
China.

Dr Sin received his PhD in Management Sciences at The
University of Waterloo. He also holds a master's degree in
Investment Management at the HKUST, as well as a bachelor’s
and master’'s degree in Operational Research from the
University of Manitoba.

Currently, he holds several non-profit appointments
including Founding Secretary General, Institute of Big Data
Governance; Member of Advisory Committee, Department
of Journalism and Communication, Hong Kong Shue Yan
University; Industry Advisor, MIT-Tsinghua Future City
Innovation Connector, MIT; Industry Advisor, Hangzhou-Hong
Kong High End Service Industry Demonstration Cooperation. Dr
Sin is also Professor of Practice at the School of Business, Hong
Kong Polytechnic University.
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Board of Directors

EER

Hendrick SIN
g

Co-founder and Vice Chairman of
CMGE Technology Group
PERFRRERBSABARBIESR

Mr Hendrick Sin is a co-founder and the Vice Chairman
of CMGE Technology Group Limited (0302.hk), the largest
|P-oriented mobile game publisher in China; and also the
founding partner of China Prosperity Capital Fund, a leading
private equity investment company with a primary focus on
technology investment. Mr Sin is the president of the Internet
Professional Association and the executive vice-chairman of the
Hong Kong Software Industry Association. He has also been
appointed by the HKSAR Government as a committee member of
the Youth Development Commission.

Mr Sin received a Master’s degree in Engineering Economics
and Operations Research from Stanford University in the US
and holds three Bachelor of Science degrees in Computer
Science/Mathematics, Economics and Industrial Management
(with college honors) from Carnegie Mellon University. He was
awarded the Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong of 2018 by
Federation of Hong Kong Industries.
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Rosana WONG Wai-man
=2

Executive Director of Yau Lee Holdings Limited

BENEBBRABDNITES

Ms Rosana Wong, Executive Director of Yau Lee Holdings
Limited, leads Yau Lee Group to be a green integrated
corporation providing multidisciplinary construction related
services. She is driven by her passion in technology, innovation,
science and urban spatial planning and has further solidified
her vision by founding Ophylla Ventures and a group of start-
ups in the context of smart city to create better choices towards
a citizen-centric and sustainable ecosystem by dynamic
intelligence.

Ms Wong is also the Vice President of Smart City
Consortium, Deputy Director of China Green Building (HK)
Council, Member of different HKSAR Government organisations,
including Environment and Conservation Fund Committee,
Transport Advisory Committee, Longterm Decarbonisation
Strategies Support Group of Council for Sustainable
Development, Green Minibus Operators Selection Board,
Founding Member of the Built World Technology Alliance of Asia
and Advisory Board Member of Center for Integrated Facility
Engineering (CIFE) at Stanford University.
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Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing
L ZE2

CEO and Co-founder of Skyzer VC Group
RIBR IS EEE

H SR A B TEARE,

(Appointed on 1 April 2019)
(720195481 BEHIT)

Mr Eric Yeung, the CEO and Co-founder of Skyzer VC
Group, is also an active participant in the IT industry. He is
the President of the Esports Association Hong Kong and the
Founder and Honorary President of Smart City Consortium and
the Honorary Associate Professor of Lee Shau Kee School of
Business and Administration OUHK.

Concerning for youth development, Mr Yeung advocates
the youth to contribution to the society. And also disseminate
the positive information to the public, shaping a harmonious
society with innovative technology. Mr Yeung is the Chairman
of Hong Kong United Youth Exchange Foundation. He also takes
his role as a member of Council for Sustainable Development
and committee member of Committee on the Promotion of Civic
Education, Small and Medium Enterprises Committee and the
Telecommunications Users Consumers Advisory Committee
and member of HKTDC Innovation and Technology Advisory
Committee. In 2010, Mr Yeung was selected as the 4th Young
Leader of the Junior Chamber International Harbour.
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Board of Directors
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Resigned/Retired Board Members BEHEHBEEERRE

CHEUK Wing-hing, JP
£KkE, Jp

(Resigned on 12 April 2019)
(220194548 12H B#£F)

Mr Cheuk Wing-hing has served in various bureaux and
departments. He was Director of Food and Environmental
Hygiene from 2007 to 2010, Commissioner for Labour from
2010 to 2014 and Director of Administration and Development
in the Department of Justice from 2014 to 2015, and Permanent
Secretary for Innovation and Technology from 2015 to 2019.
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Millie NG KIANG Mei-nei, JP
RII=YE, JP

(Appointed on 12 April 2019 and
resigned on 30 July 2019)
(22019548 12BEZEL R
2019427 H30H BHE)

Mrs Millie Ng has served in various bureaux and
departments including the Hong Kong Economic and Trade
Office in Washington DC, the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau, and the Security Bureau. She was the Acting Permanent
Secretary for Innovation and Technology of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region from 12 April to 29
July 2019.
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Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS
RIEZ, BBS

Deputy President and Provost of
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
EBEBTIABEHRBEBRIRE

(Retired on 31 March 2020)
(72202053831 HiRfE)

Professor Philip Chan is the Deputy President and Provost
of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from University
of California at Davis, and Master of Science and Doctor of
Philosophy degrees in Electrical Engineering from University
of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign (UIUC). He taught at UIUC and
then joined Intel Corporation.

Professor Chan joined The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 1991 as a founding member. He is a Fellow
of Hong Kong Institution of Engineering (HKIE), Institute of
Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE) and Hong Kong
Academy of Engineering Sciences (HKAES).

Professor Chan was a director of the Hong Kong Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute Company Limited
(ASTRI), and Chairman of the Technology Committee. He is a
non-official member of the Committee on Innovation, Technology
and Re-industrialisation.

Professor Chan received the Bronze Bauhinia Star from the
HKSAR Government in 2013.
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Board of Directors

EER

Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching, JP
R, P

Partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers

BB EGSEIEBIIEBA

(Retired on 31 March 2020)
(F420204E3 831 HIRE)

Mr Humphrey Choi is PwC’s China Vice Chairman -
Business Services, responsible for Assurance, Tax and Advisory
Services, as well as Markets and Risk & Quality matters. He
is also the Assurance Leader for PwC Asia Pacific and a core
member of PwC's Global Assurance Leadership Team. He is a
member of the PwC China Management Board, and a member of
the PwC China, Singapore and Taiwan Executive Board.

Mr Choi has many years of audit and advisory experience,
and works with a wide range of international and local clients.
He has tremendous experience in helping companies list on the
Hong Kong and overseas stock exchanges.

Mr Choi is currently a member of Member of Higher Rights
Assessment Board and a Director of Hong Kong and Shenzhen
Science and Technology Parks Corporation.
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Corporate Information

QEEH

Registered Office

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Level 6, Cyberport 2

100 Cyberport

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3166 3800

Fax: (852) 3166 3118

Email: enquiry@cyberport.hk

Website: www.cyberport.hk

Auditor

Ernst & Young

Solicitors

Mayer Brown

Principal Bankers

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Mizuho Bank Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The list of directors during the financial year and up to the date of this Annual
Report was set out in page 93 of the Annual Report under the Directors’

Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr Victor NG Chi-keung, BBS, MH (Chairman)
Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin, JP

Ms Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han

Mr Duncan CHIU

Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, JP

Mr LAU Chun-kong, JP

Ms Rosana WONG Wai-man

Construction and Facilities Committee

Mr LAU Chun-kong, JP (Chairman)
Professor Christopher CHAO Yu-hang
Mr Duncan CHIU

Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, JP
Professor LING Kar-kan, SBS

Ms Rosana WONG Wai-man

Entrepreneurship Committee

Professor LING Kar-kan, SBS (Chairman)
Professor Christopher CHAO Yu-hang
Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, JP

Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun

Mr Hendrick SIN

Ms Rosana WONG Wai-man

Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing
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Corporate Information Corporate Structure

Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man, MH
Professor LING Kar-kan, SBS
Mr Victor NG Chi-keung, BBS, MH

AR e
as at 30 July 2020
72020478 30H
Finance and Administration Committee HERITHEEEY e
\ g S
Mr Duncan CHIU (Chairman) BRiERLE (F/E) A 4 E -%I?;E-‘HE
Ms vy CHEUNG Wing-han REAWLZ T 5& S g £ ﬁg@
Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, JP EOMRZZ L 0 P L g 5 ‘?‘, 5
% z
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Macro Fund Investment Committee

Dr Lee George LAM, BBS (Chairman)
Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin, JP

REIE > MH
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RERAE > BBS » MH

BEERENEESRET

MREEL > BBS (F/E)
fREEHIE > U

Remuneration and People Committee

Entrepreneurship

Sa
. = ] c
Mr Davey CHUNG Pui-hong, JP (Government representative) ML 0 P (BFEEK) £ ﬁ z £ Ix-
Mr Victor NG Chi-keung, BBS, MH RERTE > BBS » MH gm Em E 2
=N 7 ) = £ 3
Mr Hendrick SIN it b gﬁ; i B 8
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™ = o Z #e = k)
Remuneration and People Committee HWRABZEE e & B
s = 5 5
Dr Lee George LAM, BBS (Chairman) MEREE L > BBS (£/E) £ ﬁﬂ,
Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, JP Mz L o P Es DS
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Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing 2 e
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Finance and Administration Committee
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Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer
Head of Information
and Communication

Technology
EEIESEREE:

Entrepreneurship Committee
CERXEZEE

Head of Finance
& Governance

Internal Audit
B

Chief Corporate Development Officer
HECEREE
Head of Leasing

Construction and Facilities Committee
BERSMESY

Head of Marketing
ETHIFHEE

Project Director

Audit Committee
#itEEY
ElEEEES

Assistant Project
Director
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Talent Cultivation and Development
AT IBEHEERE

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

With the epidemic hitting the global
economy and upending traditional
ways of life and business, the outlook for
the labour market remains challenging.
More youth are turning to the I&T industry
for better prospects in employment and
career development. At the same time,
working adults are upgrading their digital
skills to cope with the new normal where
digital transformation accelerates. During
the past year, Cyberport strengthened
its comprehensive range of programmes
to meet these demands. We have long
established talent cultivation as a
central pillar of our public missions. Our
programmes are designed to inspire,
educate, nurture, and enable students,
start-ups, scale-ups, entrepreneurs,
and industry practitioners to pursue
opportunities and build a future in the
new economy.

Opening doors to opportunities

In light of the outbreak of COVID-19,
Cyberport Career Fair 2020 was

AT BEBIRMAAR  BETBRES

X B EER > FEHISE R mER
PREK - BRI ERE RIS
R RS ELFEEANEERSEAME
B > FERA T TMEIRIE A BES R AE -
B LU BB AN T % 2R 003RT
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DA o BE - RAIRET —RIIAT
BB FBILURmERMBITER » EAERE -
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ERAIERUEEFRAL > EHEETE
SHIBRIBEARNK
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mMEHTE BERERETEEE
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rescheduled from mid-March to early
April which was conducted in a virtual
and interactive format for the first time.
A major move that highlighted our agility
and maximised new opportunities for job
seekers. Cyberport Virtual Career Fair
provides a two-way platform to pair up
enterprise and talent who want to enter
the I&T industry. Participants can interact
with each other through the platform'’s
virtual booth, to display and inquire job
vacancies information as well as submit
their resumes and arrange interviews on
the spot via the platform. We received
a record high of over 3,300 job seekers
and over 130 companies. More than 800
vacancies in technical and non-technical
positions from various industries
attracted over 12,000 applications. Despite
the severe economic environment, the
demand for talents in the I&T industry has
risen instead of falling.

Aside from job opportunities,
internships are a critical way to boost

B FOBTEREXEE > BB
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our youth's prospects. We developed
the Cyberport Digital Tech Internship
Programme (CDTIP) to offer internship
programmes in FinTech, esports and
smart living, letting young people
gain hands-on experience. Last year,
over 350 participants and more than
170 companies participated in the
Programme. In the Fintech Career
Accelerator Scheme (FCAS), university
students were offered internship
opportunities at banks, stored value
facility operators, or worked on
FinTech-related projects at the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA),
a co-presenter of the programme.
Meanwhile, we also partnered with
Vocational Training Council (VTC) and
Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
(HKFYG) to recruit students to take up
internship positions at Cyberport’'s smart
living start-ups.

Cyberport Virtual Career Fair
HEBERTBRERE

130+

Hiring companies

Db E)iaE S

800
. ’& ; Job openings
DR BRI

y 3,300+

Registered jobseekers

& | EETREE

7l 12,000+

Job applications

NRERE

As of 30 June 2020
2020565308

Cyberport Career Fair 2020 was conducted in a virtual
and interactive format for the first time this year

TEIS BRI SEERUEREBFET
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Cyberport Virtual Career
Fair provided nearly 800 jobs
and attracted over 3,300 job
seekers to participate
TEREBERESHIBEEY)
TR IT800E ML > TR3|BiB
3,300REE SN

The fifth Cyberport University
Partnership Programme (CUPP)
brought 49 local university
students for entrepreneurship
training in the University of
Chicago Booth Business School
FBHE T805H8 - KBAEY
FEEHEI) FELIUAMKBE
REMFRBH BB hRE
ELIES]E

Cyberport's Esports

Industry Facilitation Scheme
sponsored two of Hong
Kong's esports teams to
receive professional training
at Ulsan, Korea

YHSEEIR [BRITEX RS
B BB ST A M EFREXE
FERRRTUIIER B4R

Cyberport Greater Bay Area
Young Entrepreneurship
Programme (GBA YEP)
attracted 150 university
students across Hong Kong,
Macau and Guangdong, to
fight for seed funding
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Premier incubation for
innovative aspirations

Despite the economic turmoil,
many people are still interested in
entrepreneurship as a means to career
opportunities. To support these aspiring
innovators and encourage innovation, the
Cyberport Incubation Programme (CIP),
one of our longest-running signature
programmes, increased its intake
quota to 130 in 2019/20, up from 100
in 2018/19. However, in 2019/20, the
demand far exceeds the supply with over
600 applications received. In addition to
offering incubatees up to HK$500,000,
CIP provides a range of entrepreneurial
support, mentorship, investor matching,
and free use of Cyberport's co-working
spaces.

First-hand experience for youth

Innovation is built on inspiration,
exploration, experiment and discovery.

Cyberport Cyberport
University Partnership Creative
Programme Micro Fund
BIEBRBSE HEBAE
Bt WEEE
T
° °
Talent Cultivation HK$100,000
EFAA Seed funding
Entrepreneurship Boot Camp BES108
at World class universities BrES
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Cyberport organises a variety of
programmes, hackathons, bootcamps,
workshops, and other experiential and
capacity building activities throughout
the year to cater to youth.

Last summer, we organised the
fifth edition of the Cyberport University
Partnership Programme (CUPP) and
admitted a fresh cohort of 49 students
nominated by six local universities. The
participants went to The University of
Chicago Booth School of Business for
a week-long FinTech entrepreneurship
bootcamp and received pre-camp training
from industry players, including ZA
International, Amazon Web Services
(AWS), and PingAn OneConnect. On the
CUPP Demo Day, the students pitched
their refined prototypes to a panel of
judges, which selected 13 winning teams
and each team was awarded a seed
funding of HK$100,000 along with a
fast-track interview opportunity with the
CIP.

Cyberport

Incubation

Programme Support Programme
HIEE BEE RN 2R

BEsE XiEsE

7
° °
HK$300,000
Financial assistance Financial assistance
B$30E
MBS EE B EE
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Cyberport \
Accelerator

We also joined hands with other local
higher education institutions such as Tech
Start-up 101 which offered workshops
for university students to learn about
building a minimum viable product from
start-ups, and the Bizkathon@HKUST,
Hong Kong's first virtual banking
hackathon, which challenged university
students and alumni to innovate for
virtual banking.

To inspire youth further, Cyberport
launched a STEM Education Ambassador
Scheme to connect seven educational
organisations that actively promote STEM
education and programmes in Hong
Kong. It was well received with close
to 600 students participated. We also
established a Youth Fellow Network to
engage young participants of Cyberport's
youth programmes, creating a networking
environment for further collaboration.

Market
Development
Support Scheme

B R At
i Bt #

Cyberport
Macro Fund

| wmmeA
flEES

° °
HK$200,000 Up to HK$200M
Financial assistance Investment fund
BU208 BUES2(E
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Support supercharges innovation

All innovation stems from small
ideas, and Cyberport supports
innovators to bring concept to
prototype with the Cyberport Creative
Micro Fund (CCMF), another signature
programme of Cyberport. The CCMF
provides seed funding, entrepreneurial
support, and a nurturing environment
of like-minded innovators. In 2019/20,
98 grantees were admitted into the
programme.

Eyeing the immense prospects of
the Greater Bay Area (GBA), Cyberport
rebranded the cross-boundary programme
of CCMF as the Cyberport Greater Bay
Area Young Entrepreneurship Programme
(GBA YEP) to facilitate exchange and
collaboration between the young talent
in the GBA. Macau was added to the
programme with the full support of the
Macao Young Entrepreneur Incubation
Centre and the Association for Promotion
of Science and Technology of Macau.
The new programme has received over
300 applications which is a 34 per cent
increase compared to last year. The
three-day bootcamp was organised and
provided training to 150 students from 30
universities across Hong Kong, Macau and
Guangdong.
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Time to accelerate

Start-ups are always looking to
tap accelerators for specialist support
in their technology fields, in addition
to fresh investment and market
opportunities. Last year, the Cyberport
Accelerator Support Programme (CASP),
supporting incubatees, grantees, or
alumni to join the best accelerators
around the world with financial
assistance of up to HK$300,000, endorsed
13 new accelerator programmes to a
total of 57 in 2019/20. These include the
Lotte Accelerator in Korea, Upward Labs
in the US, and the Mizuho Crowd Brain
Accelerator powered by Eureka Nova. In
2019/20, Cyberport community members
joined 38 accelerator programmes,
granted HK$3.38 million financial
assistance from CASP.

Cyberport Start-up
E5 0 e 201) I MaE S

Fostering intercommunity
exchanges

Cyberport organises regular Start-up
Exchange sessions to spark inspiration
and facilitate intercommunity knowledge
sharing. Multiple sessions were held
during the year for start-ups to share
their entrepreneurship experiences to
close to 200 participants.

Cyberport's Smart-Space users
are an important part of the Cyberport
Community and are our service targets.
In 2019/20, we organised 43 networking
events at the Smart-Space, including
seminars on funding, advisory sessions,
business matching events and technology
adoption sharings, with more than 2,100
in total attendance.
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Co-founder of Mellow
Mellow B SRIHEA

Listed in the Forbes 30 under 30 Asia 2020
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From becoming one of the winning teams in the Cyberport University
Partnership Programme (CUPP) to joining the Cyberport Incubation Programme,
Cyberport has supported us throughout our entrepreneurial journey and drive

us to continue to “Dare to Venture”.

B T8RS - RESIERBHEEL BRERE > DIEEA TS 8Ea5 gl
BIEE=FR—EHEEHIIE LRIENRE - HEBRIIEE IBaIRT -

Rk sIEEER

VRt XAREEXEHRERE BAUSE
HAERAR R BIH BN ERES - MUIEBER
TREMPOREMNTRIES o T8EEEN
REBTIENE IRZIEFAE  REE)
EREES 2MHRBRIIMEESS
Wik S EIE BT E - 5t
1£2019/20F E #7118 T13@MERZEEHE]
LA MRS FHEIE E57ME > EFEHE
3 [ 44 K N ER 28 ~ EEUpward Labs >
LR FEureka Novasz$F#IMizuho Crowd
BrainfNER2S s+ & 0 2019/20F E » S4B
B E 2038 EMNERSS S » B3 TH
BB IR IR st &1 338 B oI
ElE

HEEE (CEXR

BISBEHRMIRIRG > B
HE R EAME E B A SR » A
FREFTLHINE > HYRIERERRA
2002 g E D ZRIFLE

BUEE B AYSmart-Spacefd B IR 2 #UHS
BHBENEEREMNRBE R © 2019/20
4 FZ > Smart-Spacedt £ 1743315 32 7 &
g GEEEESMATE - BHRE
=B HEHETHRBNEERASZSE > K5
#BifB2,100 A2 -

Professional training for success

Accelerated digital transformation is
spurring practitioners across industries
to gain new skills and credentials,
and the need for FinTech skills in the
financial sector is especially pronounced.
In response to the government's
call for enhanced FinTech training
for financial practitioners in last
year's Policy Address, Cyberport was
entrusted by the Financial Services
and the Treasury Bureau to debut
the Cyberport Financial Practitioners
FinTech Training Programme in March
2020. The programme, which features a
series of seminars and workshops over
a year, enriches Hong Kong's FinTech
talent pool, promotes FinTech adoption
by financial institutions, speeds up
digital transformation, and fortifies our
competitiveness as an international
financial centre. Nearly 2,000
practitioners are expected to benefit from
the programme, and they will receive a
government subsidy of 80 per cent of the
training fee.

For esports professionals, two of
Hong Kong's professional esports teams,
Hong Kong Attitude and Ebunny 88, and
their coaches joined the inaugural "KeSPA
Academy Global Camp 2019" in Korea
with the support of Cyberport's Esports
Industry Facilitation Scheme. There
they received world-class professional
esports training and enhanced their
overall competitiveness. The Scheme
will continue to support esports talent
with professional trainings and overseas
exchange.

Knowledge and know-how

With technology developing in
breakneck speeds, start-ups need to
continually upgrade their skills and adopt
cutting-edge solutions to keep up and
stay ahead. The Cyberport Technology
Network (CTN) engages top technology
companies with seminars, trainings,
workshops, and other skill-building
initiatives and special packages to
facilitate solution adoption. To date, the
CTN has engaged 18 partners, including
Alibaba Cloud, AWS, Google, IBM,
Microsoft, and Tencent Cloud.

The Cyberport Financial Practitioners FinTech Training Programme was launched in March
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Blockchain technology is also
undergoing rapid development around
the world. To keep our community
members updated with developments
and opportunities, we teamed up with
leading blockchain organisations,
including Hyperledger, the Financial
Blockchain Shenzhen Consortium, and
Forms Syntron, and organised workshops
on smart contracts, elD applications
development, and blockchain-based
FinTech applications in Mainland China.

Looking forward

To meet demand for entrepreneurial
training, technology enablement, and
sustain Hong Kong's I&T momentum,
Cyberport is establishing the Cyberport
Academy to consolidate and elevate
our talent cultivation and development
programmes. The Academy will also
serve as an internship and employment
platform to create career opportunities;
a capacity building platform to offer
accredited training programmes with top
institutions; and a knowledge research
institute and I&T industry think tank. It
brings together key stakeholders, and
expands Hong Kong's technology talent
pool to support Hong Kong's long-term
economic development. To inspire and
support more youth to join the industry,
we will also expand Cyberport Digital
Tech Internship Programme (CDTIP) to
offer more internship opportunities.
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n 2019/20, Sino-US trade tensions and

global economic downturn impeded the
development of start-ups and technology
companies. Early stage start-ups strived
to pull through with tighter cash flow
and falling sales; while mature start-ups
recalibrated development plans for new
market conditions. To help community
members cope, Cyberport implemented
various measures to relieve operating
pressure of our community members and
maintain their competitive advantage.

Empowering the community
against challenges

The economic slowdown impacted
start-ups and technology companies, the
backbone of Hong Kong's new economy

development and digital transformation.
To combat this, Cyberport offered a
six-month rental concession to around 700
companies and start-ups in October 2019,
to ease their financial pressure and solve
urgent needs. As the COVID-19 epidemic
set in, the government offered further
rental relief through its Anti-Epidemic
Fund and waived the rent for a further
six months. We also organised a series
of funding-related sharing sessions
in partnership with government
organisations to help start-ups explore
the support available to them. Nearly 300
participants took part in these events
to learn about such programmes as
the Technology Voucher Programme,
Enterprise Support Scheme (ESS),

Dedicated Fund on Branding, Upgrading
and Domestics Sales (BUD Fund), SME
Export Marketing Fund (EMF), and other
R&D related schemes.

In the face of the epidemic, our
socially responsible start-ups also
turned up in droves to contribute their
problem-solving skills and innovative
solutions to help citizens, businesses,
and the government tackle the epidemic
and give back to society. The Braving
the Epidemic campaign was launched
to showcase the growing list of over 60
start-ups contributing their solutions,
covering areas such as infection
prevention, medical services, property
management, insurance, and education.

Braving the Epidemic
BE Rk

Distance Learning and Work From Home

EBESERERTIE

Digital
Entertainment &
ESpOFtS Cyberport kickstarted the Braving the Epidemic campaign in February this year
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Industry Development

TERRE

FinTech shines

Cyberport's FinTech community
is the largest in Hong Kong and is
continually attracting new members
from near and far. Our community now
houses nearly 400 FinTech companies
specialising in an expanding spectrum of
fields, including virtual banks, InsurTech,
financial software, research, data,
and PayTech. In 2019/20, our FinTech
start-ups are excelling globally, awards
and recognitions claimed by FinTech
community companies reached new
heights.

One major development during
the year was that of virtual banking.
In March 2020, community member
ZhongAn Technologies International
Group officially opened its ZA Bank,
becoming Hong Kong's first virtual bank.
Welab Digital, which is also a community
member, is planning to launch the WelLab
Bank this year*. The commencement
of virtual banking in Hong Kong is
set to foster and speed up the overall
development of FinTech.

Raising Hong Kong’s FinTech to
greater heights

To expand the avenues for growth
for FinTech start-ups, Cyberport signed
a memorandum of understanding
(MoU) with PingAn OneConnect to
join its Gamma O platform to grant
Cyberport FinTech companies access to
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Mainland Chinese financial and banking
institutions, customers, technologies,
productisation channels, and open
banking developments in the Greater Bay
Area (GBA).

Following the successful FinTech
delegation to the UK in 2017, Cyberport
again brought a FinTech delegation to
London, led by the Financial Secretary
of HKSAR. 15 Cyberport Community
companies met with prominent local
FinTech companies and accelerators,
including Accenture FinTech Innovation
Hub, Dun and Bradstreet, Level39, and
Innovate Finance. As a result of the
delegation, iFinGate Limited is in the
process of soft-landing in London.

We also participated in international
industry events such as the Hong Kong

Cyberport Start-up
BIEBMAIEE

FinTech Week, Singapore FinTech Week,
FinTech Taipei, and the Asian Financial
Forum to showcase our FinTech start-ups
to the world.

Our FinTech pipeline continues to
grow strong. Three Cyberport start-ups
(Mellow, MediConcen, and Interlinkages)
were among the eight finalists of the
renowned Accenture FinTech Innovation
Lab Asia-Pacific. For the ET Net FinTech
Awards 2019, 19 Cyberport FinTech
companies received 20 awards across
nine categories, including Quantifeed
being named FinTech of the Year
2019 and FinTech Awards 2019 in
Health Investment and Management -
Outstanding B2B Robo-advice Platform.
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POINT CAMERA AT BLUE AREA
BOHNREEEGIRTIE

Alvin Kwock 3B B
OneDegree

Co-founder and CEO
OneDegreedt[E A A B ATBARE

The third virtual insurer in Hong Kong
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Digital Entertainment Leadership Forum (DELF) at the
new esports venue located at Arcade@Cyberport
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Cyberport community start-ups scoop 19 awards at
Hong Kong ICT Awards 2019
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Smart Living

The Cyberport Community now
comprises nearly 700 companies that
specialise in such smart living domains
as loT applications, smart mobility, and
EdTech. In addition to incorporating their
innovations on campus, Cyberport opened
the CyberLab at the Arcade to showcase
the solutions of our incubatees, start-ups
and tenants, spanning virtual reality
(VR) and mixed reality (MR) experiences,
270-degree racing simulator, esports
entertainment system, augmented reality
(AR) smart glasses and solutions and
tour-guiding robots.

Exposure to wider audiences

Our start-ups’ smart living
solutions are finding demand with
regional and global customers. At last
year's International ICT Expo, which
five community companies (Transwap,
Ambit, Find Solution Ai, Play More,
Wildfaces Al) showcased their smart
city projects and applications to global
visitors. At the Learning and Teaching
Expo, a leading education expo in Asia
that showcases the latest educational
resources and learning technology, 12
start-ups participated and showcased
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their STEM & robotics education, learning
platform & aids, and school management
applications.

Digital Entertainment & Esports

In 2019/20, Cyberport opened its
esports venue in July and set in motion
a spate of events, competitions, and
programmes.

Cyberport's holistic development of
Hong Kong's esports ecosystem focuses
on three separate but interdependent
aspects: competitions, technology
development, and talent cultivation. The
Esports Industry Facilitation Scheme
has approved financial assistance to 26
events and competitions and 14 talent
cultivation and training courses, including
providing venue support with Cyberport's
esports venue. Meanwhile, the Esports
Internship Scheme provided cash
subsidies of up to HK$7,500 per month
per intern for nearly 20 internships in 10
companies, offering front-row seats and
hands-on experience to those interested
in joining this burgeoning industry.

Simultaneously, we debuted the
Digital Entertainment Leadership

Forum (DELF), the first esports-focused
international conference in Hong Kong.
It attracted over 700 participants to gain
insights from more than 40 speakers
from Hong Kong, Mainland China, the
UK, Israel, Germany, Japan, Korea, and
Southeast Asia about regional dynamics
and market trends at over 30 themed
sessions. Experiential activities, themed
zones, pop-up stores, start-up showcases
and battles by professional gamers
and esports teams also enhanced the
visitor experience and offered a deeper
understanding of esports.

Cyberport also turned July into a
Digital Entertainment Month to galvanise
engagement further. Blockchain Gamer
Connects, the acclaimed international
conference that explores blockchain and
games, made its Asian debut; In addition
to this, we partnered with other industry
stakeholders to present competitions
and events. We organised the League
of Legends International College Cup
2019, LoL Campus League 2019 Finals
(Secondary & Tertiary Division), Blocky
League eSports Competition Finals, and
EMF 2019: LoL International College
Championship Qualifiers.

13 Cyberport start-ups awarded in Deloitte Hong Kong Tech Fast Program last year
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Awards accumulate

Established and fledgling community
members continued to earn recognition
from near and far. At the 19th Asia
Pacific Information and Communications
Technology Alliance (APICTA) Awards,
Cyberport start-ups claimed four Winner
Awards and three Merit Awards. For the
Hong Kong ICT Awards, 16 start-ups
and technology firms were awarded 19
accolades, including winning the grand
awards in the FinTech, Smart Mobility,
and ICT Startup categories.

13 distinguished Cyberport start-ups
have been recognised by the 2019 Hong
Kong Technology Fast and Rising Star
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Program organised by Deloitte. Cyberport
start-ups, Klook and LYNK, won the 2019
Deloitte Tech Leadership Award and Tech
Fast Female Award respectively.

Looking forward

Despite the challenges of the
past year, sustained developments in
FinTech, smart city, digital entertainment
& esports, as well as in Al & big data,
blockchain, and cybersecurity are set to
continue, as these technologies underpin
the world's digital transformation
and play to Hong Kong's strengths.
The prospects are good as financial
institutions and governments are
already embracing FinTech and the

Cyberport Start-up
BESBMAIEE

digital economy, with the open data
environment encouraging both broader
and more personalised innovations.
56 advancements will unleash
unprecedented possibilities for smart city
developments.

With our early success in esports
and digital entertainment, we will
continue to foster industry development,
generate more entrepreneurial and
start-up opportunities. In addition to this,
we will delve into new domains, such as
Smart Building Management, RetailTech,
and EdTech, to ensure that Hong Kong is
well-placed to capture new opportunities
in emerging fields.

1
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POINT CAMERA AT BLUE AREA
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Mad Gaze
Founder and CEO
Mad GazeRlis AREE R

Winner of the China Unicom Best 5G AR Partner award
ERPERIEREG ARG TER LR

Beyond funding and mentorship, Cyberport has enabled us to increase our
products’ exposure in different occasions, leading to business and partnerships.
On the advent of the 5G era, Telecom companies are looking to find new devices
that could better reflect the advantages of the technology and have reached out
to us to explore opportunities for collaborations.
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Blockchain Gamer Connects, a leading international mobile gaming industry event held in Asia for the first time,

fully powered by Cyberport
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AR

ith meetings and exhibitions postponed, events and

hackathons cancelled, and adoption decisions put on
hold, start-ups and technology companies faced much difficulty
in connecting their products and solutions to customer
demand. The epidemic has also fundamentally altered the
business landscape, spurring industries to accelerate digital
transformation for survival, competitiveness, and future growth,
and this has opened up fresh opportunities.

Adapting to this "new normal”, we implemented a series
of initiatives through the Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN)
and organised dedicated events for start-ups and enterprises
to build connections, match solutions, and forge win-win
collaborations. Along the way, we continue our mission to
bridge the gap between new and traditional economies, drive
digital transformation, and strengthen the growth of technology
companies.

Cyberport Enterprise Network strengthens connections

Much of our enterprise outreach efforts were spearheaded
by the CEN linking the start-up community and traditional
enterprises, to understand their business needs and offer our
start-ups’ digital solutions. Our goals are to help enterprises
expedite their digital transformation and offer significant
business opportunities to start-ups and technology companies.
In 2019/20, CEN membership grew to 34 organisations,
comprising enterprises and industry associations from financial
services, I&T, F&B to cultural and creative industries, as well as
trading and logistics.
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During the year, the CEN arranged 35 business matching
sessions for 136 start-ups, including Gammon Construction,
KIDSLAND, New World Development, Sino Group, Arup, AsiaPay,
Hong Kong Airport Authority, and West Kowloon Cultural District
Authority. Nearly a dozen projects, including a blockchain
application for a construction giant, along with Al and loT
systems for cargo processing, have since moved on for deals
and advanced discussions.

Providing access to government opportunities

Public services is another sector inviting digital
transformation. During the year, the Office of the Government
Chief Information Officer (OGCIO), Cyberport, and the Hong Kong
Science and Technology Parks Corporation (HKSTP), jointly
organised three Technology Forums to help start-ups and
SMEs better understand the operational needs of government
departments. The sessions spotlighted smart city infrastructure,
blockchain technology for public services, and intelligent
transport system and traffic management. Start-ups from both
Cyberport and HKSTP presented their solutions to government
representatives.

The Cyberport Enterprise Network arranged a total of 44 business matching sessions
this year
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Cyberport start-ups were also
connected to the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department (EMSD)
E&M InnoPortal, which consolidates the
needs of government departments and
is a platform for project proposals and
matching. More than ten technology
solutions were featured on the portal
and two have since been engaged by
government departments: oneCHARGE
set up electric vehicle (EV) charging
facilities for EMSD and Roborn
Technology deployed its temperature
scanning robots at the EMSD, the
Correctional Services Department (CSD),
the Fire Services Department (FSD) and
the Transport Department (TD).

Expanding matching
opportunities

During the year, Cyberport
strengthened business matching between
start-ups and corporations. For example,
we invited Al start-up, Wildfaces, to
co-organise an event for CLP's Smart
Energy Connect, a smart energy initiative,
and bid for one of its projects. We
arranged HealthTech start-ups, Acesobee,
Abida Medical and Qualife, to meet
Gleneagles Hospital Hong Kong, owned
by New World Development; and we
connected Molekiu with the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority to explore
deploying smart hospitality robots.

Cyberport also launched the
Community Connect programme to
enhance connection among community
members and explore collaboration with
external enterprises. We collaborated
with seven industry associations,
including the Hong Kong Information
Technology Joint Council (HKITJC), Young
Professionals Alliance (YPA), Hong Kong
Computer Society (HKCS) and Hong Kong
Software Industry Association (HKSIA).
We introduced them to our remarkable
start-ups and their outstanding solutions.
Five events featuring 22 virtual banking,
Al, digital entertainment, esports and
blockchain start-ups were held, attracting
more than 320 attendees.

Community Connect Programme was launched to strengthen connection among Cyberport community members and explore industry collaboration
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DIGITAL ECONOMY
REDEFINES OUR FUTURE
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Cyberport co-organised the SmarTone
Hackathon themed under '5G & Smart City"
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Themed under “Digital Economy - Redefines
our Future”, the two-day Internet Economy
Summit attracted around 3,000 attendance
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Cyberport Venture Capital Forum attracted
the world's top industry leaders, investors
and technology companies to participate
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Promoting digital
transformation

In the face of challenges, we
continued to move forward. We again
co-organised the Internet Economy
Summit (IES), our annual signature
event, with the Hong Kong SAR
government, to promote the latest
|I&T trends, developments, use cases,
and opportunities. A record of 3,000
attendance listened to over 70 speakers
from around the world offering insights
under the theme “Digital Economy -
Redefines Our Future”.

As Hong Kong's foremost FinTech
hub, Cyberport also hosted the FinTech
Forum during IES and shared ideas for
the future of banking, insurance and
trade finance under the theme of “The
New Era of Finance Redefined”. We also
gathered representatives of Hong Kong's
first virtual banks, right after they were
granted their virtual banking licenses in
late March and early April 2019, to share
their development roadmaps at panel
discussions. Additionally, to drive deal
flow for start-ups, more than 100 investor
matching meetings were conducted during
the IES, marking a 54 per cent increase in
meetings over the previous year.
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Bridging the gap between start-ups
and enterprises

During the Cyberport Venture
Capital Forum (CVCF), which spotlighted
corporate ventures, Cyberport
co-organised the first Hong Kong
Chapter Finals of the Intellectual
Property Innovation & Entrepreneurship
Contest Global (IPIEC Global). This
internationally acclaimed competition,
organised in nine countries and regions,
invites local enterprises to pledge
potential investment for technology
solutions under 11 themes, including
FinTech, Al & big data, biomedicine, and

Cyberport Start-up
BISEMAIEE

smart manufacturing. It also calls on
innovators to come up with solutions to
help enterprises solve pain points and
upgrade their businesses.

Six entries were successfully
identified to match with enterprises’
technology demands, of which two are
from Cyberport Community - WOOM and
Vfluencer got intentional investments of
HK$5 million from US co-working space
group, WorkTech, and HK$10 million from
Hung Hing Printing Group respectively.
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Redsip
Co-founder and CEO
RedsipHt & BI P A RITEARE

Received investments from two investors at CVCF
BECVCFUEEME R EEMELF

It is never easy to raise funds as a start-up, you might meet a hundred investors and
99 will say “No” . Luckily, we are sitting in Cyberport. Within two weeks of meeting
us at CVCF, two investors decided to come onboard. The investors recognise the
stamp of approval from Cyberport on the way we operate and execute.
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Hackathons continue to inspire

Hackathons have always been an
excellent means to bridge corporations
and innovators to enable them to tap one
another’s strengths, nurture technology
talent and promote corporate digital
transformation. During the year, we
co-organised the Innovator Tribank Fintech
Challenge with the Shanghai Commercial
Bank to challenge Hong Kong, Mainland
Chinese and Taiwanese university students
to develop FinTech solutions to enhance
the Bank's operations and customer
experience. We also co-organised the
FINSPIRE Hackathon with Convoy for local
and overseas university students to design
FinTech solutions for addressing social and
environmental needs.

This was in addition to the Smartone
Hackathon, which gathered over 150

Integration of New and Traditional Economies

software developers, designers and
start-ups from six countries and regions
to create solutions for 5G & smart city.
During the Virtual Career Fair, we hosted
the finals of the Melco Student and
Start-up Challenge, where university
students from around the world
attempted to reinvent the hospitality and
entertainment industry with technology.

In addition to winning cash
prizes, some entrants received
fast-track interview opportunities with
the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund
(CCMF) or the Cyberport Incubation
Programme (CIP) to further realise their
entrepreneurial dreams.

Looking forward

Leveraging digital technology will
be a key in the post-epidemic new

OB R EBFEERE

normal, and Cyberport's new economy
companies are ready to help with
their diverse range of market-ready
products and solutions. Riding on
the government's Anti-epidemic
Fund offering financial assistance
for technology adoption (such as
Distance Business Programme (D-Biz),
LawTech Fund, and Subsidy Scheme for
Encouraging Early Deployment of 5G),
Cyberport will step up our matching
initiatives to help enterprises identify
suitable solutions from our start-ups
and technology companies. We will
also facilitate technology adoption in
the government, NGOs, schools and
social services to further promote
the integration of new and traditional
economies and propagate the benefits
of digital transformation to society at
large.

Cyberport and Convoy co-organised the FINSPIRE Hackathon to encourage university students to design innovative FinTech solutions
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Market Outreach and Investment
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n the past year, the global economic downturn has slowed

deals, paused adoption decisions, and reduced collaboration.
Nonetheless, Cyberport continues to expand its global network
of partners and investors for start-ups to grow. With connections
established from the US, Canada, and Europe to Mainland China,
ASEAN, East Asia, Greater Bay Area (GBA), and along the Belt and
Road, we provide our start-ups and technology companies access
to global assistance and market opportunities. These networks
also enable us to engage external talent, start-ups, technology, and
investment to enrich Hong Kong's I&T ecosystem. All these assets
are especially crucial to help start-ups find new opportunities
amid emerging challenges.
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Cyberport actively expands its global network of partners and investors to support
the development of start-ups

HIBERBHRRERSEBHMNREERE - LSRRI EERE

Driving deal flow

In 2019/20, Cyberport continued
to facilitate deal flow for start-ups
and enrich the investment landscape.
The annual Cyberport Venture Capital
Forum (CVCF) is a key channel for
us to connect Cyberport's start-ups
and investors. During CVCF 2019, we
gathered more than 40 global venture
capital experts to examine the "New
Frontier of Tech Venturing”. From angel
and VC investment and corporate and
family venturing to the rise of alternative
funding platforms, the discussions
spotlighted the global technology
investment landscape and offered
actionable advice to help start-ups and

investors navigate and succeed. Investor
matching sessions were organised
for start-ups to meet one-on-one with
investors, where more than 200 meetings
were arranged, an increase of 33 per cent
over the previous year.

Last year’'s event also marked the
second anniversary of the Cyberport
Investors Network (CIN), during which
Cindy Chow, Executive Director of Alibaba
Hong Kong Entrepreneurs Fund, officially
took the baton from Duncan Chiu, co-
founder and Managing Director of Radiant
Venture Capital, as new chairperson of
the Steering Group of the CIN, continue
to build on his success and accelerate
the growth of the start-up environment in

Cyberport Venture Capital Forum 2019 marked the second anniversary of the Cyberport Investors Network
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Market Qutreach and Investment
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Hong Kong.

Enhancing fund syndication

Through engaging investors
worldwide, Cyberport enhances deal-
making opportunities for our start-
ups. Since its inception in 2017, CIN has
gathered over 100 investors, including
private equity funds, venture capital
funds, corporate investors, angel
investors and family offices. The network
has thus far raised more than HK$360
million in funds for Cyberport’'s start-ups
through 26 investment-matching projects,
with six deals completed in 2019/20.

Cyberport Investors Network (CIN)
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The Cyberport Macro Fund (CMF), a
co-investment fund initiative to support
high-potential start-ups, invested in six
start-ups throughout the year, bringing
its total amount of investments to
HK$47.89 million (US$6.18 million). For
instance, in 2019/20, logistics start-
up Pickupp received additional co-
investment of HK$51.46 million (US$6.64
million), which was facilitated by the
initial investment of HK$11.63 million
(US$1.5 million) from CMF; while
OneDegree clinched a co-investment of
HK$52.7 million (US$6.8 million) after
the CMF invested HK$7.75 million (US$1
million) when the start-up received a
virtual insurance license.
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By enhancing collaboration, we
will augment the CMF's co-investments
with the networking built by the CIN.
We are leveraging the intelligence
and resources generated by the CMF,
such as due diligence, deal reports and
investment assessments, to inspire more
CIN members to become co-investment
partners. These efforts also allow
investors to share risk and knowledge
while spurring additional technology
investments.

Strengthening international
market outreach

Our endeavours to connect start-
ups and technology companies to new
markets also bore fruit. The Overseas/

Total investment more than
KREBESERE

Hk$ 91.68 M

from co-investment funds
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pickupp
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Mainland Market Development Support
Scheme (MDSS) offers up to HK$200,000
for CIP or CCMF graduates to conduct
market research, promotion, and
participate in Mainland and overseas
business missions, trade fairs, and
exhibitions. Since the programme was
launched in November 2018, the MDSS
has provided HK$2.15 million that
supported 51 start-ups to attend 97
events, exhibitions, delegation missions,
or tap landing services. In 2019/20 alone,
we approved 38 applications, up from 13
in 2018/19. Last year's funding enabled
smart living start-up Service Technology
Partners to land in Singapore; Phone
Joy Solutions to establish a presence in
Shenzhen, Guangzhou, and Beijing; and
Kazoo Technology to participate in six
market development programmes.

BHETE ARER THIEBEEE
o N85 BRIEMELE®) AR #1E
BEEE08EE - HEAILXET
IS~ SEEEMN HEFAMAE I
£ X EHEY - Bt 82018511
BEEHME > BB sBES ) X
Fo A ESNTEES - BE - 1
REFCEMARTS o BET2019/20FE »
T AL TI8HEREE 0 B E2018/19F E
13D - EFEBNERERTERE
& #] 8l 1= #Service Technology Partners
AN TS 5 5EPhone Joy Solutions
BRI~ EMFIERSEH 5 M BIKazoo
Technology2 il 7 7~ ETH5FI &8 ©

CMF drives co-investment
amidst the epidemic
CMFIg m&sHRKRE
01/2020 - 06/2020

Injecting

o

Attracting
co-investment
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Investment Ratio

RALE

In September, we joined the "Think
Asia Think Hong Kong” delegation and
went to Los Angeles. We visited their
innovation hubs, local government
officials, start-up communities, and
investors to exchange ideas, showcase
solutions, and build connections. More
than 200 participants joined Cyberport
session “The Future of Smart Living and
Digital Entertainment”. Seven community
start-ups shared their solutions at the
event and exhibited at the InnoVenture
Salon. Consequently, Redspots was
connected with Hollywood studios and
is working with a NASDAQ company to
expand its overseas market. Unspun, a
start-up that specialises in 3D weaving,
met the global apparel brand Patagonia
and was connected to on-demand fashion
supply chains in the US.

Connecting Belt and Road
opportunities

Closer to home, the Belt and Road
region presents a hotbed of business
opportunities, and start-ups in FinTech
and smart living are particularly well-
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placed for these emerging markets. Last
year, Cyberport again joined the Belt
and Road Summit as a Breakout Forum
Partner and hosted a session entitled
“FinTech to Reshape the Cross-border
Trade along Digital Silk Road”. More than
320 participants attended the session
to examine how FinTech can bridge the
Belt and Road’'s tremendous financial
opportunities and facilitate financial
integration and policy coordination of
markets.

Cyberport Start-up
BISEYAIEE

Market Qutreach and Investment
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Following the Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) we signed with
InnoSpace (Thailand) in 2018/19, in
which we pledged to strengthen bilateral
support for each other’'s start-ups,
further collaboration materialised last
year. In November, Cyberport led ten
start-ups to participate in Digital Thailand
Big Bang 2019, one of the largest digital
technology symposiums in Southeast
Asia, to showcase their solutions to
visitors from Thailand, ASEAN countries,
and around the world. The Innospace

MasiE o
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Founder and CEO of Redspots Creative
ARFRIFEBBRRAR
B AR ATEUABEL

@ Gained opportunity to work with Hollywood creative studios
through joining Cyberport's LA delegation
SHEYEBRCRARBEMETREERR AT SFHRE

Cyberport brought Redspots and its Virtual Idol Solution to North America
through the Think Asia Think Hong Kong delegation. There we were connected
with various Oscar calibre Hollywood Studios and we are now working with a
NASDAQ company to expand our presence in overseas markets.
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Cyberport joined the Belt and Road Summit to discuss
development opportunities of FinTech in the region
YIEE2H - T —Balnl BENSmAE K
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Cyberport Demo Day, which Cyberport
co-organised, enabled our start-ups to
pitch to Thai and ASEAN corporations and
investors and participated in one-on-one
business matching meetings.

Expanding GBA connections

The Greater Bay Area (GBA) is
another region that boasts a plethora of
opportunities for new economy companies,
and Cyberport is continually enhancing
its outreach in the GBA to explore and
connect talent, investment, and business
opportunities. At “SmartHK, Guangzhou”,
community companies exhibited at the
Cyberport Pavilion and joined pitching
and matching events with investors from
Guangdong Province. At the GreaterBay
X Urban Summit, which Cyberport co-
organised to connect mobility-related
urban-tech to the GBA, we hosted a panel

Cyberport start-ups pitched to Thailand and ASEAN corporations and investors on The Innospace Cyberport Demo Day

discussion to explore “Urban-tech in
Greater Bay Area”, with panellists from
Siemens, MTR, and Smart City Consortium,
and 100 participants in attendance.

Local events gain global exposure

Cyberport is also actively
participating in local signature events to
boost the profile of Hong Kong's start-
ups and help them build networks. In
April, start-ups joined the Silicon Dragon
event and examined “loT and Smart City
Innovations” at a panel discussion. In July,
we joined the RISE Conference again and
featured a record of 21 community start-
ups at a pavilion co-hosted with InvestHK
and the HKSTP. The start-ups crossed
FinTech, RegTech, blockchain, Al, EdTech,
HealthTech, IoT, and professional services,
showcasing their solutions to more than
16,000 attendees from over 100 countries.

7EInnospace CyberportEnHE X » SBEENAI CXAREMNREN AR REEE BRI R
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Invigorating the ecosystem

Cyberport's Easy Landing Scheme
offers discounted rental spaces to
attract multinational companies, to
foster development of digital technology
ecosystem. Last year, Amazon Web
Services joined the community, and further
collaboration is on the horizon.

As we move forward, Cyberport’'s
international networks will play a crucial
role in helping start-ups gain exposure
to potential investors and expansion
opportunities all over the world. We look
forward to engaging more technology
enterprises and overseas talent to join the
Cyberport community, further invigorating
the local I&T ecosystem, and enhancing
our competitiveness for the ‘new normal’.
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Start-ups exchanged ideas with successful entrepreneurs, venture capitalists and industry experts through participating in Silicon Dragon
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Cyberport participated in RISE Conference in July last
year, introducing Cyberport start-ups to attendees around
the world
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Operation Excellence
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yberport boasts a team of dedicated staff who are committed
Cto our public missions, fostering the development of Hong
Kong's I&T sector. This includes an exceptional Board of Directors
that provides outstanding corporate governance; staff whose
devotion enable start-ups, technology companies, and community
members to pursue entrepreneurial dreams; and support staff
who upkeep premises to provide a high performance and safe
campus for enterprises and start-ups.
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Cyberport Campus Management Team put in place a series of
timely anti-epidemic measures

EHEE > HISEEEEREXRRRR—RTINREE
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Epidemic response

In the face of COVID-19, the Cyberport management adopted
measures to ensure workplace health while maintaining productivity.
This included implementing a Dual-Team Work Arrangement to
ensure business continuity, providing timely information and updates
on the epidemic, supplying face masks to staff, and sustaining stable
off-site VPN access for all employees.

Our Campus Management Team also put in place a series
of anti-epidemic measures, including allocating additional
manpower for body temperature monitoring, setting up UV light
with photocatalytic air purifiers and foggers for air return and
fancoil sanitisation, and increasing sanitisation of public areas,
facilities and tenant buses.
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Cyberport's Award and Recognition
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Operation Excellence
FHEE

\ The Hong Kong Institute of Directors -
< “Directors Of The Year Awards 2019" & “Recognition of Excellence in
d Q Board Diversity”

EBEFRE -
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N

The Hong Kong Management Association -
2020 HKMA Quality Award “Excellence Award “
BREEFEHE -

2020 E 1B E EIRHE MExcellence Award |

Professionalism leads the way

Our team is our most important asset, and is spearheading
Hong Kong's digital technology development. To achieve staff
excellence, our Human Resources Team launched a special
award programme to inspire creativity and applaud extraordinary
performance. The team also organises training workshops and
programmes regularly, such as inviting ICAC representatives to
advise new employees on anti-corruption guidelines and best
practices. In addition, quarterly Town Halls encourage two-way
communication between management and staff. Management will
highlight the latest company developments to colleagues and
address their questions, to create a more thorough understanding
of the company'’s development strategy.

Remarkable corporate governance

Our exceptional corporate governance earned “Directors
Of The Year Awards 2019" and "Recognition of Excellence in
Board Diversity” from The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
in November 2019. Besides, Cyberport received the 2020
HKMA Quality Award “Excellence Award” from the Hong Kong
Management Association in August 2020. Our directors’ and
management's efforts place Cyberport in a stronger position
to promote digital transformation and adaptation of innovative
technology to benefit society at large.

Cyberport received two awards from The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in recognition of Cyberport's exceptional corporate governance
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Operation Excellence
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Smart office solutions

Cyberport is continually improving our staff's working
environment. In January, all of our staff were relocated to the
newly renovated and expanded office, incorporating a number of
smart office solutions developed by our community members to
enhance business efficiency. For example, a video intercom system
has been installed at the entrance of the office, which enables
our administrative colleagues to communicate with visitors
through the smart video call system, allowing for more efficient
arrangements of manpower and resources. We also have an Indoor
Air Quality (IAQ) and Energy Management Dashboard to drive
thermal comfort and continuous energy-efficiency improvement; as
well as introduced a point-to-point delivery robot that can deliver
mail and packages to workstations and rooms simply by scanning
a QR code.

Important testing ground

In addition to offices and co-working spaces, the Cyberport
campus and Arcade collectively act as an important testing
ground for start-ups to deploy their solutions where they can
collect invaluable feedback on customer experiences and daily
operations before going to market. This in turn gives visitors
and users of these facilities the opportunity to experience the
benefits of novel digital technology solutions.

One important physical space which showcases innovative
solutions from the Cyberport community is CyberLab. Adjacent to
the brand new esports venue in the Arcade, CyberlLab presents

CyberlLab is situated next to the esports venue, showcasing the applications and
products from the digital entertainment & esports cluster
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applications and hardware from the Digital Entertainment &
Esports cluster. Manned by a tour-guide robot, visitors are able
to experience Mixed Reality applications as well as glasses-free
three-dimensional content in the space. One of the most impressive
installations is the 270° Racing Simulator from Cyberport incubatee
Godzpeed, which provides an immersive experience allowing users
to simulate professional racing in 3D-modeled real world courses.

Located at the heart of Cyberport’'s IT Street is the Smart
Living Concept Store, a 24-hour self-service retail space that
allows Cyberport start-ups to showcase their smart retail, smart
marketing, and smart management solutions. One such example
is the Hot Food Vending Machine from Wada Bento. The machine
provides hot and fresh Japanese Bentos that are designed by
the company’s Japanese Head Chef in a matter of seconds.

Smart Living Concept Store provides an important testing ground for start-ups to
deploy their solutions

BELERSEAVACEXRMEEARSH » SITHMINRRSR

Godzpeed's 270° Racing Stimulator is showcased at CyberlLab for visitors to simulate
professional racing
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Immersed in technology

Beyond these two dedicated spaces which put start-ups’
products in the spotlight, innovative solutions are also infused
into the surroundings of the campus, providing an immersive
technological experience to its users.

The Smart Toilet is situated on the second floor of the
arcade. With digital signs which show real-time availability
of stalls as well as other data gathered using sensors placed
throughout the toilets. The toilet doors are equipped with
self-sanitizing handles as one of the anti-epidemic measures.
Smart mirrors are also deployed for better supervision of the
amenities. The overall customer experience has been improved
by adopting innovative digital technology solutions provided by
the Cyberport community.

Other facilities include electric vehicle charging stations
at the car park of Cyberport 3 offered by Cyberport incubatee
oneCHARGE and Smart Lockers provided by another Cyberport
incubatee, Pakpobox.

Le Méridien Cyberport

As an integral part of Cyberport, Le Méridien Cyberport
has been providing top-class hotel accommodation for visitors
and is a meeting point for Cyberport community members and
overseas guests. During the year, the hotel adopted new smart
hospitality technology to enhance customer experience and
operational efficiency. This included introducing a mobile key
system for hotel guests, installing smart mirrors developed
by the start-up KARA Smart Fitness in both the hotel gym and
GoGym, and collaborating with Cyberport start-ups to offer
cutting-edge smart living technologies to visitors.

Cyberport gym rooms have been equipped with smart mirrors, introducing advanced
fitness technology to visitors

REEREEERT - ATHBHRFNNRIB AR

Smart Toilet brings together multiple digital solutions from Cyberport start-ups
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Innovative technology solutions by Cyberport incubatees are applied at different
locations of Cyberport campus

HEEBYRIEENAM RS REREEENTRME

TSRS ER

BR T EmER R SERTIRIASEmMAKRBZERUS > ¥
BBRERMAEMN TR IAINEREE  AAFREENN
M RgE o

Smart Toilet{I X FIHH — 18 > WECHE R = BRI
FRNEABER U KESRFTIRERNHthENE - S5 HFH
2B BHHHIENPIN > REBRERERZ —  KFH
WIERZRETERERT » UBBIF tEERE o BIBRMEEE
HEFTRENAISRBRRBAR R > BEARBRIBUKRK
HE o

HAhR i B iE #E5BIE S A SoneCHARGER X MBS B =
(FEZNEHETBL > WkH —EEBE BRI A FPakpobox
MBS SEEYIE -

B REEERRER

ERBISENEZMR > HISBUFAE —BEAHEREM
TERBEEEE > TREMSEHEM BN EIRTEN
BB o F o BIERA SRS SERE R A RSB
TESE URAZFERNZEENE  EREESIATHE
RERS - TEEREENRERESEGCoGymPZEBIAIE
ZEKARA Smart FitnessFIE#E R E SER B IRE > AanFiRHMIERY
B E AR o

RESCAN FOR AR EFFECT
RIFIBHEREERARM R

EIEE 2019/20 3R



Corporate Social Responsibility
TEHFRME

Community engagement

During the year, Cyberport supported a number of
community care activities, including an eye-glasses recycling
campaign organised by Greeners South, during which a
collection box was placed at the Arcade. We also supported
a charity collection event initiated by District Councillor Paul
Zimmerman, which collected clean clothes, electrical appliances
and toys for the Salvation Army, buttons for Les Beatitudes,
and elderly care items for the Hong Kong Society for Health.
In addition to this, volunteers from Cyberport, Le Méridien
Cyberport, and the Facilities Management Office arranged a
visit to the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Jockey Club Tsin Hang
Day Activity Centre and provided day training to intellectually
challenged persons to strengthen their independent living skills
and enhance their quality of life.

Cyberport also worked closely with the Cyberport Startup
Alumni Association (CSAA) and its community to take part in and
support a number of initiatives under the Braving the Epidemic
campaign that would help Hong Kong's citizens combat
challenges at hand.

Cyberport incubatee Me2You organised HK2gether Anti-epidemic Resources Sharing
programme
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Sharing resources as a community

With the full support of the CSAA, Cyberport start-up
Me2You organised the "HK2gether Anti-epidemic Resources
Sharing” programme between April and May 2020. 50 collection
points were set up across Hong Kong, including within the
Cyberport campus, for citizens to donate surplus medical
supplies. CSAA and its volunteers conducted basic quality
checks, quantity recording and packing, while GOGOX, who is
a member of CSAA, provided logistics support by transporting
donations to a central collection point for redistribution. The
drive was a resounding success, with over 28,000 face masks,
over 2,400 hand sanitisers and over 300 packs of disinfectant
wipes collected and distributed to some 20 beneficiary charities,
who would then send them to underprivileged groups including
the elderly living alone, chronic patients with low income and
the homeless.

Connecting communities for the socially distanced

With the increasing urgency to expand its testing for the
COVID-19 virus among Hong Kong's population, the Department
of Health needed to collect testing specimens from those
conducting the tests from their homes while in quarantine. The

Cyberport volunteers actively participated in various community care activities to
contribute to the society
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CSAA then mobilised its members GOGOX, Pickupp and Toby to
collect deep throat saliva specimens from the patients’ homes
and transport them to designated laboratories for viral testing,
helping identify carriers of the virus early and effectively
minimising transmission in the community.

Cyberport's virtual insurance companies also lent a
helping hand to the campaign. Cyberport start-up and virtual
insurer OneDegree provided GOGOX and Pickupp's couriers
income protection in the event they were sent to hospital or
mandatory quarantine and unable to work. Another Cyberport
start-up and virtual insurer Bowtie offered Pickupp’s couriers
Voluntary Health Insurance, additional COVID-19 health benefits
and general out-patient clinic service free of charge, the latter
was also extended to their families. From February 2020, the
Cyberport team also participated in a series of hand sanitiser
production workshops hosted by Bowtie and distributed the
products to communities in need.
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Cyberport supported a number of charity donation activities in the past year to collect
daily necessities for those in need
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Nurturing technologies for a better tomorrow

The Braving the Epidemic campaign showed how technology
can truly benefit communities, especially in times of need.
Cyberport incubatee Bull.B Technology enhanced its smart
school management platform “School Parent Corner” and
made it complimentary for 100 primary and secondary schools
as well as kindergartens to facilitate communication between
institutions and parents. Educational platform GRWTH also
shared its mobile application free of charge for parents, schools
and students to manage distance learning through features
such as digital handbooks, circulars and instant messaging.
Meanwhile, Hong Kong Decoman, an online renovation portal
and Cyberport alumnus, began offering inspections as well as
repair and disinfection services for ventilation pipes of 4,800
flats across 16 Y2-type housing estates in Hong Kong free of
charge.
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Virtual insurer Bowtie from Cyberport Community held a series of hand sanitiser production workshops to help fight the epidemic
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Our Commitment

ong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) is
Hcommitted to maintaining and upholding high standards of corporate
governance. We believe that good corporate governance provides the
foundation for good corporate performance and is essential to accomplishing
our public missions, meeting the expectations of our stakeholders, and
attaining long-term and sustainable growth. We have therefore adopted
accountability, transparency, fairness, ethics and integrity as the cornerstones
of our corporate governance framework.

Corporate Governance Structure
(as at 30 July 2020)
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Board of Directors

The board of directors (the "Board” or "Board Members") has the
collective responsibilities for the leadership and control of the Company
within a framework of prudent and effective controls. It governs and leads the
Company in a responsible and effective manner.

The Board sets the corporate strategies and approves the operating
plans proposed by the management of the Company (“Management”). Each
Board Member has a duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of the
Company.

To ensure effective discharge of duties by Board Members, the Board
assumes the responsibility of ensuring that each Board Member has spent
sufficient time to attend to the affairs of the Company. All Board Members
are kept abreast of the development of the Company through regular Board
meetings, and receipt of regular financial and business updates.

Board Members may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense to discharge their duties.

The Company has also arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance to indemnify the Board Members against liabilities arising
out of the discharge of their duties and responsibilities as the Company's
Board Members.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman of the Board, and the Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") of the Company are complementary, but more importantly, they
are distinct and separate with a clear and well established division of
responsibilities, enhancing independence and accountability.

The Chairman of the Board, who is a Non-executive Director, is
responsible for managing and leading the Board in setting the Company's
overall directions, strategies and policies, as well as monitoring the
performance of the CEO. Apart from making sure that adequate information
about the Company's business is provided to the Board on a timely basis,
the Chairman provides leadership for the Board, and ensures views on
all principal and appropriate issues are exchanged in a timely manner, by
encouraging all Board Members to make a full and effective contribution to
the discussion. Under the Chairman’s guidance, all decisions have reflected
the consensus of the Board.

The CEO, who is appointed by the Board as a remunerated full-time
employee of the Company, is responsible to the Board for implementing the
strategy and policy as established by the Board, and managing the day-to-day
business of the Company.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report
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Board Composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprised of 14 Directors,
of whom all are Non-executive Directors, Dr Lee George LAM (Chairman),
Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin, Professor Christopher CHAO Yu-hang, Ms
lvy CHEUNG Wing-han, Mr Duncan CHIU, Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, Mr LAU
Chun-kong, Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man, Professor LING Kar-kan, Mr Victor NG
Chi-keung, Mr Hendrick SIN, Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun, Ms Rosana WONG
Wai-man and Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing. This structure effectively ensures
the independence, objectivity and impartiality of the Board’'s decision-making
process and oversight of Management. Non-executive Directors bring an
external perspective, constructively challenge and advise on proposals or
strategy.

All Board Members are appointed by the shareholders without receiving
any honorarium for a specific term and can be re-appointed upon expiry of
their terms of office.
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Board Composition EERREHE
(as at 30 July 2020) (542020575 30H)

Gender

MR

Female %1% 4

Male %1&1 0

Length of Service on Board

HERRBDEZHHER

>4 Years
BiRmE

<1 Year

TR—F

1-4 Years
—ENE
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Category
Wil

Government
Non-executive

N BAFERITHE

Non-Government
Non-executive

JEBTIERITAA

13

Profile
5%
Government BF 1
IT &R 4 Academic

Surveying &

Accounting/
Finance

GEt/ER

Commercial B2 2

Town Planning

Building Construction
o=

Board Diversity

We recognise the importance of ensuring an appropriate balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and gender on the Board to our corporate governance.
Our Board Members, while one of them is from the Government, with others
come from various business fields, including IT, accounting and finance,
commercial, building construction, surveying, town planning and academic,
have both the breadth and depth of relevant experience to steer and oversee
the business of the Company.

The current mix of our Board Members is balanced and well represented
by IT professionals, business executives, government representatives and
other industry professionals and leaders. Biographical details of the Board
Members are set out in the section “Board of Directors” in this Annual Report.
The Company also maintains on its website (www.cyberport.hk) an updated
list of its Board Members identifying their roles and functions.

Board Functions

The Board directs the management of the business and affairs of the
Company. The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board. The Board focuses its attention on providing overall strategic
guidance to the Company on its business development, finance and oversight
over corporate governance. These include strategic planning, financial and
business performance, governance and risk management, as well as human
resources and remuneration issues.

At the regular Board meetings, Management reports the Company’s
business to the Board, including the Company's operations, progress of
projects, financial performance, legal issues, corporate governance, risk
management, human resources, sustainability, corporate responsibility and
outlook. Together with the discussions at Board meetings, this ensures that
Board Members have a general understanding of the Company's business
and sufficient information to make informed decisions for the benefit of the
Company.

In addition to the regular financial and business performance reports
submitted to the Board at its regular meetings, the Board also receives
monthly financial and business updates with information on the Company's
latest financial performance. Directors can therefore have a balanced
and comprehensive assessment of the Company's performance, business
operations, financial position and prospects throughout the year. All Board
Members have access to Management for obtaining necessary information.
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Induction for Board Members

Each newly appointed Board Member is given a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction programme so that they can discharge their
responsibilities to the Company properly and effectively. The programme
consists of meeting with the CEO and Management, briefings on the
Company’s operations and major developments, and visits to the Company’s
facilities. New Board Members are able to familiarise themselves with the
Company’s objectives, strategies, business, operations and internal controls,
as well as the general and specific duties of directors.

Further, all Board Members are provided with a Directors’ Handbook on
their appointment, which sets out, amongst other things, directors’ duties,
code of conduct, declaration of interests and the terms of reference of the
Board Committees. The Directors’ Handbook is updated from time to time to
reflect developments in those areas.

Recognising that development is an ongoing process, Board Members
were invited to attend forums and conferences on information technology in
the year under review ("Year").

Board Proceedings

Board meetings are held regularly and no less than once every quarter.
Additional Board or Committee meetings to consider specific matters can be
convened when necessary. All Board Members have full and timely access
to all relevant information about the Company and may take independent
professional advice at the Company’'s expense, if necessary, in accordance
with the approved procedures, so that they can discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Board Members.

Schedule for the regular Board and Committee meetings in each year
is made available to all Board Members before the end of the preceding
calendar year. Furthermore, notice of meetings will be given to the Board
Members before each regular meeting.

Meeting agenda for regular meetings are set after consultation with the
Chairman and CEO. Generally, the agenda together with relevant papers are
sent to the Board Members at least five working days before the intended
date of the meeting.

Board Members may attend the Board meetings in person, via video
conference or telephone conference.

Matters to be resolved at Board meetings are decided by a majority of
votes from the Board Members allowed to vote, although the usual practice
is that decisions reflect the consensus of the Board. The process of the Board
is reviewed from time to time to keep abreast of regulatory changes and best
corporate governance practices.
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Board Meetings

During the Year, the Board held four meetings with overall attendance of
84.6%.

Key matters considered/resolved:

Strategic plan and objectives

Annual plan and performance targets

Mid-Year key performance indicators review

Annual report and audited financial statements
Management accounts and reports

Internal control and significant policies

Appointment and oversight of senior management

Staff remuneration, pay structure and corporate performance assessment
Annual pay review

Performance assessment and variable pay for Management
Transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance

Apart from Board meetings, the Chairman had sessions with Board
Members without the presence of Management to discuss human resources
matters.

Strategic Planning

The Board has continued to review the strategies of the Company to
identify and assess the opportunities and challenges the Company may face,
and to develop a planned course of action for the Company to generate and
preserve long-term value. Progress of implementation of the key initiatives in
the strategic plan was reported to and reviewed by the Board Members.

During the Year, the direction of Cyberport Three-Year Strategic Plan
2020/21 - 2022/23 was set so as to further enhance its public mission to
drive Hong Kong's digital technology development in three major clusters.
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Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), and of the Group's result
and cash flows for the Year. The Board has prepared the financial statements
on a going concern basis, and has adopted appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently. Judgments and estimates have been made that
are prudent and reasonable.

In support of the above, the financial statements presented to the Board
have been reviewed by Management. Management is responsible for finalising
them with the external auditor and then the Audit Committee.

In addition, all new and amended accounting standards and requirements,
as well as changes in accounting policies adopted by the Group have been
discussed and approved by the Audit Committee before adoption by the Group.

Board Members acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring that the
preparation of the annual financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

Further, in order to make a comprehensive assessment of the Group's
performance, the Board has reviewed an annual plan during the Year and the
monthly reports on financial results and business performance.

Code of Conduct

The Company is a public body under the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
("POBQ"). Accordingly, Board Members are regarded as “public servants”
for the purpose of POBO. The Company is fully committed to the principle of
honesty, integrity and fair play in the delivery of products and services to the
public.

The Board is collectively responsible for the management and operations
of the Company. Board Members, both collectively and individually, are
expected to exercise fiduciary duties and duties of care, skill and diligence to
a standard at least commensurate with the standard established by the laws
and regulations of Hong Kong.

Delegating the functions of the Board is permissible but does not
absolve Board Members from their responsibilities or from applying the
required levels if they pay attention to the Company’s affairs only at formal
meetings. At a minimum, Board Members should take an active interest in
the Company's affairs and obtain a general understanding of the Company's
business.
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Board Members should regularly attend and actively participate in Board
and Committee meetings, and prepare for them by reviewing all materials
provided by Management.

Board Members are required on their first appointment, on an annual
basis, and as and when necessary thereafter to declare any interests that
are or may be relevant and material to the business and operations of the
Company. They are also required to inform the Company Secretary of any
changes in their declared interests or any new interests that may arise
as soon as they become aware of such interests. A Register of Directors’
Interests is kept by the Company Secretary and is accessible by the Board
Members.

Every Board Member is also required to observe his/her ongoing
disclosure obligations (including, without limitation, requirements to
notify changes in personal particulars to the Company Secretary and/or
circumstances that may affect his/her independence, and to declare material
interests, if any, in any transaction, arrangement or contract or a proposed
transaction, arrangement or contract with the Company) under the Companies
Ordinance.

A Board Member cannot cast a vote on any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other kind of proposal in which he/she has an interest
and which he/she knows is material except with the approval of the Board/
Committees. For this purpose, interests of a person who is connected with
a Board Member (including any of his/her associates) are treated as the
interests of the Board Member himself/herself. A Board Member may not be
included in the quorum for such part of a meeting that relates to a resolution
he/she is not allowed to vote on, but he/she shall be included in the quorum
for all other parts of that meeting. This reduces potential conflicts which
might otherwise arise between the Company’'s business and an individual
Board Member's other interests or appointments.

Board Committees

During the Year, the Board has five standing Committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Entrepreneurship Committee, Macro
Fund Investment Committee and Remuneration and People Committee
(formerly known as Remuneration Committee), to assist it in carrying its
responsibilities. According to the Cyberport Three-Year Strategic Plan 2020/21
- 2022/23, the corporate governance structure of the Board Committees
would be further enhanced and aligned its principal duties. From 1 April 2020
onwards, two new committees, namely, Finance and Administration Committee
and Construction and Facilities Committee were established whilst Executive
Committee were replaced to better leveraging Board Members' expertise to
support the Cyberport's latest strategic directions and Cyberport expansion
project.
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Each of these Committees has specific written terms of reference, which
set out in detail their respective authorities and responsibilities. The terms of
reference of all Board Committees are reviewed from time to time in the light
of the Company’s evolving operational, business and development needs.

Attendance records of each individual member of the Board during the
Year are shown on page 85 of the Annual Report.

All Committees are accountable to the Board for their recommendations
and decisions. The meeting processes of the Board Committees follow closely
those of the Board. The interface between the Board and Board Committees
are:

All Board Members may attend any Committee meetings as observers

Board Members are free to access the papers of any Committee meetings
through the Company Secretary

Full minutes of Committee meetings are sent to Board Members for
information

The following sets out details of Board Committees, principal duties and
key matters considered or resolved during the Year.

Executive Committee
(dissolved on 1 April 2020)

The Executive Committee (“Excom”) is responsible for monitoring the
performance of the Company and ensuring that the Company has been
operating in consistency with the corporate missions and the annual budget/
business plan as approved by the Board.

Principal duties:

Exercise the functions and responsibilities of the Board between regular
Board meetings

Serve as a sounding board for the Chairman of the Board in the
leadership and oversight of the Company’s business and affairs

Help coordinate the activities among Board Committees

Review and approve the Company's policies

Oversee the annual budget

Monitor the execution of the Company's strategic plans and the operations
of all business units of the Company

Plan and allocate resources, human, financial and otherwise, for the
execution and implementation of the approved business plans and
corporate development strategies
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Key matters considered/resolved:

Development of the Company

Mid-Year review

Management accounts and reports

Company'’s policies

Leasing strategy

Appointment and oversight of senior management
Strategic cooperative agreements

Material tenders, programmes, projects and contracts

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee ("AC") is responsible for overseeing and reviewing
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control, risk management system,
regulatory compliance, and the Company's internal audit function. It is
responsible for overseeing the integrity of the Group's financial statements
and the application of financial reporting principles, and the Company’s
relationship with the external and internal auditors and their independence
assessments.

Principal duties:

Review and endorse audited financial statements for the Board's approval
Make recommendations on the appointment of external auditor, approve
its audit fee and terms of engagement, and oversee the Company’s
relations with the external auditor

Review accounting policies

Make recommendations on the appointment of internal auditor, approve
its consultancy fee and terms of engagement

Oversee internal controls, financial controls, risk management system
and internal audit function

Report on matters in relation to corporate governance practices

Key matters considered/resolved:

Annual audited financial statements
External auditor’s report, objectivity and effectiveness of audit process

Revised and prospective changes to accounting standards

Annual corporate governance, risk management and internal control
review

Annual internal audit report

Set up Internal Audit Charter

Internal audit job plan

Amendment on procurement and finance policies
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Entrepreneurship Committee

The Entrepreneurship Committee (“EC") is responsible for overseeing
the administration and management of the start-up and entrepreneurship
programmes and events implemented by the Company, such as the Cyberport
Incubation Programme (“CIP"), the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund ("CCMF"),
the Esports Industry Facilitation Scheme and the Cyberport Accelerator
Support Programme. During the Year, the EC held three meetings only while
one meeting scheduled in February 2020 was cancelled due to the outbreak of
COVID-19 epidemic.

Principal duties:

Oversee the administration and management of the start-up and
entrepreneurship programmes and events implemented by the Company
Monitor and review the operational or financial plans and proposals,
administrative matters, business directions and strategies in relation to
the following three aspects:

- Sparking creative ideas through the CCMF Scheme

- Nurturing technology start-ups through the CIP

- Boosting technology start-ups’ fundraising capability

Approve the appointment and composition of the Entrepreneurship
Committee Advisory Group (“ECAG”) which comprises venture capitalists,
business executives, technology industry professionals, academics, and
trade association members

Approve applications for the start-up and entrepreneurship programmes
of the Company

Monitor and review the progress of the start-ups of the programmes

Key matters considered/resolved:

Overseas/Mainland Market Development Support Scheme

Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme

Esports and Digital Entertainment Programmes

Technology Talent Admission Scheme

Cyberport University Partnership Programme

CIP

CCMF

Cyberport Greater Bay Area Young Entrepreneurship Programme
(formerly known as Cyberport Guangdong-Hong Kong Young
Entrepreneur Programme)

Changes for the composition of ECAG

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

TEEREST

TEERSZEGEEHERHAQTMBETE
BRI RERCEERFAI T ZITEHLER
=8 BF Ngu5EEasEL ~ N8SBal =il
B IBRITESESE & M8EEMNES
Betdl) c RAFE > bEHERE @%ﬁ?:
NG RENR2020F28 BTN RRIBE M
WARFHEIBMECH °

TERSE
ERHAANBMETHSEYRIEERDPE
BRHE R EHZITHAEESEE
R KA AR N3RS e 755t
BREERE  TTHEE £ SR &RERE

- BBHEBREMEERSZHERE

- BIBIEBIEEEIRERRAIRE

- REREYVRIEESEEDEE
BEMCEEEEBENENRNESRE &
REBRAIRERR BRITHAE » B
REEANL  BEREZHENES

BERAATZEVAEEREEERESEN
EEEE]
ERKRRF2RABNYRIERERES

BEERANTEERE:
BN P T 5 HE [ T A
B INREE TR E
EREG kBSR4 58]
BH AT AIREHE]

HHEE - KESIEBHE
YIS BIEE 2
%ﬁ%maﬂﬂgﬁ

EEEJ%EJ@J)

P A R RARERVAR L

Macro Fund Investment Committee

The Macro Fund Investment Committee ("MFIC") is responsible for
overseeing the administration, management and overall performance of the
Cyberport Macro Fund ("CMF") and approval of the CMF related investments.
The CMF, with an initial size of HK$200 million, aims to provide seed to Series
A stage funding to Cyberport digital entrepreneurs ("DE") to assist them to
accelerate, and to promote the development of the venture capital ecosystem
for DE in Hong Kong. The CMF is an investment fund which targets to
co-invest with other private and public investors in the Cyberport DE.

Principal duties:

Review and approve CMF related investments recommendations from
Management
Oversee administration, management and overall performance of the CMF

Monitor and advise on the operation of the CMF

Key matters considered/resolved:

Review on CMF investment portfolio
CMF applications
CMF follow-on application

Remuneration and People Committee

The Remuneration and People Committee ("RC" and formerly known as
Remuneration Committee) is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on organisational structure and policies on staffing, remuneration,
employment, discipline and dismissal, with reference to the Company’s overall
goals and objectives.

Principal duties:

Review staffing, remuneration and employment policies and strategies
Advise the Board on staff-related issues, including annual corporate goals
and performance measures, grading and pay structure, variable pay and
retirement schemes

Review the criteria for assessing employee performance and make
recommendations to the Board

Review the salary increase and annual performance bonus for the senior
executives and general staff, and make recommendations to the Board
Board approves the annual plan and delegate RC to review the
performance of the C-levels management of the Company, with reference
to the Board's approved Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs") and
objectives
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Key matters considered/resolved: RESZBANETERIE Meeting Attendance BEHEL R
i i B T ENEF| A G5 =% N
Annual review of staff remuneration A EITM&H%JE?EE@HW - A summary of meeting attendance of Board Members in meetings of the 2019481 H 202063831 H B BLE & »
Annual corporate performance assessment and award of variable pay for - FEBERRFFGE I ShH M Board and Committees for the financial year from 1 April 2019 to 31 March EEERENESRREEEE NG S HETR
staff o 2020 is provided in the following table. BERTIN T -
Corporate goals and performance measurements - EEERRRGESE
2019/20 performance review of C-levels management and their variable - FAEAREBEIEER2019/20FENRBERE T -
HENET TR .
o few of the AR o BEEER e
N Bl RABLREY
ay structure review of the Company ® o Mestings Board Excom AC  hEER  BlES )
Staff engagement and retention - BIZEKER - %35 4rZEe  ENEEg E58 58 5288
a . A A =] =] ) =} =} =] =]
2020/21 manpower plan for new Cyberport expansion project team - PRETEEAIERE ST EI89IE B B B H1572020/21
FEEASE Board Members =l
. . . N N = Lee George LAM (Chairman) HxE (2E) 44 44 - - 1/2 -
Construction and Facilities Committee BRRENESE
(established on 1 April 2020) (202048 1 HFERYAL) Karen CHAN REE 4fh - 1/2 - - 3/4
e ) Philip CHAN® RER" 2/k - - 2/3 - -
The Construction and Facilities Committee ("CFC") was established on 1 BRERFEZEZN2020F481HKIL > &
April 2020 and is responsible for monitoring and overseeing the capital works BEHEMEEEATREMAEE « REEIEKIE Duncan CHIU IBER 3/ 4/ 22 - - i/
related matters, facilities management and related consultancy services. RAFEABRTS Annie CHOI® (including @0 (BEh 3/3 3/3 - - - 3/3
attendance by alternate) BIERLE)
Principal duties: FERSE /
- s - Humphrey CHOI® B0 44 44 2/2 - - 3/4
Approve or recommend the capital works projects (including new - BHARTETHNEARTIZEE (B1FHE Py s / / /
development, re-development and construction) to be undertaken by the B~ BERINEREE) URAABMENH LAU Chun-kong 2RI 4/4 24 22 - - 44
[ ' it 5 TR SaFtIbiR (2 -
Company and the modality for facilities management of the Company's MEEIENEARS HET IR R NG Kot — Wi i i ” i i
premises
Endorse and recommend the planning and development parameters for -+ RAMEZRBEMEAIENRERERS Millie NG ¥ MES 11 il - - - 1
new capital projects including but not limited to master development B BEEARRNRMAERRFE - K5 5 Victor N6 Jr— 3 i 0 . 0 i
plan, design, programme, budget and facilities provisions and related B~ FEE R RAER A BRRRTE
headcount requirementg Charleston S‘Nm %Eﬁmﬁ[s\’ 3/4 - - 2/3 - A/ll
Approve the award, variations/claims and commercial settlement of - %T&EE@%ZK\IE :%Q %féﬁlﬁ%)ﬁ’z*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ Hendrick SIN 3 o ] ) 3 22 .
contracts for capital works, facilities management works and related HRBENENZMIT BT/ REREES
consultancy services ] Rosana WONG R 3/h - 1/2 33 - -
Monitor the progress and control the expenditure of capital works - SERBEARTIREBEEUKXEHBET ZEE Eric YEUNG ¥ 22 m . . 13 : m
projects, and facilities management matters KB ER S
Review and approve the capital works and facilities management related - 15 BEBHEARTIZ KR MAERAEER Average Attendance Rate PR 8L.6% 87.5% 85.7% 76.2% 83.3% 89.5%
policies
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Finance and Administration Committee ﬂ’fﬁ&ffﬁéé = (1) Prof Philip CHAN and Mr Humphrey CHOI retired as Board members and ceased to (1) BRIES#US R E B AL BN 202043831 BAREE
(established on 1 April 2020) (2020548 1 B#ERLIL) be the respective Board Committees members with effect from 31 March 2020. EFZRME UABEIRSEEZEETEZESR
e
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The Finance and Administration Committee ("FAC") was established on 1 M B RATHZE BB 202060481 BRI & (2) Ms Annie CHOI and her alternate, Mr Davey CHUNG was appointed as Board  (2) ZRELZLtREBFEEGELEER2019F75830H

April 2020 and is responsible for monitoring and overseeing the finance and B ERKEERAB MM RITEEHE ©
administration aspects of the Company.
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member, Excom member and RC member with effect from 30 July 2019.

(3) Mrs Millie NG and her alternate, Mr Davey CHUNG was appointed as Board member,  (3) {BIER % R EBEEMELEN2019FE4812H

Principal duties: TERSF Excom member and RC member with effect from 12 April 2019 and resigned as REZEREERINE - PITEESLZERFMK

Approve any budgeted expenditures, commitments and payments by the
Company

Decide and approve appropriate action in response to any unplanned
matters or approve any unbudgeted expenditures, commitments and
payments

Approve the annual Key Performance Indicators in relation to finance
matters

Review and approve the corporate policies including leasing,
procurement, finance, administration, marketing and IT

Review resources for the execution and implementation of the approved
business plans and corporate development strategies
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Board member and ceased to be the respective Board Committees members with
effect from 30 July 2019.

Mr Victor NG was appointed as Board member with effect from 1 April 2019 and was

appointed as AC member and MFIC member with effect from 30 May 2019.

Dr Charleston SIN was appointed as Board member with effect from 1 April 2019
and was appointed as EC member and RC member with effect from 30 May 2019.

Mr Eric YEUNG was appointed as Board member with effect from 1 April 2019 and
was appointed as EC member and RC member with effect from 30 May 2019.
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Meeting Procedure

The Board and Committees convene meetings on a regular basis. Special
meetings will be held as and when necessary. Management circulates
papers prior to the respective meetings to provide members adequate
information in a timely manner to facilitate their deliberation of the issues
and decision-making. The respective Board/Committee Secretaries record
the major points of discussion, recommendations, decisions and action
items arising from the meetings. Outstanding matters are followed up by
the relevant departments, and progress updates are reported at subsequent
Board/Committee meetings.

Company Secretary

All Board Members have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and Board activities are
efficiently and effectively conducted. To this end, the Company Secretary
facilitates the Board and Management to adhere to Board processes as
updated from time to time, and the provision of sufficient information to the
Board by Management.
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Management and Staff

Management and staff, led by the Company's CEO, are responsible
for managing the Company’'s day-to-day operations and implementing the
strategies and directions determined by the Board. The performance of
Management is reviewed with reference to the KPIs and objectives approved
by the Board. The annual emoluments of the Company's five highest paid
employees by band are disclosed under note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 146.

Guidance on the ethical behaviour of the Company has been well defined
in the Company's employee code of conduct and business ethics (the "Code").
From time to time, the Code will be reviewed and fine-tuned, covering such
issues as prevention of bribery, conflict of interest, acceptance of gifts and
advantages, handling of confidential information and preservation of secrecy,
intellectual property, and outside business or employment. ICAC is invited
to give briefings on prevention of bribery and conflict of interest to the
employees of the Company on a regular basis. Staffs are also reminded of the
need for compliance with the Code from time to time.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for internal control of the Company and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Company's internal control system comprises
a set of comprehensive policies and standards.

The Company aims to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
and enhance transparency and accountability. The external and internal audit
systems are instrumental in this mission.

External Audit

Ernst & Young was appointed as the Group's external auditor to conduct
the audit of its financial statements. The Audit Committee is responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment,
removal and remuneration of the external auditor.

The main purpose of the external audit is to provide independent
assurance to the Board and shareholders that the annual financial statements
of the Group are fairly stated. The external auditor plays an important
independent role in expressing an opinion on the financial statements based
on their audit, and meets with the Audit Committee to discuss the nature
and scope of the audit prior to the commencement of the work if necessary
and to report on findings. The external auditor also reports internal control
recommendations identified as part of the audit together with management
responses, if any.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company's external auditor, Messrs. Ernst & Young for audit services was
approximately HK$453,000 (2019: HK$521,448) and for non-audit services was
approximately HK$8,000 (2019: HK$8,000).

Internal Audit

The internal audit is primarily responsible for reviewing the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal control procedures and monitoring compliance
with them. The Company has outsourced its internal audit function to an
independent professional advisory firm to monitor the Company's internal
governance and provide a basis for the Board to assess the risk management
and internal control system maintained and operated by Management. During
the Year, the Board has approved the Company to set up its internal audit
team which would be responsible for the internal audit function starting from
June 2020 onwards.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities
for ensuring effective systems of internal control and compliance relating to
financial reporting, and in meeting its financial reporting obligations.

Further, the Audit Committee directly oversees the work performed by
the internal auditor. Independent reviews of financial, business and functional
operations and activities have been conducted with a focus on higher risk
areas of the Company. The internal audit plan is reviewed and agreed by
the Audit Committee in advance. Each year, the Audit Committee reviews
the results of the internal audit and evaluates the impact of the findings
and the proposed management action plans, and verifies the adequacy and
effectiveness of the mitigating controls.

Delegation of Authority

The authority of the Board and the levels of authority delegated to the
Committees and Management is clearly defined and documented in the
Delegation of Authority Policy. Such delegation of authority is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that it meets the business and operational needs.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

B ZE2020F3A31H IEEE > MBETIREKRIE
B REEN LT AABINEZEEIZ RS
STHEME ST 2 B0 BI49 2453,00078 75 (20194F ©
521,448787T) K28,0007 7T (20194F : 8,000/7T) ©

REBES
RBBESFETEEERIIBEEEFES

HREBMRN  LERETESKERMAIZRH
17 o RABRAMBTBIEIIN T —RIBIFFE
AANE > BUBERAABNRINELR  IRE

BRI EEERFZIRAITRREERRA
MEERAMOVER - REAFE > EFREHESR
NBRIAEBESTEE G E2020F 6B EEERN
ERESTEAE o

B EEE

BHEEGRPEERETHRE > BRER
RIS EESRAE R 2 OB BRI & MBI AE B B
e > YBTHMBSEREM o

s > REPEF Iz TIFREZEEHE
5B o WESESHEIBL A AR RIS  EBEIEM
BEBBUNEFLEHTRSRERE D ET
BIUE - NBI BT HBRALKBILZETER
kAR - BALZEEGSFERABBEFER - ¥
HEARABNEEREEEEECRHEFE
W ZR L BTGB R D R 5 R AR R -

RIERIE
EXERNBERARTEZEGREEEIH

REBHRE > WP EBREER - ZABEHR

WA RRERIE » URREESEBREFRE -

Avoidance of Conflicts of Interest

The Company has established policies and procedures to manage actual
or potential conflicts of interest of its staff. Staff working in sensitive areas
are required to adhere to job-specific rules on the avoidance of conflicts of
interest in carrying out their duties.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company has a formal whistleblowing policy in place to encourage
and guide its staff to raise serious concerns internally in a responsible
manner, without any risk of retribution. The Company also encourages other
stakeholders to raise concerns, in confidence, about suspected misconduct,
malpractice or irregularities in any matters related to the Company.

Transparency

The Company reports annually to the Information Technology and
Broadcasting Panel of the Legislative Council regarding the work of Cyberport
in nurturing the Information and Communications Technology Ecosystem in
Hong Kong, including its financial performance.

To enhance transparency and openness, the Company voluntarily
discloses its compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code") as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The individual attendance records of Board Members at the Board and
Committee meetings is also reported on page 85.

With a view to maintain open and transparent communication with
external stakeholders, the Company continues to connect with the community
by taking advantage of multiple channels and tools. These include the
official website, monthly e-newsletters, press briefings and interviews, and
participation in a variety of local and overseas exhibitions and conferences.
Annual reports and information on our programmes and offerings are
disclosed on our website for public access. The Company also makes use of
social media such as Facebook, LinkedIn and Instagram for promotions and
information dissemination.
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Corporate Governance Practices

Although the Company is not required to comply with the CG Code, we

have applied its principles and voluntarily complied with the code provisions

therein generally except for those as set out below:

A4

A4

AL21to A4L3
A4L2ZEAL3

Ab5.1to AS5
AB.1ZEALD

Code Provisions

FRIEX

Non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election.

FFRTESFRRIEEEHESE L BEE
fFo

These code provisions deal with the appointment
of directors to fill a casual vacancy, appointment
of independent non-executive directors and
retirement by rotation of directors.

BLEFARXEBIESLUERERZTH - &
BIIERITESE > UWEENHERTIAR o

These code provisions deal with the nomination
committee.

BETARNEREZZEGAR -
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Reason for Deviation

REERE

This provision is not applicable to the Company.
Directors are appointed generally for a term of two
years or a term as specified in the appointment letter.
Directors are not subject to re-election but may be re-
appointed by the shareholders.

EBEXATERRARAT - %%E’J&Hﬂ—’x‘ﬁjﬁﬁ
FHRBESZERMIEEEHN - EFERZER
£ BR]HRREREIE -

These provisions are not applicable to the
Company. Pursuant to the Company's Articles
of Association, Directors are appointed by the
shareholders.

BEGRXTEARERT - REFARFZ (12
MR > BEFEHRREE

These provisions are not applicable to the
Company since Directors are appointed by the
shareholders.

BERXATEARERE  RERTIHERRE
£

Ab.4h

Ab.4

E11to E15 & E21

E11EE1L5KE21

Code Provisions

FRIEX

Directors must comply with obligations under the
Model Code for Securities Transactions and the
Board should establish guidelines for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the
securities of the Company.

BEENAETETESR W (RESFA) > ™
EERNEMRAMEEEEATGEEEERTS
5l o

The Remuneration Committee should make
recommendation to the Board on policy and
package for all remuneration of directors.

HMZE SR A ESE M E B AR
BOEZRELREZ

These code provisions deal with the proceedings
for annual general meetings.

BETRIEARREFAGHIEFHR

Continuing Evolution of Corporate Governance

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, enhance our corporate

governance practices in light of the regulatory requirements.
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Reason for Deviation

TREERE

This provision is not applicable because all of
the Company’s shares are beneficially owned
by the HKSAR Government and are not publicly
traded.

BEEXTERRART » AEABMERAI
HEBREBNES » T AMEARES -

This provision is not applicable to the Company
because Board Members do not receive any
remuneration.

BEEXTERARARAR  HEZERMEELTI
R faIErEN o

These provisions are not applicable to the
Company as the Company is wholly owned by the
HKSAR Government via The Financial Secretary
Incorporated and Resolutions in Writing in lieu of
annual general meetings is adopted.
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Report of the Directors and
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RESHREMBRE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The Group's loss for the year and the Group's financial position at 31 March
2020 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 188.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Lee George LAM (Chairman)

Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Duncan CHIU

LAU Chun-kong

LING Kar-kan

Hendrick SIN

Rosana WONG Wai-man

Victor NG Chi-keung (appointed on 1 April 2019)
Charleston SIN Chiu-shun (appointed on 1 April 2019)
Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing (appointed on 1 April 2019)
Annie CHOI Suk-han (appointed on 30 July 2019)
Christopher CHAQ Yu-hang (appointed on 1 April 2020)
Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han (appointed on 1 April 2020)
Michael LEUNG Kin-man (appointed on 1 April 2020)
CHEUK Wing-hing (resigned on 12 April 2019)

Millie NG KIANG Mei-nei (appointed on 12 April 2019

and resigned on 30 July 2019)

Philip CHAN Ching-ho (retired on 31 March 2020)
Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching (retired on 31 March 2020)
Davey CHUNG Pui-hong (alternate director to Annie CHOI Suk-han,
appointed on 30 July 2019)

(alternate director to Millie NG KIANG Mei-nei,

appointed on 12 April 2019 and resigned on 30 July 2019)
(alternate director to CHEUK Wing-hing, resigned on 12 April 2019)

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of Association in
connection with the retirement of directors by rotation, all existing Directors
continue in office for the following year.
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Report of the Directors

EEFHRE

Directors (continued)

The persons who were directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during
the year and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) were:

Peter YAN King-shun
LEE Kok-ming
WONG Kiu-hei (alternate director to Peter YAN King-shun)

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company'’s directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company or any of the Company's holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Meridien Cyberport, the facilities
management agreement and the system operation contract, no other
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, the permitted indemnity
provision as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for the benefit of the directors of the Company was in force. The Company
has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the directors’ liabilities
in respect of any legal actions against its directors arising out of corporate
activities.
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Auditor

Ernst & Young retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lee George LAM
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 July 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
ERVR ER ClIE =

EY::

Independent auditor’s report

To the member of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
EERHSAEEBRAR

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 100 to 188, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the report of the
Directors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 July 2020

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

SAS L
Iz\‘/—r\l:l Em%

Year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z2020F3831HIEEE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

reEEmBmR

Year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE2020E3831HIEEE

2020
HK$
BT

2019
HK$
BT

2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
M 5E BT BT
REVENUE WA 4 478,264,533 509,547,500
Other net income HUg A F4E 4 35,731,925 47,335,291
513,996,458 556,882,791

EXPENSES BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION RetAREm T H KR

ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND IEZZH

DEPRECIATION
Building management expenses YHEEL H (159,133,049) (151,254,179)
Staff costs I=RN%:N 5 (102,402,072) (101,615,660)
Government rent and rates AR Ry = B 9 (16,881,122) (14,509,109)
Other operating expenses Hh&&E 7 H (82,662,362) (100,046,060)
Finance costs H%E A 6 (154,787) (2,834)

(361,233,392) (367,427,842)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE PUBLIC RetABmEmES T H KR

MISSION ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND &2 EEET

DEPRECIATION 152,763,066 189,454,949
Public mission activities expenses NREEIHZH 10 (153,418,150) (133,357,811)
Fair value loss on a debt investment at BARBES AEGZ

fair value through profit or loss BHEREANEEESE (2,305,517) =
OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT ReHFERNLZE (5518)

BEFORE DEPRECIATION aFl (2,960,601) 56,097,138
Depreciation e (137,511,547) (132,648,616)
LOSS BEFORE TAX IR ARSI 6 (140,472,148) (76,551,478)
Income tax FrigiR 1" - -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREIE (140,472,148) (76,551,478)
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME

Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

- Changes in fair value of equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

FAER

Hth2mE (5518) =

RERAEIEERm o EERT
ZHM2E (BH8),
—EERANBES AEM

EEWEZREREZ

AR EEED

FREMSE (BHE)
Y (HERHRIE)

FREEEERER

(140,472,148)

(6,492,498)

(76,551,478)

14,569,725

(6,492,498)

14,569,725

(146,964,646)

(61,981,753)

BIhEH 2019/20 2R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

rrEMBRR iR e MR

As at 31 March 2020 72202053531H As at 31 March 2020 $2202053831H

2020 2019 2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$ Notes HK$ HK$
MisE BT BT ibgzd BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREas
Property, plant and equipment YN MR REEE 13 2,834,964,584 2,869,506,312 Development maintenance fund LRMEEES 22 390,999,654 397,612,582
Right-of-use assets RS E 14(a) 6,606,435 = Deferred rental payable EIEFE - 222,775
Deferred rental receivables IR AR & 7,274,144 8,503,155 Lease liabilities HEaE 14(b) 4,955,359 -
Cyberport Macro Fund investments EIEENESAIXESKSE 15 99,768,100 54,866,109
Investments in securities s 16 84,074,954 70,830,649 Total non-current liabilities JEMEN B EHAREE 395,955,013 397,835,357
Prepayments and deposits SN R 18 22,999,823 27,755,272
Net assets BEFE 3,341,028,686 3,481,380,404
Total non-current assets IERSEESEE 3,055,688,040 3,031,461,497
EQUITY W
CURRENT ASSETS hEEE Share capital B& 23 300,000,002 300,000,002
ERERES P 319,821 337.411 Reserves [E= 3,041,028,684 3,181,380,402
Trade receivables FEUBR R 17 19,780,948 10,986,266
Prepayments, deposits and ST « B R Total equity 1R 4BEE 3,341,028,686 3,481,380,404
other receivables HAuhrEWEIa 18 26,514,196 20,999,761
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries A EEN NG R 27(b) 3,293,234 261,000
Investments in securities BEEE 16 708,251,929 680,463,448
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHET 19 417,576,079 647,997,733
Lee George LAM Victor NG Chi-keung
Total current assets MENE AR 1,175,736,207 1,361,045,619 e st
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaR pirector pirector
Trade payables FE(TAR TR 41,976,221 28,514,375 _— LR
Other payables and accruals HMEARIERETE A 20 101,432,350 148,158,795
Rental and other deposits e REMTE 21 94,797,218 82,132,286
Amount due to the immediate eI EBERABRIE
holding company 27(b) 254,293,578 254,293,578
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary B —RERRMNBASRIE 27(b) - 192,321
Lease liabilities HEaE 14(b) 1,941,181 -
Total current liabilities BB EAREE 494,440,548 513,291,355
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEBEFE 681,295,659 847,754,264
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEAARERREHAE 3,736,983,699 3,879,215,761
Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report RS 2019/20 1R 103
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rEREmEER

Year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z2020F3831HIEEE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meRERER

Year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE2020E3831HIEEE

Share Capital Fairvalue  Accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve losses equity
A BAfiE ARBEERE EithE Enas
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
Mzt BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2018 #2018E481H 2 5,366,157,807 - (2124211676 3241886,135
Loss for the year FREE - - - (76,551,478) (76,551,478)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMZENS |
- Changes in fair value of equity investments  — ISR RA R BE AHM
designated at fair value through other 2EYEZREAREZ
comprehensive income, net of tax ARBELE (NRRE) = = 14,569,725 = 14,569,725
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREMmEIRAE - - 14,569,725 (76,551,478) (61,981,753)
Subtotal et 2 5,366,157,807 14,569,725 (2,200823,152)  3,179,904,382
Issue of shares KT 23 300,000,000 - - - 300,000,000
Transfer from development maintenance HEBEBESEEE
fund to capital reserve BARE 2 - 1,476,022 - = 1,476,022
At 31 March 2019 and at 1 April 2019 12019538318 Rk
R2019648 18 300000002 5367633829° 14569725 (2,200,823,152)* 3,481,380,60
Loss for the year FREE - - - (140,472,148)  (140,472,148)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMEZAESE .
- Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ —JSERA A BE AHM
designated at fair value through other 2EYEZREAREZ
comprehensive income, net of tax ARBEES (NRFRE) - - (6,492,498) - (6,492,498)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEELE - - (6,492,498)  (140,472,148)  (146,964,646)
Subtotal INat 300,000,002  5,367,633,829 8,077,227 (2,341,295,300)  3,334,415,758
Transfer from development maintenance HEBEEESEEE
fund to capital reserve BAME 2 - 6,612,928 - - 6,612,928
At 31 March 2020 #2020F3A8318 300,000,002  5,374,246,757* 8,077,227  (2,341,295,300)* 3,341,028,686

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of *
HK$3,041,028,684 (2019: HK$3,181,380,402) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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ZEREREEFREMER IR 2GS 30410286845 7T
(20194 : 3,181,380,402387T) ©

2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
M35 BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KREEHMZAERE
Loss before tax FRIRRIE 1B (140,472,148) (76,551,478)
Adjustments for: HEE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment YN S MR MR EITE b 135,595,484 132,648,616
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREENE 6 1,916,063 -
Realisation of government grants HTEEhE&&IR (4,297,395) (2,000,000)
Interest income from financial assets at PRSP A BR 2 7
amortised cost, net of amortisation BEN S WA R
of premium e 4 (3,376,292) (9,574,292)
Interest income from investments at fair BARBEFAEBRZ
value through profit or loss KREFSUWA 4 (20,935,716) (16,411,555)
Fair value loss/(gain) on a debt investment BARBESTAEGRZ
at fair value through profit or loss BHREEARNEE
B8 (Wa) 2,305,517 (340,024)
Net realised/unrealised losses/(gains) on BARBESAEGZ
investments at fair value through HEESIR REHE
profit or loss B8 (KR) 358 4 3,090,074 (3,978,725)
Interest income on bank deposits SRIT IR B WA 4 (9,146,004) (6,601,200)
Impairment of trade receivables FEWERFRE 6 48,507 48,658
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables FEUWER TR B[] 6 (60,908) (803,259)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWZE ~ BB REE
plant and equipment, net IBEZ B8 358 6 153,327 744,357
Finance costs B E R 154,787 2,834
Revaluation losses/(gains) on investments KBEBEEE,(kE) 996,824 (248,646)
(34,027,880) 16,935,286
Decrease in deferred rental receivables IEIEFEUS AR & R 1,229,011 3,886,524
Decrease in inventories Z5RED 17,590 202,398
Increase in trade receivables FE AR FRIT N (8,782,281) (1,807,169)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FERRIB ~ e R HEAM
other receivables FEUSRRIEE N (16,100,683) (22,907,376)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due B EE NN
from fellow subsidiaries HIE () E (3,032,234) 638,937
Increase in trade payables FE(TBRRNIE AN 13,487,886 194,394
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HithrE (R IE R fE 5T
and accruals & (RL) /18 (47,875,990) 48,735,269
(Decrease)/increase in an amount due L RIRMB AT
to a fellow subsidiary IE Gieb),/ 1m (192,321) 192,321
Increase/(decrease) in rental and other deposits f& R Efhigs1Em, ~ Gil) 12,664,932 (3,067,709)
Decrease in deferred rental payable EIEFE SR - (46,900)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &g (FrA)/ EXzRE (82,611,970) 42,955,975
Interest on lease liabilities HESRNE (154,787) =
Net cash flows (used in)/from KEGEE (FRA) B2
operating activities REREREE (82,766,757) 42,955,975

BHES 2019/20 & 3R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meRERER

Year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z2020F3831HIEEE

Notes

MysE

2020
HK$

2019
HK$

BT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of items of property,
plant and equipment

Prepayment and deposits paid for the purchase
of items of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

Deposit paid for the purchase of Cyberport
Macro Fund investment

Purchase of investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Purchase of financial assets at amortised cost

Proceeds from sale and redemption of financial
assets at amortised cost

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale and redemption of
investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Interest income received from:
- Financial assets at amortised cost

- Investments at fair value through
profit or loss

- Bank deposits

Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with
original maturity of more than three months

Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

REEHZHERE
BAYE - B RRHFHER

BAYE - B RRHFEE
PR TR TR R e
BABEBREAXEDSRE

BAMEBREEES
REIIRE
BARANBESARmZ
B&E
BAZEHE AT IR
ERVEE

HRE BRI HEM AR
ERYE EPTSRE
REWE eSS RkrEEE
PRISRVIAE
HERBOIZANBESA
B 2 R EFFIFRUE

BUFIBHA :
— A BR SR EE
—BAnBESFAREZ
E =
— IRITER
BEHEA=EE U >
EHRERURL (8 n)

REFEPRS(FRA)
REMNEFER

(96,641,012)

(10,888,302)
(39,570,276)

(395,718,342)

(14,331,839)

(63,430,752)

(12,940,534)
(7,866,009)

(14,129,730)

(338,154,071)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maRTRER

Year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE2020E3831HIEEE

151,188,111 281,062,645
- 2,000
213,575,419 307,169,990
5,477,885 13,534,168
25,562,253 10,284,236
8,712,784 6,601,200
358,873,875 (358,873,875)
206,240,556 (176,740,732)

2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
M35 BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MBEMZIRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRDEREEIE 23 - 300,000,000
Government grants received B EFEE 6,853,195 1,679,965
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZAEED 25(b) (1,874,773) =
Capital element of finance lease MEREREENRE LD
rental payments - (1,577,476)
Interest element of finance lease RMERAERSNHRA S
rental payments - (2,834)
Net cash flows from financing activities B RIS IRESRE R 4,978,422 300,099,655
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERREESEBEEIEIMFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 128,452,221 166,314,898
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYzRERIREEEIER
beginning of year 289,123,858 122,808,960
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZRERIAEEEEE
AT THE END OF YEAR 417,576,079 289,123,858
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH RERREZEEBEGRIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances as stated in the FEMBRRERMIIRER
consolidated statement of financial position RITEEF 19 417,576,079 647,997,733
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity REERFRIIHAEA=EA
of more than three months when acquired MU EZ IR ERER 19 - (358,873,875)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FeaRERERMIIRER
consolidated statement of cash flows REEEIEH 417,576,079 289,123,858
BIES 2019/20 &R
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

Corporate information

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered
office of the Company as at 31 March 2019 was located at Units 1102-
1104, Level 11, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong and was
subsequently changed to Level 6, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong with effect from 6 January 2020.

The principal activity of the Company is to support and promote
innovation and technology development in Hong Kong through the
creation of a comprehensive ecosystem of digital technology companies.

With a vision to build Cyberport as a main force in developing the
digital technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong (the
“Vision"), the public mission of the Company are anchored on three
strategic directions:

= Nurtures youth and start-ups by providing comprehensive
entrepreneurship programmes and early stage funding;

= Scales digital technology companies with Cyberport's global
network; and

= Connects enterprises, SMEs and the public in fostering digital
economy.

Under the Group’s relentless pursuit of excellence, the Group takes
a pragmatic and comprehensive approach in realising its Vision. To
ensure the line-up of services is dynamic and flexible in meeting the
needs of budding technology entrepreneurs, investor community and
industry talents, the Company actively builds strong partnerships with
leaders from technology industry, academia, research institutes and
professional bodies.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Company has launched the Cyberport Macro Fund (‘CMF")
for Hong Kong-based digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size
of HK$200 million, the CMF aims to accelerate the growth of digital
technology start-ups. As an investment fund that targets to co-invest in
Cyberport digital entrepreneurs with other private and public investors
as seed to Series A stage funding, the CMF also aims to encourage the
development of a venture capital ecosystem for start-ups in Hong Kong.
Further details of the investments made up to the end of the reporting
period are included in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate information (continued)

The Group has established various teams (“Operating Teams”) to
achieve the above public mission. The expenses incurred by Operating
Teams that contribute to the successful running of the public mission
activities are disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong
Cyberport Development Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and is wholly owned by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR") via The Financial Secretary
Incorporated.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Issued ordinary
Name incorporation share capital
Bia SE A LR BEITLBRAE
Cyberport Macro Fund Limited Hong Kong HK$1
) 187
CMF One Limited Hong Kong HK$1
&B 187
CMF Two Limited Hong Kong HK$1
&E 1787t
CMF Three Limited Hong Kong HK$1
& 187t
CMF Four Limited Hong Kong HK$1
) 17T
CMF Five Limited Hong Kong HK$1
& =
CMF Six Limited Hong Kong HK$1
&5 1E7T
CMF Seven Limited Hong Kong HK$1
B 17
CMF Eight Limited Hong Kong HK$1
) 17T

iR MR RN

REEHR (@)

RER FRAFR D > AEBRCRIZE
B ((2ERRK) - EERBRSRINEMA
AL e E E M AMEBIR S AR & A5 R I
FH10IRER ©

RRBRBBERBERERERLAD (1
BEREMALEBAEBEHTHRE (T&H8
B&) BNEBMEEEE2ERENA
8) 2ER2ERBAR -

BB AR NER
AT ZMBARENT :

Percentage of equity Principal
attributable to the Company activities

EAREEEEE AL TEEH

Direct Indirect
H# i
100 - Investment holding

REZR

= 100 Investment holding

REAZRK

= 100 Investment holding

REZR

= 100 Investment holding

REZRK

= 100 Investment holding

REZR

= 100 Investment holding
REER

= 100 Investment holding

REER

= 100 Investment holding

REZR

= 100 Investment holding
REZR
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

2.1

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, a debt investment
at fair value through profit or loss and equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income which have been measured at
fair value. These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Group.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Group has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Group, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

2.1

AREERE

ZERBYHRERDRBEEBGAER
M2 EBYHREED (EBYBREE
) (BEFMAEEEBYHREEI - FES
STEARERRE) - BERARGHAEAKRESR
(RBMRB MRH - BRI A RNBES AT
ZEREE - RANBESAREZEHR
ERBANBES ARMEEWE 2 RAER
ERRRBESEIN  MBRERTIZELR
FERE - ZEREMBRERUBT (T8
7o) 25 METTEAERZ IS

ReEE
REMBRROEBESADRERBAR (4
TIAER)) REE2020FE3831HIEEE
2B HRE o B AT EMAEEEZNH
BEGZEBE (BEAEEER) - 48
Bk B2 B E S MES 2 Al &0 HRAE
RR A EEREREREAENB AL
WERERZ AT EZLRR EIRTFARE
BEis Wk E A ETHEESHZREENZ
IRFFIER) BF > BIIEISIERIRE o

EXEEEENEREARKRED T ESH
2R EHSALUEN > AERGBHTER
BEERBERUGIEEERHRRES#ER
#7 BE

(a) HEWRESHMKERFEAZEH
25k
(b) EESNZHREEZRERN ; K&

@ FAERZRIRKEERZME -

WEBARNMBRENEARERARZER
SHARA—BI S BRRH - BAF
FECBAEERGEGRE REEETHRS
JIfR - BREREYIREEZIENERLLE
Bk o

2.1

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1

iR MR RN
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 19 and HKAS 28, and
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not

relevant to the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial

statements, the nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs

are described below:

(a)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases - Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet
model to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, except for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either operating
or finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17. For a
sublease arrangement, the classification of the sublease is made
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, instead of by reference to the underlying asset. HKFRS 16
did not have any significant impact on leases where the Group is
the lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of
1 April 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of accumulated losses at 1 April 2019, and the comparative
information for 2019 was not restated and continued to be
reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations.
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(a)

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(continued)
New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset and the
right to direct the use of the identified asset. The Group elected
to use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard
to be applied only to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial
application. Contracts that were not identified as leases under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to
contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 April 2019.

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office
premises, office equipment and information technology facilities.
As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as either
finance leases or operating leases based on the assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the
Group applies a single approach to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for two
elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected on a
lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying
asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term commencing
from 1 April 2019, the Group recognises depreciation (and
impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets and interest
accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(a)

(continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating leases
(continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 were recognised based on the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019 and separately
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position immediately before 1 April 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on
HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the right-of-
use assets separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019:

Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with
a lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application

Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease

Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(a)

(continued)
Financial impact at 1 April 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019
was as follows:
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(a)

(&
20195481 BBIS R &

IR2019F4B1 HIRMB B BRE %
RS 16SRFTELENRZBIT ¢

Increase/(decrease)
120, GRi)
HK$
BT
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets and
increase in total assets RS AN A EELRREIE M 8,238,082
Liabilities afE
Increase in lease liabilities HEaEEM 8,486,897
Decrease in trade payables FE(T AR AR (26,040)
Decrease in deferred rental payable IEEFES TSR (222,775)
Increase in total liabilities B E4REEIE M 8,238,082

The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 reconciled to the operating
lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

R2019F4B 1B 2 E 8 E R 12019938
SIHZ SR EAFELERIOT ¢

HK$
BT
Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 4201943831 A 2 K& A EKIE 10,497,757
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases and &, : BA5SHATH & K FI6RTHER
those leases with a remaining lease term 1202053831 H® 2 Ai#R LE
ended on or before 31 March 2020 ZHEERANEE (1,968,608)
8,529,149
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate 7220194818 Z IN#EFI9iRE
as at 1 April 2019 {EEF=XR 2.18%
Discounted operating lease commitments and 1201948 1B 2 BT IR
lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 HEREREEERE 8,486,897
M5 2019/20 & 3R
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[y =

2.2

2.3

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(b) HK(FRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to
as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The Group determined
that the interpretation did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial
reporting standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework*
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions’
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material’

HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use*
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16
2018-2020 Cycle and HKAS 41¢

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial
reporting standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and acquired substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.
Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other
events that occur on or after the date of first application, the Group will
not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the effects of
interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2020. Early application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 exempts lessees from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic are lease
modifications and allows lessees to account for such rent concessions
as if they were not lease modifications. It applies to covid-19-related
rent concessions that reduce lease payments due on or before 30 June
2021. The amendment does not affect lessors. The amendment is to be
applied retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 June 2020. Early application is permitted, including in
consolidated financial statements not authorised for issue at 4 June
2020. The amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial
reporting standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2020. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, a debt investment at fair value through profit or loss, and equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

0! the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the period

of the lease
Building services and support facilities 10%
Information technology facilities 20%
Centres equipment 20% - 33'/,%
Leasehold improvements 10%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

(b)  Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b)  Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is
a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)
Group as a lessor (continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as a
finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to
which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

Leases (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted
for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of
the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over
the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of
equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates,
if and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

iR MR RN

2.4 FEEFHEREE @

EMEERE (@)

—MRAE ()
FERBSEGHONRAMOAREETME
FEEX - AT > EETIBRT » HAsbsish
BEMEET - ERAMAAEREAREARE
BRTHEMAT » A5 B AR SEAR UK
BESHONE > ARERTIIREREE
REEN - THEENESEREI KOS
HIRTRBEME o

RBIERATR EREER— RS EET
BE o LSt ERIEEEER TR ERE
TR TG REE A Z FEIERR
BRIb

fEER— - ERIAZGERBRBEVIRE
LRI B E LI - 2SR
BERERI2ERRBELERS
B2 e 8

fEER— - EMIEZGEEREBIIE
RLAREREIE ME L IFEE R
BTMEE HBEEREERS
E2MEMEEREZ SHEE

=

==l

fBR= - RBESAPAEEREZER
BE (BAFBEREEER
B) > HEBRABERER2HE
HEEREZ S

BIH5 S 2019/20 F 3R

129



130

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost
(loans and borrowings and payables)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of each reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
For a contract where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Hotel and management services

Revenue from the provision of hotel and management services i

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

S

recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the Group.

Revenue from food and beverage

Revenue from sale of food and beverages is recognised at the point

in time when the control of the assets is transferred to the buyer,

generally upon consumption of the food and beverage items by the

customer.

Other facilities services

Revenue from promotion, additional air-conditioning and chilled water

charge, license fee and other facilities charge is recognised over time

as services are rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and

consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from event and venue fee, vetting and coordination fee,

tenants bus ticket and other premise fee is recognised at the point

in time when customer has obtained control of the service, generally

when the services are rendered.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a

rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Car park fee is recognised when the services are rendered.

Other incidental income and services income are recognised when the

income is entitled and services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective

interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the

estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial

instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Foreign currency transactions

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Group's functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting estimates

The preparation of the Group’'s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs review for impairment of non-financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

The Group reviews certain indicators of potential impairment of these
assets such as reported sales and purchase prices, market demand
and general market conditions. The Group considers “Buildings held for
rental”, "Hotel building” and “Building services and support facilities”
as a portfolio of assets and identifies the cash-generating unit to which
the portfolio of assets belongs by referring to the valuation performed
by independent external valuers, after taking into consideration the net
income allowing for reversionary potential. The assumptions adopted in
the property valuation are based on the market conditions existing at
the end of the reporting period, with reference to current market sales
prices and the appropriate capitalisation rate.

Based on the Group's best estimates, no provision for impairment loss
on the non-financial assets is necessary.

iR MR RN

EXREsHE
RRRAER G BRER > EEERF
FEMBRBA X EERAES
BAREBNZ#E » URHAREEREZH
B~ A5t RIRR - BRRR KA AR
ERE > AISEENHBRANZRZEZEER
BERAEMFHERHEE -

hEtFHERER

EEAN T EMREEEERGREREE
EHERBFR BERARZ AREREER
R EAREMEZG S TEERZRRK
RPTELNT o

FEMEEZRE
SENRETEEZRAEREWRD ZER
WIBWEMER » AEBMEHIFEMEER
BETER -

AERERNRFEES T BT ZRED
2 WIFTRRBE BB « mHRRKE—RT
SR o ANEEER T ER BT ~ DARE
BT R TBFRERIERME {5 —E
BEEMAT > WS RBRAFRKRERENR
2E|IUINELEMZGE X BEZEEE
BB IREELE - MEGEFRRAZ
BRRABERARRTFZHRBKE > L2
ERTHHERRERGBEEARCLEE -

RIEAER REME > BREEESREE
ZBEREFLHEE -

BIH5 S 2019/20 F 3R

137



138

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

Significant accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Investments in securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 on initial classification of
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as financial assets at amortised cost if the Group has
the intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity; or at fair
value through profit or loss if the investments are managed by external
fund managers and their performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, and information about the investments is provided internally on
that basis to the Group's key management.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group evaluates its
intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group
fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for specific
circumstances - for example, selling an insignificant amount close
to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire class as debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The investments would, therefore, be measured at fair value not at
amortised cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
Group engages external fund managers to manage the investment
portfolio which is evaluated and reported internally on a fair value
basis. Accordingly, these investments are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product)
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the financial services, media and retail
sectors, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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Significant accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

The unlisted equity investments and an unlisted debt investment
have been valued based on the recent market transaction prices,
market-based valuation technique and expected cash flows discounted
at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics. The valuations require the Group to make estimates
about expected future cash flows, credit risk, volatility and discount
rates, and to determine the comparable public companies (peers) and
select the price multiple, and hence, they are subject to uncertainty.
The fair values of the unlisted equity investments and an unlisted debt
investment at 31 March 2020 were HK$91,921,406 and HK$7,846,694,
respectively. Further details are included in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors,
such as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from change
or improvements in the provision of services, or from a change in
the market demand for the service output of the asset, the expected
usage of the asset, the expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the
asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar
way. An adjustment of depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives
and/or residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are
different from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.

iR MR RN
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Significant accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as the Group that does not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are
not in the Group's functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such us the
Company's stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report
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Revenue and other net income
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4. IWWABLEAMUIAFEE

AR IR

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZDHET :
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue from contracts with customers EERSHIMA
Income from hotel operation BIEZEUTA 92,786,366 124,922,563
Building management income MEEEBEWA
- Management fee income —BEBWA 89,628,540 89,294,234
- Other facilities income — H =R Halk A 24,104,714 19,159,438
206,519,620 233,376,235
Revenue from other sources HMAREZ WA
Rental income RS UA
Variable lease payments that do not W ABURP R IBIEE T
depend on an index or a rate WEEZ a & E 6,267,562 7,577,207
Other lease payments, including HEN > 81F
fixed payments ERNEN 250,968,235 254,394,380
257,235,797 261,971,587
Car park fee income JAEEWA 14,232,358 13,998,390
Other incidental income Hhmsug A 276,758 201,288
271,744,913 276,171,265
478,264,533 509,547,500
(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from (@) EBEREHNWAZDEWRAER
contracts with customers
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT B
Type of services BRFsEEEY
Income from hotel operation BIEEBEWA
- Room income —ERIA 44,962,542 72,386,629
- Food and beverage income — BRAEREA 47,823,824 52,535,934
Building management income LUES=SETUN
- Management fee income — BEBERA 89,628,540 89,294,234
- Other facilities income — HMERFEUA 24,104,714 19,159,438
Total revenue from contracts with customers & B & 4JUL A 4828 206,519,620 233,376,235
BUREH 2019/20 2R
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e ERRMIEE e M ERRMIEE
4. Revenue and other net income (continued) 4, WABEMGAEER @) 4. Revenue and other net income (continued) 4, WABEMEAEEE @
(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from @) BERSEHARAZTEBAER (b) Performance obligations (continued) (b) RBHEE @
contracts with customers (continued) (#) Management fee income EEBEWA
2020 2019 The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are BHASAENIEHIRFREE SR EERS
HKS HKS rendered. ME1T °
&7 2T Other facilities income Hhsg Ut A
The performance obligation is satisfied over time or at the point BASEREEREER RN IRHARS
e T o IS in time as services are rendered. BEFBAT ©
=3 .
Hong Kong a8 206,519,620 233376235 The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining 12020543 831H > DEEEFIERELQ
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) BT (REBITHEIMBDRERTT) =
Timing of revenue recognition WS A T 220 B which amounted to HK$2,528,683 as at 31 March 2020 (2019: R 5 B 72,528,683 7T (20194 :
Services transferred at a point in time R E— (BRI REEE 2 IR 63,034,579 63,148,412 HK$1,979,225) are expected to be recognised within one year. 1.979.2258 7¢) > IR —F R
1 @
Services transferred over time FE B % 2 RS 143,485,041 170,227,823 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers & FE &S4IUNA4E%E 206,519,620 233,376,235 2020 2019
HK$ HK$
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in TERHIIN AR ESHIFRFESI S ASRS BT BT
the current reporting period that were included in the contract S aEh s IWASEE !
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
Other net income Hg A58
2020 2019 Interest income from financial assets at NI AT E T SR B E
amortised cost, net of amortisation of ZR B » NkRaEE
HKS HKS premium of HK$166,967 §4166,96787T (20194 :
BT BT (2019: HK$1,688,840) 1,688 84078 7T) 3,376,292 9,574,292
Interest income from investments BARBEFAEBGRZ
. . at fair value through profit or loss BEZFBUWA 20,935,716 16,411,555
Revenue recognised that was included R ARSI SN e f .
in contract liabilities at the beginning EEDTA Interest income on bank deposits IRITEAR R EUA 9,146,004 6,601,200
of the reporting period: Rental deposits forfeited RNz BEims - 3,437,237
Income from hotel operation TEEZIEUA 1,979,225 3,302,947 Services income from fellow FRMB AT 2R
subsidiaries (note) WA (FEE) 4,201,654 4,201,654
(b) Performance obligations b) BHEE Net realised/unrealised (losses)/gains BANBESABE Y
on investments at fair value B B8 REIR
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is SR > &Rk . . .
. psp 9 AMAREEAREZ AR through profit or loss (#518) /Wt /P58 (3,090,074) 3,978,725
summarised below: T
Fair value gain on a debt investment WARNBESAEBTDZ
Income from hotel operation T E U A at fair value through profit or loss EEREANBERTR - 340,024
The performance obligation is satisfied over time when services BASIENRIRARGEEEREHERE Foreign exchange differences, net SMEEZERFER (5,096,946) (1.336,452)
are rendered. BT o Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE  MBRLLHE
plant and equipment EIE e - 2,000
Revenue from food and beverages BmREEHEA Bad debts recovered Bl eSS 790,113 3,321,797
The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer BAEARZE R REREE M Reversal of impairment of trade receivables  #[EIfEURBR R~ Bl(E 60,908 803,259
tai trol of th i i i 5 e SR A =] B \
obtains control o e promised goods, being at the point I IEPREREHEE R EEE e B RTRE S 880,000 ~
when the customer consumes the food and beverage at the ) BT o BAHEE BREVEIEET
restaurants. Payment of the transaction is due immediately at B (I35 e Rt 4,528,258 N
the point when the customer consumes the food and beverage.
35,731,925 47,335,291
142 Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report RS 2019/20 1R
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e ERRMIEE
4. Revenue and other net income (continued) 4, WABEHMAEER @)
(b) Performance obligations (continued) (b) REBHEE @
Note: FiHEE
On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, R2000F5H24H » E BB B E &
Pokfulam (the “Residential Portion") was assigned to Hong Kong Cyberport KEAR (ERERAF BEZRK
(Ancillary Development) Limited (“HKCADL"), a fellow subsidiary, by Hong BRAEEEBHES MBER) BRAR
Kong Cyberport Development Holdings Limited (the “immediate holding (THKCADL) 3t H 58 £K #A 8 43 8 79 3 B
company”). Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25 October 2003 89695 EH A —Z0 5 T #h (TMEEZBH) © 1R
entered into between the Company and HKCADL, fixed monthly services ¥ 7K /A 5] BIHKCADLFfT 57 17 H #8 20034
income of HK$125,600 was received from HKCADL commencing from 108250 2 IRFB 1% > A ABMEEND
November 2003 for the provision of services by the Company to facilitate ZEERMARTS > 52003F 11 ARBEA
the operation of the Residential Portion. The fee was revised to HK$200,000 BHKCADLU BX125,6007 7T 2 & & AR 75 Uk
commencing from April 2006 and to HK$261,000 commencing from May A o B20065F 48 F20085F58 L > tLIEUK
2008. The total amount received during the year was HK$3,132,000 (2019: & 9 P& 5] A& & B 200,000 7T K2261,000
HK$3,132,000). BT o AFE B W48 %E 43,132,000 7T
(20194F : 3,132,000 7T) °
Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered into TRIEAR QB BE 2 MY B A BSkillful Limited
between the Company and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary, monthly FfrsT 3L H 88 %20054:38 128 Z IRF 1k »
services income was received for the provision of information technology ERBREEBOIRBEAR L K BAR
and telecommunications services to the Residential Portion. The total HmERWERBWA - XEEEURIREE
amount received during the year was HK$1,069,654 (2019: HK$1,069,654). #31,069,654787C (20194 @ 1,069,654787T) ©
5. Staff costs 5. BIMZA
An analysis of staff costs is as follows: BTImAZUT :
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and allowances e RoERL 122,073,882 118,053,172
Unutilised annual leave RKE=EHER 2,658,055 254,295
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BB EHEHER 5,112,622 3,591,643
Staff benefits and other staff costs BTIRMNMEMB A 1,161,760 2,337,485
131,006,319 124,236,595
Analysed into: Par =
Hotel JEIE 53,389,069 58,073,653
Corporate office NEVRERR 49,013,003 43,542,007
102,402,072 101,615,660
Operating Teams (note 10) EEER (MI5E10) 28,604,247 22,620,935
131,006,319 124,236,595

6.
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Loss before tax 6. PBRIERIESIE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBZBFRATEGIBENGR,GIA) T3
EH
2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
FsE BT BT
Rental income less outgoings of W AIFRRSZ 15,277,822
HK$15,277,822 (2019: HK$13,050,309) #75 (2019 © 13,050,309
7T) (241,957,975) (248,921,278)
Cost of inventories FEZ 14,621,743 18,099,350
Depreciation of property, WP~ BB REITE
plant and equipment 13 135,595,484 132,648,616
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREERE 14(a) 1,916,063 -
Minimum lease payments KERETWRERENR
under operating leases - 10,851,445
Lease payments not included in the Tt AHEE G EW
measurement of lease liabilities HE 14(c) 2,711,686 =
Auditor’s remuneration %Gl 310,000 328,701
Impairment of trade receivables FEUWRBE =N 2 Bi{E 17 48,507 48,658
Reversal of impairment of BOIEWERR 2 RE
trade receivables 17 (60,908) (803,259)
Loss on disposal of items of property, — HEYH « R L H
plant and equipment, net BB Z B8535 153,327 744,357
Finance costs: MBER
Finance charges on obligations MEREEREZ MBS H
under a finance lease - 2,834
Interest on lease liabilities AEaEZFE 154,787 =
Directors’ remuneration 7. EEHE

The emoluments of the Directors of the Group disclosed pursuant to

section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of

the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation are as follows:

RIBEBAEMRBIE3BIMNER AT (HKE
EENTERN) RAFHKECAERSE

EffEIT

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors’ fees EEEE - =
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYET - -
Discretionary bonuses PIBTEAT - =
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET B - -
BUREH 2019/20 2R
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AT IRRMIEE R TS IRRMIEE
8. Five highest paid employees 8. hBEm=HES 10. Public mission activities expenses 10. AREHREBZH
Details of the remuneration of the five non-director highest paid hEFESEESHEECMEFENT ! All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary and dominant MAREd AT EBNREEMBRERM
employees are as follows: purpose of public mission and that contribute to the successful running SHIPTI R DN A R e VR BN PR EE E 2 P
of public mission activities as described in note 1 to the consolidated AEEKEEIHIRRAAREREEX
2020 1 financial statements are considered as public mission activities H o BRAZHEE
expenses. Such expenses comprise:
HK$ HK$
A7 T 2020 2019
HK$ HK$
Salaries and allowances $re K2 Rh 12,753,288 10,020,767 BT BT
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIKEF 5TEIEH R 180,000 180,000
12,933,288 10.200,767 Staff costs SRR %N 28,604,247 22,620,935
Information technology facilities maintenance fees SRS XREREER 29,422,785 29,104,324
. . . . i ol e s
The number of the non-director highest paid employee whose Wen T THE SR s EE > ¥ Financial assistance to industry start-ups BEREIEES = =1 64,457,195 47,450,404
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: BT : Programme expenses (seminars, trainings, sHEISEE (Rt ~ 1353~
competitions, workshops and exhibitions) LB TR REE) 31,275,521 31,819,555
2020 2019 Government rent and rates HhFR Ry = B 508,187 616,280
Public mission communications NIR BB 7,216,218 7,358,381
Operating expenses "ETH 5,882,120 6,326,122
FHZX = S -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001787% 52,000,000 7T . Recovery of direct expenses (including government  REIE#EL H (BIEBFHEE
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001787c22,500,00078 7T 3 1 grants of HK$3,417,395 (2019: HK$2,000,000)) 23,417,395 7T (20194F :
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017&75 23,000,000 7T 1 1 2,000,000 7T) ) (13,948,123) (11,938,190)
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,00178 752 4,000,00078 7T 1 -
153,418,150 133,357,811
5 5
9. Government rent and rates 9. MIfHKZE
An analysis of government rent and rates is as follows: MR ERZ DT -
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hotel JEIE 1,603,300 1,458,800
Corporate office NEVFELR 15,277,822 13,050,309
16,881,122 14,509,109
Operating Teams (note 10) EEERX (fi5E10) 508,187 616,280
17,389,309 15,125,389

146 Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report RS 2019/20 1R 147
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11.

Income tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2019: Nil).

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to the loss before tax at the
Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax amount at the Group's effective tax
rate is as follows:

11.

FRiSiA
AR AEEAFEL RN EBELIMARE

BREN > MU ERS B ERELBE
(20194F : £8) o

BRRREBACERIAE ZBRAIEES
MER AR ERERREAEREE
HERAT -

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Loss before tax

PRI RS 1R

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory

tax rate of 16.5% 2B R
Income not subject to tax BERRZ WA
Expenses not deductible for tax AENRZAxZ
Tax losses not recognised R Z MIBRE
Tax amount at the Group's effective tax rate BAEHEERRETE
1i%8

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

BEBEEMRE165%TH

(140,472,148) (76,551,478)

(23,177,904) (12,630,994)

(1,875,688) (1,145,302)
523,099 1,725,765
24,530,493 12,050,531
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12. Deferred tax 12.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

IEEIRIR
BEREEERSEZSBNT

Losses
available
for offsetting

against future

Depreciation
in excess
of related

depreciation

taxable profits allowance Others Total
IRzl =g EBL
RIRFERTR BRAE
i |l G = BiEZzTE Hith “ast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2018 72018548 1H (114,800,693) 114,933,231 (132,538) =
Deferred tax (credited)/ FARREE GtA),
charged to profit or kR 2 IRIERRIE
loss during the year (12,144,666) 13,259,678 (1,115,012) -

At 31 March 2019 and 2019FE3831H K

1 April 2019 2019%481H (126,945,359)
Deferred tax (credited)/ FERRER 5tA),/
charged to profit or loss OBR 2 IRIERIE

during the year (23,047,587)

128,192,909  (1,247,550) -

21,808,041 1,239,546 -

At 31 March 2020 72202038310 (149,992,946)

150,000,950 (8,004) -

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences
arising from tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty of realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at 31
March 2020, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$2,390,000,000 (2019: approximately HK$2,233,000,000). The tax
losses have no expiry date and are yet to be agreed by the Inland
Revenue Department.

R AT RS BB R R FE R i Al 2
HAEBREND  WAREERESE
FFEAZEREERIELEREEE -
2020538310 ZREBZRABRRIE
/&5 48 49 72,390,000,0003 7T (20194 : 4
2,233,000,0007% 7T) o 7 I8 &5 18 i & 5 47
B > BAEFREER: o

BHES 2019/20 & 3R
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13. Property, plant and equipment 13. % - R RERE 13. % - WRERE @

150

13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Building Building
services Information services Information
Buildings Hotel ~ and support technology Centres Leasehold  Furniture and Motor Buildings Hotel ~ and support technology Centres Leasehold  Furniture and Motor
held for rental building facilities facilities equipment  improvements equipment vehicles Total held for rental building facilities facilities equipment  improvements equipment vehicles Total
RS EEHHR
el £ AT ERlE  EAMERNE hoge  BEMHR  FRERE g5 st RRLEET BT SRl BB miRE  EEMHR  GRERE k] st
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
#n #n #n AR A #n AR A #n AT #1 #7 AT #1 #1 AT #1 AT
(note (ii)) (note (i)
(HgkGi) (Ffak(i)
31 March 2020 202038310 31 March 2019 019%38310
A3 March 2019and  R2019F3831H R At 1 April 2018; ROIBELRIR !
Gl WI9ERIR Cost iz IWIBIG  TEI 124686456 CGOSTMS 60824 BB SIS ILIWIST 5APTENASS
Cost e ISR 2932 N26A30171 2323722 60B8625h 171485488 193484489 930,137 5760432949 J—— BirE
Accumulated BitiE depreciaton (L077994356)  (G3374676) (115566958)  (231615486) (60896250  (48368583) (15355603 (888484)  (2784030400)
depreciation (1155,137,321)  (89,330,010) (1,164904,220)  (222,077319)  (60,886,254)  (59,526,108)  (138,444,935) (622,470) (2,890,926,637)
Net carrying amount e 2479,129,620 191563236 69,139,500 18992179 = 97,766,710 52,696,323 49,67 2909737035
Netcarrying amount ~ BREIHE 2,401986,455 185,607,902 99,445,951 15,157,403 - 111,961,380 55,039,554 307,667 2,869,506,312
At 1 April 2018, R0IBELRIR
At T April 2019, RN19ELRIR net of accumulated NKREsHE
net of accumulated MREstE depreciation 2479129620 191,563,236 69,139,500 18992179 = 97,768,710 52,696,323 449,667 2909737035
depreciation 2,401986,455 185,607,902 99,445,951 15,157,403 - 111,961,380 55,039,554 307,667 2,869,506,312 Additions FE _ . 30,663713 1476022 B 28682433 23362082 93,164,250
Additions HE - - 13,351,343 6,612,928 - 29,085,900 53,563,167 - 102,613,338 Depreciation provided ~ ZEUEHERHE
Depreciation provided ~ EMFHRERE during the year (77,142,965) (5,955,334) (9.357.262) (5,310,798) = (14277.110) (20,463,147) (1620000 (132,648616)
during the year (77,142,965 (5955,334)  (12,235,670) (5,294,727) - (16709271)  (18,115,517) (142,000) ~ (135,595,484) Disposal e R R R R (210453) (535,706) (746,357)
Disposal write-off HE /5 . . (932,100) . . (260,580) (366,902) - (1,559,582)
At 31 March 2019, 019536318
At 31 March 2020, R2020E3/318 » net of accumulated NBEstinE
net of accumulated MREsHTE depreciation 2,401,986,455 185,607,902 99,445,991 15,157,403 = 111,961,380 55,039,954 307,667 2869506312
depreciation 2,324,843 490 179,652,568 99,629,524 16,475,604 - 124,077,629 90,120,302 165,667 2,834,964,584
At 31 March 2019: R019E3A318 :
At 31 March 2020: R2020EAIE Cost A 3957123776 274931912 1264350171 231,234,722 60,886,254 171,485,488 193,484,489 930137 5760432949
Cost Bk ISR 2SI I26T04N  23T800 60824 200299806 2455957199 930,137 5860323428 Accumulted 2irE
Accumulated [itiE depreciation (1,155,137,321) (89.330010) (1164904220 (222077319) (60,886,254) (59.524,108)  (138444939) (622470)  (2890,926,637)
depreciation (1232,280,286)  (95,285,344) (1,177,139,890)  (227,306,726) ~ (60,886,254)  (76,222,377)  (155,475,497) (764,470)  (3,025,358,844)
Net carrying amount BEE 2,401,986,455 185,607,902 99,445,991 15,157,403 o 111,961,380 55,039,954 307,667 2869506312
Net carrying amount RE3E 2,324,843 490 179,652,568 99,629,524 16,475,604 - 124,077,629 90,120,302 165,667 2,834,964,584
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13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No.
8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company for a
term of 50 years at a lump sum initial premium of HK$1,000 and an annual
rent of an amount equal to 3% of the rateable value of the said Lot from
time to time.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with
the immediate holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No.
8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (the “Cyberport Portion”) is sub-leased to
the Company from the immediate holding company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land granted.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship Centre and
Technology Centre funded by government grant and used for the purpose
of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2020, the fair value of the buildings held for rental
(together with the associated building services and support facilities)
amounted to HK$7,012 million (2019: HK$6,956 million). The aggregate
carrying value of such assets amounted to HK$2,424 million (2019:
HK$2,501 million). The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together
with the associated buildings services and support facilities) as at 31
March 2020 was determined based on a valuation carried out by Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent professional valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated
building services and support facilities) falls within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy and is determined using the income capitalisation
approach by discounting the expected rental income using a capitalisation
rate adjusted for the quality and location of the buildings.
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MysE :

0]

(i)
(iii)

(iv)
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HE -
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RN

Leases 4. AE
The Group as a lessee AEBEEAEATEA
The Group has lease contracts for office premises, office equipment, NEERESEFFERANMAEYE A
information technology facilities and storage area used in its EREREANERMNETRIIEHES
operations. Lease of office premises has a lease term of six years, while o WMAEYENHERATF > MRAE
office equipment, information technology facilities and storage area B Bl RFEEENHEERA A
have lease terms of five years. There are several lease contracts that F o AEREFIBHIBEHF O S EHE IR
include variable lease payments, which are further discussed below. NHEESH » EETSE—Damik o
(a)  Right-of-use assets () FEHREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the AEENEAREEZ REERERN
movements during the year are as follows: EET -
Information
Office Office technology Storage
premises equipment facilities area Total
WAEME MAERE BNRERE H#EE st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
As at 1 April 2019 2019548180 7,382,087 570,020 285,975 = 8,238,082
Additions B - 157,754 - 126,662 284,416
Depreciation charge TERY (1,554,120) (188,672) (95,325) (77,946) (1,916,063)
Asat31March2020  $2020£E3731H 5,827,967 539,102 190,650 48,716 6,606,435
BRES 2019/20 3R
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14. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

14. A8 @

FERERAEBEA (@)
(b) HE&ER

HESEZREERENEHNT

HK$
BT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2019 2019548 1 HZBREE 8,486,897
New leases mHEE 284,416
Accretion of interest recognised during the year FRER 2T EI1gE 154,787
Payments INEN (2,029,560)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 202063831 H 2 R EE 6,896,540
Analysed into: DA
Current portion TRENER 1,941,181
Non-current portion IEREIL D 4,955,359
6,896,540
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 30(a) HEEGEZ IO NELESITRRE
to the consolidated financial statements. MizE30(a) I EE ©
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (c) MIEFZTMESEHEIZSRENT
are as follows:
2020
HK$
BT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAaENE 154,787
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EREEETERS 1,916,063
Expense relating to short-term leases and BERIFEEATE B R ER T HEA
other leases with remaining lease terms ended 120203831 HE 2 A SEAERY
on or before 31 March 2020 (included in public HMHEZXH GFAAR
mission activities expenses) fEEEBISZ H) 2,529,351
Variable lease payments not included in the Tt AHES G2 EHEE
measurement of lease liabilities (included in T GIAEMKE T H)
other operating expenses) 182,335
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBmPHER 2 EEEE 4,782,536
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14. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

iR MR RN

14. THE @)
SEEEAEREAAN (@)

Variable lease payments (d) FIEBEMR
The Group has a lease contract for an office equipment AEEIE—HBRAERENEES
that contains variable payments based on the meter rate of 4 EREZREEIMTENAEE
additional printout. The term is negotiated by management for HET BN EAR o ZIEREHER
the office equipment that is used to print without steady usage. EBrtAEIT BN EIBEEAEH WA
Management's objective is to align the lease expense with the EREETE  BEEZENEEHEE
additional printout. The following provides information on the X HEREINMNTENEAEETE o TRIZMH
Group's variable lease payments, including the magnitude in ERAAEENTEBEENRZER
relation to fixed payments: BEARABENRZBE :
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
ERANEN B EATRR st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Fixed rent EEME 156,000 - 156,000
Variable rent only EXNAEEE - 63,915 63,915
156,000 63,915 219,915
In addition, the Group leased a warehouse which contains a o REEERA—EER 0 HHEY
variable lease payment term that is based on the Group's storage BERBELAERTERE NS EKMER
per carton box in the warehouse. The amount of the variable FEMETENR A E M RBER
lease payments recognised in profit or loss for the current year MAFENHETEERTRIZE
for the lease is HK$118,420. THE (IR #A118,42087T °
The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 25(c) to the (e) FMHENREMLEBEESMBRE

consolidated financial statements.

M 5E25(c) R R ©

BHES 2019/20 & 3R
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14.

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain buildings (note 13) in Hong Kong under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases also require
the tenants to pay a security deposit. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was HK$257,235,797 (2019: HK$261,971,587),
details of which are included in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

14.

HE @

HEEEAEEA
AEERELKEHEZHTLAETBEET
BF 13 c HERRTEXRELX
TRES AEEBRERRIZ2HES K
A #257,235,79778 7T (20194 © 261,971,587
Br) > BREBEN SRR

REREHR - AERRZEEBFFTIIHAE]
BN EAEN R RN RITIREE
R0

2020 2019

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 227,155,630 195,598,378
After one year but within two years —FRBEMFERN 130,144,148 116,667,752
After two years but within three years WEBEBE=FR 66,130,531 47,618,780
After three years but within four years —FBEBINERN 15,430,218 16,775,545
After four years but within five years WEBERERN 9,538,220 =
After five years AFE 49,965,009 -
498,363,756 376,660,455

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

15. Cyberport macro fund investments

iR MR RN

15. HBERBAEETRE

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT B
Equity investments designated at fair value  ISERAAEBEAEM
through other comprehensive income 2EREZRERE
- Unlisted equity investments, at fair value —JEEmRAKLE  BAREE 91,921,406 44,713,898
Debt investment at fair value through BAREBESAEBEZ
profit or loss BFHRE
- Unlisted debt investment, at fair value —ELMEBEE  RANEE 7,846,694 10,152,211
99,768,100 54,866,109

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not recognise any
dividend income (2019: Nil) from the equity investments held at the end
of the reporting period.

The above debt investment was a hybrid contract consisting of a bond
and an embedded derivative. It was mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable
start-ups, the Group has launched the CMF for Hong Kong-based
digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of HK$200 million,
the CMF aims to accelerate the growth of digital technology start-ups.
As an investment fund that targets to co-invest in Cyberport digital
entrepreneurs with other private and public investors as seed to Series
A stage funding, the CMF also aims to encourage the development of a
venture capital ecosystem for start-ups in Hong Kong.

HRAEERDZEREBRBIEE - L
MR AR E AR HES ISR QA A BESTA
Ht W o

REE2020F3831HIEEE » AEBITE
KRB EHARFIFAENRERE Z M
BB (20194 : ) o

FREBRESBESFRRANITETAAR
P REEH o HEGaR DB RANEE
STIABHZ ERMEE  RRAHGHRERM
BUIHERSINAERFIE

RE—IMATEBE T ERAIEEZR
LR REER2017TFE AT BEIBAIER
RMEIHEBRERFERESE - BIEBREAE
BEEPIRKREEA2EE T > SEMREES
BHRRI B FEERE - (FAEEEEMMAR
AHKEBEEGHFRENEIE BB E XA
WIS RMEE T - BISEBRERIFEETTIA
REEEBNVRIERERREARKREERIR

15 o
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16. Investments in securities 16. HBHERE
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Financial assets at amortised cost IR EHRL AT BR Y R 84,074,954 70,830,649
Current assets MMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost IR AT BR Y SR - 151,266,273
Investments at fair value through profit or loss A MEEFTABEZIBE 708,251,929 529,197,175
708,251,929 680,463,448
s 792,326,883 751,294,097

(a)

Financial assets at amortised cost

() WEBHMATIRZ EHMEE

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Listed fixed interest debt securities in  &#&_FHBEIEF BERHBS
Hong Kong 84,074,954 222,096,922
The net book amount is analysed as REFEDTUWT :
follows:
Maturing over one year R—E L EEIER 84,074,954 70,830,649
Maturing within one year R—FAEIHA - 151,266,273
84,074,954 222,096,922
Market value of listed debt securities EHEHEEEZHE 86,550,506 222,235,600
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(b) Investments at fair value through profit or loss

16.

HERE @

(b) BARBEFARZZIRE

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT Bt
Listed fixed interest debt securities: THEERNEERES -

- In Hong Kong —HBEN 249,367,429 191,439,070
- Outside Hong Kong — &HBEN 351,773,574 248,081,875

Unlisted but quoted fixed interest debt  JE_ETH{B R HRBEE N BEFSE
securities 107,110,926 89,676,230
708,251,929 529,197,175

17. Trade receivables 17. FEURBRFR

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables FEUSBRRR 19,829,455 11,047,174
Impairment BB (48,507) (60,908)
19,780,948 10,986,266

The credit period given to customers is generally O to 30 days. The

Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables

to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly

by senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or

receivables are non-interest-bearing.

receivables are as follows:

other credit enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

MTERZEEHR—MRAB0EIRX - £EE
A B R AR 2 H R U o] 2 FEMGRRIR LU (R &
BEfERERE - BAEGRHESREEREER
FER o REB T EREBUERREHITEE
IR R T M E S5 A i - FEUGR

RABRE o

FEWERTCRIE R BRI T !

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT Bt
At beginning of year E4) 60,908 815,509
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) HEDRERE (fiske) 48,507 48,658
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) BEIRERE (M:E6) (60,908) (803,259)
At end of year FXR 48,507 60,908
BIREHS 2019/20 3R
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AT IRRMIEE
17. Trade receivables (continued) 17. FEURERFR (@)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using REBNERES BHACABEERETAE
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision DT LGTEEREERIE o BEXDLRE
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer BEHELUE BMZMIBMUE « ERER -
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, BREA LR ERBEREMERZE
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of BERBBEHE) 22EFTADIMENZ
credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the BIAREETE o ZetE RIS R
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable EREBEEURNRE BRI ESERME
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date AEH » BRIRRRARERLERRTEAZ &
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic BAFEN o —fRiMs > EYWERFEINE LB
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for B—FERZREINITEE > BT LU -
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the LUR 8151175 R 74 52 [ FE UK AR 0 (68 P #3848 4B B
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: ZIEERRER
As at 31 March 2020 $2202043H831H
Past due
A
Less than One to three Over three
Current one month months months Total
ENHA L—EAR —E=@AR BiB=EA Eih
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Expected credit loss rate TEHAEBEE=X 0% 0% 0% 1.63% 0.24%
Gross carrying amount (HK$) BREARE (BrT) 12,610,432 2,207,493 2,040,480 2,971,050 19,829,455
Expected credit losses (HK$)  FEHRIEE/E (BT) - - - 48,507 48,507
As at 31 March 2019 F2201943831H
Past due
BEA
Less than One to three Over three
Current one month months months Total
BDEA DR—EA —Z={E8 BiB=EA “ast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Expected credit loss rate TEHAEBEE=XR 0% 0% 0% 7.42% 0.55%
Gross carrying amount (HK$)  BRE4&1E (B7T) 8,324,098 1,173,440 728,664 820,972 11,047,174
Expected credit losses (HK$)  FEHRfEER/E (B) = = - 60,908 60,908
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18. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

iR MR RN

18. FAfTRRIE - RS RHEMBEUTRIR

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments FAf IR 2,882,951 4,661,026
Lease incentives HEER 19,649,943 =
Prepayments and deposits paid for the TEBAYE ~ BB RREEE M
purchase of items of property, plant and ZHENRIEBEREE
equipment 16,600,613 12,940,534
Deposits paid for premises leasing MYERER N2 iZE 685,008 685,008
Deposit paid for Cyberport Macro Fund FREEREREESREM TS
investment - 14,129,730
Other deposits Hiz s 2,307,583 1,812,956
Other receivables HithpE W =g 7,387,921 14,525,779
49,514,019 48,755,033
Analysed into: DA
Non-current portion JETRENER D 22,999,823 27,755,272
Current portion SRENER 26,514,196 20,999,761
49,514,019 48,755,033

Impairment of deposits and other receivables

‘BE R EMERRIEZ #HE

The carrying amount of deposits and other receivables approximated
to their fair value as at 31 March 2020 and 2019. Their recoverability
was assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors, and the
expected credit losses as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 were considered

20204 520194638310 » e R HAFE
WRIBZ REEAEAAGEBEES - H7
WO 2E B/ A ZEER RS »
20205 F20196E3831 A 2 FEARE BB H

to be minimal.

RAAER o
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19. Cash and bank balances

19. RERIPITEF

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash and bank balances REMIRITHETT 109,010,217 163,526,258
Non-pledged time deposit with an original RESKRIFEADR
maturity of less than three months when =@ B Z IR EHER
acquired 308,565,862 125,597,600
Non-pledged time deposits with original RESERIBEA=ES
maturity of more than three months when P EZ BN EHRER
acquired - 358,873,875
417,576,079 647,997,733

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one months and one year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earns interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report
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20. Other payables and accruals

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
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20. HfthEMRERESER

2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5F BT BT
Contract liabilities BHEE (a) 2,528,683 1,979,225
Other payables HARETRRIE (b) 1,387,502 5,870,554
Accruals fEst&E A 83,753,225 118,221,334
Receipt in advance FaEIE 2,424,808 6,488,582
Government grants =k 2,555,800 -
Provisions 3= 8,782,332 15,599,100
101,432,350 148,158,795
Notes: HisE
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (@ BRREFENT
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
2020%3H31H 201943831H 2018548 1H
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Short-term advances received A% P UWER 2 5SS HEEA R
from customers
Income from hotel operation BEEEIRA 2,528,683 1,979,225 3,302,947

The increase in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to the increase
in short-term advances received from customers at the end of the year.
The decrease in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due to the decrease
in short-term advances received from customers at the end of the prior
year.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of
three months.

2020 EHRMEEN - TEHR AR
WER 2 SR ER BRI SE R AB AOFT 2L © 122019
FanaERd  TEHRAZTRIRERZ
RN EEERMLDPAE

HMENRIERRE - TIHRA=EA -

BHES 2019/20 & 3R

163



164

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRMIEE
21. Rental and other deposits 21. HEKkHEMZE
Included in rental deposits are amounts of HK$49,888,836 (2019: e OEBEIEN—FRENZHIB
HK$57,040,472) which are not expected to be settled within one year. 49,888,836 7T (20194F : 57,040,47287T) °
22. Development maintenance fund 22. BREHEEES
It represents a fund received by the Group in accordance with the ZEESEAEBREBERALLAR  BEE
terms of a project agreement entered into among the Company, the f&/A 5] ~ HKCADL ~ BB EUIEE N B RAE]
immediate holding company, HKCADL, Pacific Century Cyberworks (RBENBRBMARLT) REMBBRA
Limited (now renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited on 17 B 12200055 8 17H P #E5] 2 BRES B 5t 8113
May 2000 (the “Project Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project Agreement, =Z (T5t8tE)) 2B EE o 1R
the purpose of the fund is for upkeep and maintenance of the common Botilineg  ZBEESREREREEM
telecommunications, media and information technology facilities HREAZERAZHASEM - ERREAR
available to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared Cyberport facilities”). B (TSNS BHEBRNE) ©
Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs of the RIBAEEZ GTER > REEERAEENU
acquired assets will be transferred from the Development Maintenance EE#fE  BEEBEEZRNANREER#ER
Fund (the "DMF") account to the Capital Reserve account in accordance = (TZERECES) RAEEZELRHEE
with the Group's accounting policy. BRA o
During the year, the Shared Cyberport facilities of HK$6,612,928 (2019: F AN & 58 566129288 5T (20194 ©
HK$1,476,022) were acquired and funded by the DMF. Accordingly, this 1,476,0227870) Z$EBHEARMEHEE
amount has been transferred from the DMF to the Capital Reserve HEESHETRMEES - ALt » ZFENIE
account. EREREEESHBETEARBIRS o
23. Share capital 23. &7
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Issued and fully paid: BEITERERE -
300,000,002 (2019: 300,000,002) 300,000,0028% (20194 :
ordinary shares 300,000,00208) & iEAG 300,000,002 300,000,002

On 28 February 2018, the HKSAR Government announced a funding
injection of HK$300 million to Cyberport for the new initiatives in
respect of strengthening the support to its tenants/incubatees, and
promoting the development of e-Sports in Hong Kong, as covered in the
Financial Secretary’'s 2018/19 Budget Speech.

On 12 September 2018, 300,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
$1 each were issued and allotted to the immediate holding company in
consideration of the injection of an aggregate sum of HK$300 million
into the Company.
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2018528 28H > H KB Al REXR
2018/ 19F E (M TEEZE) F » HBFEIR
FEMRBEERTENREE T > UBEEEE
EITINRSZEERA RIS AR Z HiaH
WIEEBHRERE

2018598 12H » AR B BEZEERAE]
2447 16 A2 2£300,000,0000 R EE1B T Z
ZIER FARKABEARBEIREBTZ
K& -

24.

25.

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of HK$284,416 and HK$284,416,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for office
equipment and storage area (2019: Nil).

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
2020

24,

25.

iR MR RN

(B
FEBPAEERBREEE SR
BH2TINEARERBE o

IrEREMERME

() FEIFRERB
RER » ZEBRMAERERHEE
B ERHEERREEEZIERS
REBERAEEED R 5284,61687TK
2844167877 (20195 1 &) o

(b) FREEIHFFELEEREED
20204

Government
grants included
in other payables

and accruals Lease liabilities

st AEfAE (T
RIBRETER
Z B e & HEaRE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 31 March 2019 1201963315 - -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 PIRE B R S 2R
Bl E - 8,486,897
At 1 April 2019 (restated) R2019F4818 (F5!) - 8,486,897
Changes from financing cash flows RERSREE 2,555,800 (1,874,773)
New leases MEE - 284,416
Interest expense FMEZH - 154,787
Interest paid classified as operating DIEAKEREREZENAFE
cash flows - (154,787)
At 31 March 2020 72020 3H31H 2,555,800 6,896,540
5 2019/20 F3R
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25. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

(continued)

25. IREHRTRERMWF @

(b) REEBFIELERRES @

2019 20195
Government
grants included Obligations
in other payables under a
and accruals finance lease
ST AE AR
IR fEET E A
Z BB E BB ERE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April 2018 2018 FE4B1H 320,035 1,577,476
Changes from financing cash flows HMEBRESMEEH (320,035) (1,577,476)

At 31 March 2019

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows is as follows:

522019438 31H

() HEZRERHBE

AR REREXRZBEERT MY

MR -

2020

HK$

BT

Within operating activities EREEHA 2,866,473
Within financing activities ERMEEHA 1,874,773
4,741,246
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(a)

(b)

26. Commitments

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group had the following capital commitments at the

end of the reporting period.

iR MR RN

26. I

() FEERBSHREUTESEK

~ o
=

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Contracted, but not provided for [EHESEESZT:] 68,100,956 75,501,010

Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019

The Group leases its information technology facilities and office

premises under operating lease arrangements. Leases for these

facilities and property are negotiated for terms ranging from one

to six years.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

(b) H2019E3B3NAZREHE X
1%
FEERBEKEREHFAEEAR
EREAEFE  HEZERER
MEFMZREZ BN F—FERER

&=
5 °

FR2019F3831H » ZEBRBEARA
BB N R REHEE AR
EREE RO

2019
HK$
BT

Within one year

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

— R

3,870,268

E_EEERF (BEEEME) 6,627,489

10,497,757
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217.

FE R EE

Related party transactions

(a)

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the HKSAR
via The Financial Secretary Incorporated. In accordance with
revised HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures issued by the HKICPA,
government-related entities and their subsidiaries, directly or
indirectly controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by the Government of the HKSAR are defined as related parties
of the Group. On that basis, related parties include the immediate
holding company and its subsidiaries (other than the Company),
other government-related entities and their subsidiaries, other
entities and corporations in which the Group is able to control or
exercise significant influence and key management personnel of
the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, approximately 3%
(2019: 3%) of the Group's revenue was rental income, building
management income and other facilities income derived from
the Government of the HKSAR and other government-related
entities. All these services are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Group's pricing policy.

The balances with the immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Details of the compensation of the key management personnel
of the Group in respect of their services rendered to the Group
are disclosed in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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() FABRBEBHEBFEBNEAG

RZEZBZEHER - RESEGAQ
GETR 2B BB R ERF245%
RS IREZRE > NREBRER
FEZENEEES - £RERHEH
ERFEZHRERERERANER
8 BHREARER 2T - RIE
ZER > WS REERERAER
HIFB AT (RRBFRIN ~ EfthEATF
HAERRENBAR - NEEAEE
RIS A MEAT B HthEEkE
FURAERZTEZEEAS °

B E2020F383HIEFE» kKBS
BREEF;EMBFEBERZ
HEWA ~ BFEBRAKREMZHE
WA RGBT A Z3% (20194 :
3%) o FTAZERBIIEEREKB
R AEEZ EBBURET °

BEBEERABRARNB AR ZLE
FRITBEIET « RERIZEREE -

AEBRTEEEASRRERRHER
BB 2 S BEGR S MR
KM EET 8% EE o

28.

Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2020

Financial assets

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
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28. BERBSHEHMIA

KRR TENREMARZIREEDT ¢

20205%3H31H

TREE

Financial
assets at

fair value
through other
comprehensive

Financial assets at fair

income value through profit or loss
BARBETA
2 EkES HARBESABEZ
SREE EREE
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
Equity designated Debt amortised
investments as such investment cost Total
_ AT AR .
RAEE AZER BHRE ZEREE a5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Deferred rental receivables  IEREMEWFS - - - 7,274,144 7,274,144
Cyberport Macro Fund YIEBREREELEE
investments 91,921,406 - 7,846,694 - 99,768,100
Investments in securities EHKRE - 708,251,929 - 84,074,954 792,326,883
Trade receivables FRURER - - - 19,780,948 19,780,948
Financial assets included in st ATBRFIE &R
prepayments, deposits and  EERFIEZ
other receivables SHEE - - - 11,914,566 11,914,566
Amounts due from fellow EWREZKBARTE
subsidiaries - - - 3,293,234 3,293,234
Cash and bank balances BERiBTEE - - - 417,576,079 417,576,079
91,921,406 708,251,929 7,846,694 543,913,925 1,351,933,954
Financial liabilities ERaE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REERATIRZ
EREE
HK$
BT
Trade payables FEATERRR 41,976,221
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals SARMENTEREGNERZSHEE 91,473,312
Rental and other deposits HekEMZEE 94,797,218
Amount due to the immediate holding company ERBERERARZIE 254,293,578
Lease liabilities HEBE 6,896,540
489,436,869
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28. Financial instruments by category (continued) 28. HERNAPHNEMIE (@ 29. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 29. EMTHAZAAREBERAAEBES
i 4
31 March 2019 201943831H instruments R

AEBTRTAZEREERAAMEE (RE

Financial assets SEEE The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably EREAABESEBEEEZEMIT AR @
Fma;tc;aatiraj;e:z approximate to fair values, are as follows: TS s
through other
comprehensive Financial assets at fair ) )
income value through profit or loss Carrying amounts Fair values
BAREESA EREE NAEE
Hit2ERGEZ ZARBEFABREZ
ﬂﬂig%ﬁ:ﬁgi }“ﬁg};ggm 2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
‘ Financel BT BT BT BT
Mandatorily assets at
Equity designated Debt amortised
investments as such investment cost Total
B AT Financial assets STHEE
LA L3 |HsTE A e 4Eh %@E ) _ _
RARE BEHSTEAZEH BBRE ZEREE st Equity investments designated e 2 (B
‘HK_$ HK_$ ‘HK_$ \HK_$ HK_$ at fair value through other sAEMEME
7L 7L A7 7L A7 comprehensive income W > R AR 91,921,406 44,713,898 91,921,406 44,713,898
Debt investment at fair value BARBESTA
] el ol BILEES - - - RS gl through profit or loss BHZEHRYE 7,846,694 10152211 7,846,694 10152211
Cyberport Macro Fund YEEREREESRE . -
ymvepstmems 44713898 ~ 10152211 ~ 54.866.109 Investments in securities AR E 792,326,883 751,294,097 794,802,435 751,432,775
Investments in securities EHRE - 529,197,175 - 222,096,922 751,294,097
Trade receivables FEURARRR - - - 10,986,266 10,986,266 892,094,983 806,160,206 894,570,535 806,298,884
Financial assets included in SABMRE  #E Rk
prepayments, deposits and HitfElEZ
other receivables LEHMBE = = = 17,724,883 17,724,883 The Group has assessed that the fair values of deferred rental REFDMLIELEEKIES « FEURERRR « 5T
Amount due from a fellow A EEN VAR receivables, trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, ATBIEIE ~ WS REMERES SME
subsidiary - - B 261,000 261,000 deposits and other receivables, cash and bank balances, balances with EBEeKETET  BERMBATIRE
Cash and bank balances BARRTEE - = - 647,997733 647,997733 fellow subsidiaries and the immediate holding company, trade payables, BN T 4568 ~ FE(TRESN ~ st A H fhpE
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, rental and THIBREASERZSHEE - S REM
44,713,878 SRR 10i152211 7071567,753 L4A1633.243 other deposits, and a deferred rental payable approximate to their e MIELEENESZ A BEEEER
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these BERE > TEARZES T ENGERNTIER o
Financial liabilities SRaE instruments.
Financial The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are SHEBELSHEBBEZ AABEUNREZEE
L\at?\tlt\es at included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in FE (CRipal BB ERIN) BT EHTE
amortised cost a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or PR TENESREALRE o T8 ERIRER
HEER AR liquidation sale. The following method and assumptions were used to WEEHAREE !
TRIAE estimate the fair value:
HK$
s The fair values of the lease liabilities have been calculated by HEaEZ AR BEILEAREENESRE
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently LEH s ZERGE ARG TERENTAZF
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining X BIEAARRESRSITRME - AX
Trade payables FE(TER=R 28,514,375 maturities. The changes in fair values as a result of the Group’s own EEARSR2020FE3831HIEEES EXE
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals HAHMENSBERESER SHEE 136,566,404 non-performance risk for lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020 were BB A R B E £ A R EEEBHTE
t insignificant. R °
Rental and other deposits HEREMES 82,132,286 assessed to be insignifican AEEKR
Amount due to the immediate holding company EREEERATZIE 254,293,578
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary ENRRNEARFIE 192,321
Deferred rental payable ELENES 222775
501,921,739
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29.

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2020 has
been estimated using the market-based valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The valuation requires the Directors to determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy,
and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as price to sales
("P/S") multiple, for each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable
company by sales measure. The Directors believe that the estimated
fair value resulting from the valuation technique, which is recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
change in fair value, which is recorded in other comprehensive income,
is reasonable, and that it was the most appropriate value at the end of
the reporting period. The fair values of the remaining unlisted equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as at 31 March 2020 have been estimated using the recent
market transaction price.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2019 have been
estimated using the recent market transaction price.

The fair values of an unlisted debt investment at fair value through
profit or loss as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 have been
estimated using a binomial tree pricing model based on assumptions
that are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the Directors to make estimates about the expected
future cash flows discounted at the interest. The Directors believe that
the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation technique, which
is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair value, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of listed debt investments are based on quoted market
prices.
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29.

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation
of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis
as at 31 March 2020 and 2019:

As at 31 March 2020

29.

iR MR RN

EMITARAZARBERAREES
R @)
LU 41220204 20193831 B £/t T

AfEZERTIREHAZBHEZERE
BERED

142020%F3831H

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Amount value to the input
HER* EAFTHRRBAGE Y& RABEHRAREBEZBRE
Unlisted equity Valuation P/S multiple of peers 2.2x 1% increase/decrease in multiple
investment multiples would result in increase/decrease
in fair value by HK$23,000/
HK$23,000
FFEMRAKRSE HEEE FIZETIH(EEL 2.21% BRI EF TR B A N EEE
./ 23,000 7T, 23,0008 7T
Discount for lack 20% 1% increase/decrease in discount

of marketability

RZ G REIE I8

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of
premiums and discounts determined by the Group that market
participants would take into account when pricing the investments.

would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$8,000/HK$8,000

EH L TERI%EERAANBER
> /1% 118,000/ 7T, 8,000 7T

BREZHHERBEZITRErEREEH SRS

BEEARETEREE RN EERITES
LE

BHES 2019/20 & 3R

173



174

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

29. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

As at 31 March 2020 (continued)

29. THITRAZAABERIABESE
B ()

122020E3831H (&)

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Amount value to the input
fEEHE EATAERBARE 85 ARABEHBABREZHRE
Unlisted debt Binomial Credit spread 14.65% 1% increase/decrease in credit
investment tree pricing spread would result in decrease/
model increase in fair value by HK$16,000/
HK$16,000
JFEHEHKRE ZmERiR EERE EEEE LA TERIMERADE
EBZE
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Risk free rate

A RRIE

Risky rate

R =

Volatility

BB

&R 12 H016,0005 7T, 16,000
HBIT

0.38% 1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$1,000/HK$1,000

ERBAELA S TFEI%EERAR
BERL #h1,0005%7T 1,000
BT

15.03% 1% increase/decrease in risky rate
would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$16,000/
HK$16,000

BEBEFIZE EF R %R SR DB
BRI 18 1016,00077T 16,000
BT

61.42% 1% increase/decrease in volatility
would result in increase/decrease
in fair value by HK$16,000/
HK$16,000

WENE EF TR % ERAAEE
#hn i/ 16,0007 7T 16,0007
7T

29. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

As at 31 March 2019

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
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29. EMIAZAABERAAEESE
R ()

142019%F3831H

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Amount value to the input
HEHE BARIERRH A SR L€ NABEHRABEZBRE
Unlisted debt investment Binomial Credit spread 13.12% 1% increase/decrease in credit
tree pricing spread would result in decrease/
model increase in fair value by HK$24,000/
HK$25,000
L EBRE “EER HEE EHEE LA TRI%HERARE
EEE

Risk free rate

ERENE

Risky rate

JR B =R

Volatility

LES

&R /1802400057, 25,000
BT

2.07% 1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$166,000/
HK$184,000

EERFIEEF  TE%EHER
NAEERLD 1810166,000788
75,/ 184,000 7T

15.19% 1% increase/decrease in risky rate
would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$24,000/
HK$25,000

REBFE A TERI%EERANE
&RV /18 1024,0007% 7T 25,000
BT

48.13% 1% increase/decrease in volatility
would result in increase/decrease
in fair value by HK$1,000/HK$1,000

WENE EF TR ERAREE
90,/ B 1,000/8 7T 1,000 7T
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29.

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2020

29. ESMITAZARBERAREBESE 29.

& (&)

ARBEESER
TRETTEREMTIEZ ANBENES

i
BARBENEZEE
14202053H31H

Fair value measurement using

ARBERAUATEESE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEAXAHRE EAFATHE
JERETIZIRE B A B BMABE
(B—4R) (BB=4) (B=%) Hazt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Equity investments IEERANEE
designated at fair AEMEE
value through other Wz RAEKRE
comprehensive income - 89,486,760 2,434,646 91,921,406
Debt investment BARBERA
at fair value through BanZEBERE
profit or loss - - 7,846,694 7,846,694
Investments in securities FEHEE 601,141,003 107,110,926 - 708,251,929
601,141,003 196,597,686 10,281,340 808,020,029
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Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 March 2019

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

AR IR

VPN
72 ==

R ()

29. EMIAZAABERAAEESE

RARBESNEZEE : (B

2201953831

Fair value measurement using

RABEERBUTEENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEARAHER EAFAUERE
TR T IGERE [P 5672 LIPNE €72
(B—#) (B524R) (B=4R) st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Equity investments IEERRANER
designated at fair SFAHEMEE
value through other Wz RAKE
comprehensive income - 44,713,898 - 44,713,898
Debt investment BAREERA
at fair value through BanZBHRE
profit or loss - - 10,152,211 10,152,211
Investments in securities  BHIRHE 439,520,945 89,676,230 - 529,197,175
439,520,945 134,390,128 10,152,211 584,063,284
BIREHS 2019/20 3R
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29.

GBI

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 29.
instruments (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets (2019: Nil). The
movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 are as follows:

TMIAZARBERIABES
& (@)

BARBENEZEE : (8)

Epy ReMEENS > F—REE R
B EEEAAEESE (0196 &) o
B=RAZAREEFRETNT

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets at fair value through other wBAnBE AEMEER S
comprehensive income or profit or loss: NiEmZ EREE
At 1 April 4B 1H 10,152,211 6,221,450
Transfer from Level 2 during the year FERRE _REL 6,286,952 =
Transfer to Level 2 during the year FREAEZFE R - (6,221,450)
Total (loss)/gain recognised in the RixrEBmRERZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss (F518) / Unin4a%8 (2,305,517) 340,024
Total loss recognised in REMEER SR 2 B8 485
other comprehensive income (3,852,306) =
Purchase B - 9,812,187
At 31 March 38318 10,281,340 10,152,211

Liabilities measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2020

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2020.

As at 31 March 2019

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2019.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
financial liabilities (2019: Nil).
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BARBENEZARE:
142020538318

A EE E 2202053831 H I WAL AR A A E
BtESHEE-

2019%F3831H

EEF2019F3831 B EE[AIRA LB
B2z emEaE -

FER- ieRaEms > S R85 R8>
M EEEAABENE > NEEANESY
FE=MR (20194 : M|®) o

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise investments
in securities, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, a debt investment at fair value through
profit or loss and cash and bank balances. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to finance for the Group's
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
credit risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

All the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong, which management
believes are of high credit quality. The Group has policies in
place to evaluate credit risk when accepting new business and to
limit its credit exposure to individual customers.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 March. For listed debt investments, the
Group also monitors them by using external credit ratings. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

iR MR RN

MHBREEEBERER

(a)

MEBRARER
FERZIZERTAGEIRSFR
B BRARBESARMEEREZ
RAEKRE - BARBESABRZE
BREUKRFERIRTER - 252
RIEZTEZENEATERZEE
RIEEE -

FEETHMTREEZTZRABAIE
ERE - RERE RBEZREEK
EER - EFRBERBEEESR
TEAERA R MR 2 B2 > AR o

EEmER
FEBEREARRSLEEERBEF
BREEERAEERERFZES
TE2ERIEE - AEBEHEEER
DTz £ 55 R 2 E 5 AU IR
FEMEAZREBENEFZEER
B2 o

REEERFRTEERIIE
TRETERAABEERRZEE
FHEEkEEERR (E2REAH
BRHSH  BRIFEMERNBANHB
ZRANLE IR ER) > MUKRI3A
NBEZERDBEERNLE o st EHEF
REME » AEMIMERIEBEET
RIEITEEIE - FREVIBERATREE
ZIRMEABIE -
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

HERAREEEERBE @

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) () HMBRAKRERZR &)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) REREGERERIEERSEE (&)
As at 31 March 2020 F220204F3531H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B TEHA
EE8HE 2HEIE BRI
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PR — MR = MEER= 1E% Hast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Debt investment at fair value BARBEFABEZ
through profit or loss# BHREH 7,846,694 - - - 7,846,694
Investments in securities# BHREH 792,326,883 - - - 792,326,883
Trade receivables* JEUBR 0 - - - 19,829,455 19,829,455
Deferred rental receivables# EIErEW TR &4 7,274,144 - - - 7,274,144
Financial assets included in SPATBNRIE K
prepayments, deposits and HtfElIEZ
other receivables# ERBEH 11,914,566 - - - 11,914,566
Amounts due from fellow EWERITBARZE
subsidiaries — RRBH
- Not yet past due 3,293,234 - - - 3,293,234
Cash and bank balances REMRTHEE
- Not yet past due — HRBH 417,576,079 - - - 417,576,079
1,240,231,600 - - 19,829,455 1,260,061,055
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(continued)

(a)
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 30. HFHBEEEEBFREER (@)
Financial risk factors (continued) () HMBEAKER (&
Credit risk (continued) =ERRE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEEREFRIERSE ()
As at 31 March 2019 201983531 H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 &R
=EHE ZHREREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PEEE— e fEE= N[z K5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Debt investment at fair value BAREEFAERZ
through profit or loss# R EH 10,152,211 - - - 10,152,211
Investments in securities# EHLEH 751,294,097 - - - 751,294,097
Trade receivables* L BR =+ - - - 11,047,174 11,047,174
Deferred rental receivables# IEIERE WA E# 8,503,155 - - - 8,503,155
Financial assets included in STATEARE ek
prepayments, deposits and HitfElEE2
other receivables* ERBEE 17,724,883 - - - 17724883
Amount due from a fellow EWERMBARIE
subsidiary — HREER
- Not yet past due 261,000 = = = 261,000
Cash and bank balances REeMRTHEE
- Not yet past due — BREE 647,997,733 - - - 647997733
1,435,933,079 - - 11,047174 1,446,980,253
& For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified FAE B A ECRE A Z FEUER

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be

“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of
the financial assets is considered to be "doubtful”.

Details in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk

arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the

consolidated financial statements.

HMME > REREEEABZER
REREMBRRM T 7IREE ©

TREEZEEERETHAREHN
BiEEMBETnEMEEZEER
% B 42 T 53 LR AR 18 0 B AR AR
#IER) - BRIEHEEZEFEE
R TAI5E) ©

ARAERERUERRZ EERR ¥
1B RS BIRARMNEE 1 7THREE
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I e
30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 30. HFFEEEEBRREER (@)
(continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (@) MHBRABEER @)
Equity price risk B (& = Bz
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity B RIS A E A A EEFER
securities decrease as a result of changes in the value of ERE Sz BEEMEEE B o
underlying individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity K202053831H "EEEH K
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified BRRBREDERIEEEANEMES
as equity investments designated at fair value through other AHMEEWER 2 BALEZ @RI
comprehensive income (note 15) as at 31 March 2020. TIRE (MisE15) ©
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% TRETHNREHARETERRKIEETKX
change in the fair values of the equity investments to which the Az BRAKEEANBESEE0%
Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, (FREEMBSRFEAEE R AT
with all other variables held constant and before any impact on IR ER) ZBRE  BULDH
tax. For the purpose of this analysis, the impact is deemed to be ms > BREERAARANEER
on the fair value reserve. EERE -
Carrying
amount of Change
investments in equity*
KEREE g E
HK$ HK$
T T
As at 31 March 2020 52202053831 H
Unlisted equity investments: JELEMRRAKE
- Equity investments designated — e A REBESTA
at fair value through other Hirzmlimz
comprehensive income BRI E 91,921,406 9,192,141
As at 31 March 2019 120194E3831H
Unlisted equity investments: JEEmRAKE -
- Equity investments designated — IEERAREESA
at fair value through other HihzmEmlmz
comprehensive income AR E 44,713,898 4,471,390
3 Excluding accumulated losses 2 NEIERFEE
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(a)

iR MR RN

30. MEEMEERERBER @)

Financial risk factors (continued) (@) MBRABEER @)
Liquidity risk TRENE &R MR
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its mEhE RIS EEREEETIEA
current obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk ZBEAEH Rk - BEZ REES
management includes maintaining sufficient cash and the EREEaEAEESERERAERE
availability of funding through operating cash flows and advance BERAS ZBHERTHBREES KA
from the immediate holding company. HEAEE °
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and AEBZBREREHEREARTER
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains ZREASER  BRERENRS
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in @E > UREERARERRESES
the short and longer term. Bk o
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at KEBNRSARBBRSARTIRMG
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual M2 EMERIREROT @
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2020
Repayable on
demand/less 1to Over
than 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
HEKREE
—&EYTF —ERE EME st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Trade payables FEfTERR 41,976,221 - - 41,976,221
Financial liabilities included in STAEMENTER
other payables and accruals EstBRZSHERE 91,473,312 - - 91,473,312
Rental and other deposits A kEMZE 44,908,382 21,643,443 28,245,393 94,797,218
Amount due to the immediate e BERERABNE
holding company 254,293,578 - - 254,293,578
Lease liabilities HEER 2,030,670 1,981,920 3,117,080 7,129,670
434,682,163 23,625,363 31,362,473 489,669,999
RS 2019/20 F1R
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 30.

(continued)

HERAREEEERBE @

(@) Financial risk factors (continued) () MEEAKAE (@&
Liquidity risk (continued) mEBEERR (&)
2019
Repayable on
demand/less 1to Over
than 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
BEREE/
—ENTF —EME MEN L ez
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Trade payables FEfTERTT 28,514,375 - - 28,514,375
Financial liabilities included in HAHMEMTIER
other payables and accruals EHEBzSMEE 136,566,404 - - 136,566,404
Rental and other deposits e kEMES 25,091,814 25,956,248 31,084,224 82,132,286
Amount due to the immediate
holding company EERERARRIE 254,293,578 - - 254,293,578
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary R RRNBABTIE 192,321 - - 192,321
Deferred rental payable ELECRS 46,900 46,900 128,975 222,775
444,705,392 26,003,148 31,213,199 501,921,739
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Slc

(a)

(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Currency risk

The Group's functional currency is HK$. The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily through investments in securities that are
denominated in another currency, being primarily United States
dollars (“USD"). As the HK$ is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between the
HK$ and the USD to be insignificant.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholder and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
year.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholder’s
equity. Management reviews the capital structure periodically
and manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31
March 2020 and 2019, the Group was in a net cash position.

Comparative amounts

As further explained in note 2.2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative

amounts in the consolidated financial statements were not restated

and continued to be reported under the requirements of the previous

standard, HKAS 17, and related interpretations.

30.

Sl

iR MR RN

BHERABREEBERRER @

() MBEBEER (&)
SRR
REBZNEGERBIT - AEEK
BZEBRBEERBUS—EE
(FERZETD) sHEZESHKRE - R
BRI  AEER A BTH
EnZENEXEFEBRIK

(b) BEHER

FEREXAEEZ TEZARBRES
EMFEEE IS HMARRS
REIHR K H At D E /R > 1
MRRIERZ BARER  LURLVESE
PR o R BAEEZBE - BR
AR AR EE) o

NEEZEARBIERBER ZFTA
Do BEEERRANENEE > W
NERAEHAREAERE - AE®
1220204 K2201943831H 9 R R IR
EPREAR ©

EEEEF

BRic AW BREAM T2 2E— SRR k&
E 5220196481 BEBKETEMERMAE
BUBREERE 165 o RIBILFE » &5
MHBRERAZEBRBFLRED > MERR
BITRIER] ~ BEGSHERF 1758 B2
TETIR o
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32. AATHBRAER
A AB B RER RS k> TR

32. Statement of financial position of the company 32. Statement of financial position of the company (continued) 32. ARFHB AR @

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
2020 2019 5T g
HK$ HK$
BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES IERBEE
Development maintenance fund BREEES 390,999,654 397,612,582
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IFRBEE Deferred rental payable EIEFE(TFES - 222,775
Property, plant and equipment M~ B RRE 2,834,964,584 2.869.506,312 Leren elilifes HEas 4,955,359 -
Right-of-use assets BREEE 6,606,435 -
Deferred rental receivables IEIEFEWFE & 7,274,144 8,503,155 Total non-current liabilities EREh A (E4EEE 395,955,013 397,835,357
Investments in securities BARRE 84,074,954 70,830,649
Investment in a subsidiary WEBABKRE 1 1 Net assets BEFE 3,337,767,867 3469,862,069
Prepayments and deposits SEINENEYRE 22,999,823 13,625,542 EQUITY T
Total non-current assets JERENEEALER 2,955,919,941 2,962,465,659 Shere caprtet . 200,000,002 080,002
Reserves (note) #E (M) 3,037,767,865 3,169,862,067
CURRENT ASSETS MEBEE
Inventories et 319,821 337411 Total equity AR 3,337,767,867 3,469,862,069
Trade receivables FE U BR R 19,780,948 10,986,266
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FB{I®IE - & K EhEW RIS 26,514,196 20,999,761
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEWERWB AR IS 3,293,234 261,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B A Bl 7R IE 96,590,998 57,477,503
Investments in securities AR E 708,251,929 680,463,448
Cash and bank balances RITRIREHE 417,492,361 647,997,733
Total current assets RENEBELERE 1,272,243,487 1,418,523,122
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Trade payables PEHBE 2R 41,976,221 28,514,375 Lee George LAM Victor NG Chi-keung
Other payables and accruals HtpE I IE R st &R 101,432,350 148,158,795 MRS REA
Rental and other deposits HELEMES 94,797,218 82,132,286 Director Director
Amount due to the immediate holding company FEf E151ER AT RIB 254,293,578 254,293,578 2 EBE
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary A —RBRRMBATRIE - 192,321
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,941,181 -
Total current liabilities mENEEAEER 494,440,548 513,291,355
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 777,802,939 905,231,767
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ BELERRSHEE 3,733,722,880 3,867,697,426
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32. Statement of financial position of the company (continued)

32. XABMFBRRER (@)

Note: BEE -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: KABREZBENT :
Capital Accumulated
reserve losses Total
BARGEE HEtEs1E st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2018 72018448 1H 5,366,157,807 (2,123,100,341) 3,243,057,466
Loss and total comprehensive loss FABEREEBERE
for the year - (74,671,421) (74,671,421)
Transfer from development maintenance HERBEEESEBEBEERRE
fund to capital reserve 1,476,022 - 1,476,022
At 31 March 2019 and at 1 April 2019 2019FE3 831 H%20195481H 5,367,633,829 (2,197,771,762) 3,169,862,067
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREBBEKREEEBELEE
for the year = (138,707,130) (138,707,130)
Transfer from development maintenance HEBEEESBEEERRE
fund to capital reserve 6,612,928 - 6,612,928
At 31 March 2020 720203831 8 5374246757 (2,336,478,892) 3,037,767,865

33. Approval of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 July 2020.
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